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FINAL FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit attributable to owners of Wong's International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2022 amounted to HK$112.4 million, as
compared to HK$89.5 million for the last financial year.

This was mainly attributable to the profit from EMS
Division increased by HK$75.0 million, gains on deemed
disposal of an associate of HK$117.1 million from loss
of significant influence over B.Duck Semk Holdings
International Limited which is formerly known as Semk
Holdings International Limited (further details were
disclosed in the announcement issued by the Company
on 13 September 2022) and exchange difference in the
sum of HK$22.7 million offsetting by the decrease in the
value of the Group’s properties and the properties held
by the Group’s joint ventures (the “Joint Ventures”) in
the sum of HK$153.4 million.

Earnings per share for the year was HK$0.23 as
compared to HK$0.19 for the last financial year. The
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022
was HK$3,466.7 million, as compared to HK$3,256.7
million for the last financial year. Operating profit for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was HK$241.2 million,
as compared to HK$120.3 million for the last financial
year.

DIVIDENDS

The Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.02
(2021: HK$0.015) per share for 2022. The Directors
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.045 (2021: HK$0.025) per share on or before
Friday, 30 June 2023 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members of the Company on
Thursday, 15 June 2023. Payment of such proposed
final dividend is subject to approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
of the Company to be held on Thursday, 1 June 2023.
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Chairman’s Statement

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
THE AGM

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will
be closed from Thursday, 25 May 2023 to Thursday,
1 June 2023, both days inclusive. During this period,
no transfer of shares will be effected. To be eligible
to attend and vote at the meeting, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 24
May 2023.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the Register of Members of the Company will
be closed on Thursday, 15 June 2023 and no transfer
of shares will be effected on that date. To qualify for the
proposed final dividend which is subject to approval of
the shareholders at the AGM, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Standard Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 14 June 20283.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

For the purpose of maintaining a reasonable return
on investment and rewarding shareholders for their
continued support, the Board has adopted a Dividend
Policy for distribution of dividend to the shareholders
in accordance with the Group’s profit performance.
The dividend payout ratio will be based on the profit
attributable to the shareholders excluding share of profit
and loss of joint ventures/associated companies and
change in fair value of investment properties which have
been recorded in the consolidated income statement
after considering various prevailing factors at the time
of declaration of dividend, including but not limited to
financial performance and projected profitability, liquidity
position and capital efficiency, compliance with financial
covenants, dividends received from subsidiaries,
future growth and commitments, potential investment
opportunities, relevant provisions under the Company’s
bye-laws, laws of Bermuda and other applicable rules
and regulations. The Company may also distribute
special dividend from time to time in addition to the
ordinary dividend.

Depending on the situation from time to time, dividend
recommendation and payment shall be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to the
approval of shareholders, where appropriate. There is
no assurance that dividends will be recommended or
paid in any particular amount for any given period.
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Chairman’s Statement

REVIEW OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Electronic Manufacturing Service Division (“EMS
Division”)

Revenue for the EMS Division for the year ended 31
December 2022 was HK$3,404.5 million, as compared
to HK$3,192.7 million for the last financial year. The
segment profit attributable to the EMS Division was
HK$157.2 million, 91.4% increase as compared to
HK$82.1 million for the last financial year. The increase
in the segment net profit was attributable to ease
of material shortage situation and improvement of
operating efficiency.

Property Holding Division

Revenue for the Property Holding Division for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was HK$62.2 million, as
compared to HK$64.0 million for the last financial year.
The segment loss was HK$88.1 million, as compared to
segment profit of HK$66.5 million for last financial year.
The decrease was driven by the higher reduction on
the value of properties held by the Group and the Joint
Ventures. The decrease in the value of the properties is
unrealised and did not have any impact on the Group’s
cash flow. The properties held by the Group and the
Joint Ventures are mainly for leasing purposes and the
rental income had no significant change during the year.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 7
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total
of HK$3,408.2 million (2021: HK$3,621.5 million)
of banking facilities. Total bank borrowings were
HK$2,023.0 million (2021: HK$2,075.7 million). Cash
and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and
restricted cash were HK$1,217.0 million as at 31
December 2022 (2021: HK$1,414.9 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a net bank
borrowing of HK$806.0 million, as compared to
HK$660.8 million as at 31 December 2021. Sufficient
banking facilities and bank balances are available to
meet the cash needs of the Group for its manufacturing
operations as well as Property Holding Division.

Net gearing ratio for the Group as at 31 December
2022 was 0.19 (2021: 0.16). The net gearing ratio
was calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total bank borrowings and lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits and restricted cash.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Most of the Group’s sales are conducted in United
States dollars and costs and expenses are mainly in
United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Japanese
Yen, Chinese Renminbi and Vietnam Dong. Consistent
with its prudent policy on financial risk management,
the Group does not use any foreign exchange hedging
products. The Group recognises the currency risk in the
fluctuation of Chinese Renminbi and will closely monitor
and actively manage the risk involved.
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Chairman’s Statement

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s capital structure consists of bank
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits, restricted cash and equity attributable to
owners of the parent, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

PLEDGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

Details of the pledges on the Group’s assets are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed
approximately 3,100 employees. The Group adopts a
remuneration policy which is commensurate with job
nature, qualification and experience of employees.
In addition to the provision of annual bonuses and
employee related insurance benefits, discretionary
bonuses are also rewarded to employees based on
individual performance. The remuneration packages
and policies are reviewed periodically. The Group also
provides in-house and external training programs to its
employees.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 9
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PROSPECTS

High levels of uncertainty remain about the global
economic outlook. There are some encouraging signs
as inflation and energy prices should have passed their
peak levels. China’s lifting of its zero-COVID policy
and the recent reopening also provides some growth
impulses. However, the rise in bank rates to fight
for inflation and Russia’s war in Ukraine continue to
weigh on economic activity. Cost rising due to global
inflation, and rising bank interest rates will continue to
impact the profitability of the Group in Year 2023. As
to supply chain conditions, there are remain a lot of
uncertainty on shortages of semiconductors and certain
components, but there are some positive signs as the
disruption of the supply chain and various logistic issues
will have further eased. The Group will closely monitor
the situation to satisfy the planned delivery schedule of
customers.

To deal with the materials shortages, the Group
will liaise with its customers and provide them with
prompt feedback and proposed remedial actions
and will also work closely with customers to explore
alternative sources of supply of materials, such as Asian
semiconductors and passive components sources.
We shall implement severe cost saving measures and
continue our endeavour to improve operating efficiency.
Based on current customer orders and forecast, the
Group is confident that the EMS business will be stable
in the first half of Year 2023 and will grow once material
shortages and supply chain issues are further alleviated.

Customer visits to qualify the Group’s factory in Vietnam
have resumed and increased, and are bringing more
sales opportunities to the Group. Construction of the
new production facility in Hai Duong Province, Vietnam,
with production area of 30,000 square meters was
completed in January 2023. The Directors believe that
the factory in Vietnam will enhance the customer base
of the EMS business and is an important source of
growth path for the Group.
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= (&) PROSPECTS (continued)

EPREWETBECEBT AEBEHEZ S Market conditions for commercial properties in Hong

WEFEZCHEDECLT28 M A Kong have stabilized, and the commercial properties

REBEREFTUA-ERXFMEZN=-ZF held by the Group, directly or indirectly, have been

T FEFATEHR-_ZT_=FREEME almost fully leased out, generating stable income to the

BIKF o REB —FAERIIEME P FI R Group. Loan Interest rates have increased in Year 2022

TE EARRRE - and are expected to remain at similar levels in Year
2023. The Group has been taking measures to hedge
against risk of rising interest rates.

BIEBRAT AWARD & RECOGNITION

ARFIREZENBRATEKREFAERZA The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wong’s
RIEBE+T —FTESBLEREB 2% Electronics Company Limited, were awarded the Caring
(HARBE| Zw B2 AYAEE Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social
BHR2EtBEHNIEARTEEMRM  Service for the eleventh consecutive year. These serve
FRA] o as recognition of the Group’s active participation in
community activities and good corporate citizenship.

& APPRECIATION

AANEHRRRESGRLCKRLBZHHEF -  On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to

HEFMEBEF —BEYAREEMNETE  extend my sincere gratitude to our customers, suppliers

SHEARAMZWLERRMAEEFAFE and business partners for their continued confidence

IR HENARNEBRMEHEZERS -  in and support to the Group. | would also like to pay
a special tribute to all of our employees for their loyal,
diligent and professional services to the Group.

T A WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
TEFRITHAEE Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
BB —E-=F=ZA=-+WEA Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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BRETSBIERE (F5i8)
Profit / (Loss) after Income Tax
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“E--F  ZEZ-fF 29
2022 2021 Changes
k3 BAX BAX BNE
Notes % % % point
EEEE Operating results
EERFAIHREB AL Employee benefit expenses
to revenue % 13.2 14.9 -1.7
Hg R Hhaaolt Other operating expenses
to revenue % 4.9 5.4 -0.5
EEMEE Operating profit % 7.0 3.7 3.3
EME % Net profit % 3.2 2.7 0.5
A EETE Return on equity (%) 1 2.5 2.0 0.5
BERERR Financial health
REEHARGANL Net debts to total equity % 2 19.1 15.8 3.3
ERHeEGa AL Borrowings to total equity % 3 45.8 46.3 -0.5
“E--F  ZECZ-F 29
2022 2021 Changes
B ER Financial ratio
Ti#ER
MENLL & (fF) Current ratio (Times) 4 1.5 1.7 N/A
SREE Per share data
B#0.237 0,197
SREFN Earnings per share HK$0.23 HK$0.19 +21.1%
BT 5E - Notes:
1. R E=FHEaEs 1. Return on equity % = net profit/total equity
2. FEEHEERA L= (REF+HEBGEHE - 2. Net debts to total equity % = (total borrowings + total lease liabilities
HehkBeEBEYWEE - SHRTER IR - total cash and cash equivalents — short-term bank deposits —
Be),/ HBiEs restricted cash)/total equity
3. EBERUBEZEOL = BER BN 3. Borrowings to total equity % = total borrowings/total equity
4, MELE = RBEE/KRDHEE 4, Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities
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Five-Year Financial Summary

—E--f  ZERz-f CZZZZF ZE-nE  ZE-N\F
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
BETTR BT BRI BEFTL BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
25 RESULTS

ik Revenue 3,466,674 3,256,729 3,224,636 3,781,156 4,013,546
EEFE/ (B1]) Operating profit/(oss) 241,231 120,300 (375,056) 245,157 524,818
BEGHARE/ (B58) Profit/(loss) before income tax 154,650 126,662 (735,630) 304,569 1,473,119
A Income tax (42,214) (37,188) (26,048 (38,242) (51,370)
FERB/ (BB) Profit/(loss) for the year 112,436 89,474 (761,678) 266,327 1,421,749
BEANEGTRE/ (B8) Profit/(loss) attributable to owners 112,436 89,474 (761,674) 266,327 1,421,749
FERER Non-controlling interests - - (4) - -

EERER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEE Total assets 7,678,233 7,747,276 7,585,931 8,183,236 8,267,682
BakE Total liabilities 3,265,140 3,268,739 3,252,157 3,177,012 3,447,493
GRRER A ER Equity attributable to owners 4,413,093 4,478,537 4,333,774 5,008,220 4,820,185
EERER Non-controlling interests - - - 4 4
BEGRAE Total equity and liabilties 7,678,233 7,747,276 7,585,931 8,183,236 8,267,682

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R
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Directors’ Report

The Directors are pleased to present their report
together with the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 which
were approved by them at the board meeting held on
the date of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the development,
manufacture, marketing and distribution of electronic
products as well as property holding.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year and
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2022 are set out on pages 112 to 247 of this Annual
Report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

A detailed analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit
by operating segments are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have declared an interim dividend and
now recommend a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2022 as follows:

BT T

HK$’'000

B ERE B AESREE0.027T Interim dividend of HK$0.02 per share paid 9,570
BRARBRE  REBREETRG Proposed final dividend of HK$0.045 per share

B #0.0457T in issue 21,533

31,103

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 1 5
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group for the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future development and
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 11
of this Annual Report. A discussion of the financial risks
and the management of the risks of Group are provided
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 11 and the
Financial Highlights on pages 12 and 13 of this Annual
Report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to environmental responsibility
through minimizing the impacts to the community,
environment and natural resources while safeguarding
the health and safety of the public. The Group actively
controls and endeavors to reduce emissions, waste
and inefficient use of resources and energy. Health,
safety and the environment are the top priorities in the
design of our products, processes and services. Our
manufacturing facilities are constantly managed and
monitored using international environmental systems.

Relationships with employees

The Group considers that employees are valuable
assets of the Group and is committed to building an
amicable and rewarding relationship with its employees.
Employees are remunerated with salary packages
commensurate with their job nature, qualification,
experience and performance. Training is provided to
employees to enhance job performance and progression
within the Group. The Group also works its best to
cultivate a harmonious workplace which enhances
employee performance and company-employee
relationship. In addition, the Group strives to provide a
safe and healthy work environment.
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Directors’ Report

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Community engagement

The Group takes pride in participating in community
events and volunteer activities as a key component
of our commitment to corporate responsibility. The
engagements provide opportunities for the Group
and our employees to contribute in improving local
communities. Such activities include making donations,
paying visits to elderly homes and participating in flag-
selling activities etc. Certain companies in the Group
have been awarded the Caring Company Logo by The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of
their active participation in community activities and
good corporate citizenship.

Relationships with customers and suppliers

The Group strives to be global strategic business
partners of our customers by providing products
and services that meet or exceed our customers’
requirements for quality, reliability and value. In
accomplishing this goal, the Group endeavours to build
long-term and mutually beneficial relationships with our
suppliers, which play a crucial role in providing high
quality products and ensuring reliable delivery to our
customers.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

To the best knowledge of the Board of Directors, the
Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group
during the year.

Subsequent events

The Group did not have any material events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the
financial year.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 1 7
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable
to the Group’s largest suppliers and customers are as
follows:

BOX
%
R Purchases
—BRARHER — the largest supplier 8
—hIAREEEEHE — five largest suppliers combined 32
THERE Sales
—mAEP — the largest customer 48
—HEARBEFAEMHFE — five largest customers combined 78

EEF EBBAIBR (RESHAHE
BARRBRAE%IA £ ) B A 6 E AE ] B
VEER LA HERNES 2 -

EEMBHRE

AEBBERAFZEE BENEERY
NE14E -

Cope NS

FTEMNBRAAFBHEREGEMERE
M zE20 ©

SN

REZZRAESHFRTHRES M ER
= KIFE32 ©

o] 7k 5% 8
RZEZ_F+_A=+—"H KRQAR
BEARNRZARMANBERELREFE

Z A DR % & & % A B #590,274,0007T
—F - — 4 ¥597,771,0007T) °
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No Directors, their associates or shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) were interested
at any time during the year in the above suppliers or
customers.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years are summarised on page 14.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital during the year are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2022 calculated under the Company’s Bye-laws and the
Bermuda laws, amounted to HK$599,274,000 (2021:
HK$597,771,000).
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BRRE PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

RABZRABIMAISERELEZLEMRTE There are no pre-emptive rights upon the issue of
BB TRNH ZEEE- shares which are imposed by the Company’s Bye-laws
or Bermuda laws.

BE HEXBEAXRAT LmES  PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

HE-_Z-_—_F+-_F=+—HIFE - During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the
RNARISHEEMHBARMEREE HBE Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
SEEARAREMLETES - redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

ME BERSKE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

REEWE BELZEZEEZEHIBEN Movements in book values of property, plant and
HERERE M B WMEM TS - equipment during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

B DONATIONS

REBRAFEzEZEREMELRZLL  Donations made by the Group for charitable and other
¥ 578 #216,0007T ° purposes during the year amounted to HK$216,000.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 1 9
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada
Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel
Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund
Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP
Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JpP
Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, Jp
Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David
(resigned on 29 November 2022)
Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley
(appointed on 29 November 2022)

In accordance with Bye-laws 95 and 112 of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel, Dr. Li
Ka Cheung, Eric, Mr. Alfred Donald Yap and Mr. Lo Wai
Ho, Ashley shall retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The existing Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term but is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Board has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors the annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and considers them as independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (former name: Wong
Chung Mat, Benedict), aged 71, joined the Group in
1975. He has been a Director of the Company since
June 1990. In February 2003, he was appointed
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Wong is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and the Administrative Committee of the Company and
a director of various other companies of the Group. He
is also a director of Salop Hong Kong Limited which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company. He obtained a
Master of Science degree in Operations Research from
Ohio State University and was conferred an Honorary
Fellowship by the City University of Hong Kong. He has
over 48 years’ experience in the electronics industry.
Mr. Wong is the father of Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada,
and brother of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny, Mr. Wong
Chung Yin, Michael, Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui and
Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia, and brother-in-law of
Ms. Luk Kit Ching and Ms. Woo Sin Ming; who are
substantial shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, aged 45, joined the Group
in 2002 and was appointed Director of the Company
in October 2005. She is the Chairperson of the
Risk Management Committee and a member of the
Administrative Committee of the Company. She is also
a director of certain other companies of the Group.
She is responsible for Central Sourcing and Supply
Management, Finance and other departments of the
Group. She is currently a director of Hong Kong Applied
Science and Technology Research Institute Company
Limited and a member of the Enterprise Support
Scheme Assessment Panel under the Innovation and
Technology Fund. She obtained a Bachelor degree
in Industrial Engineering and a Master of Science in
Engineering Management from University of Southern
California. Ms. Wong is the daughter of Mr. Wong
Chung Mat, Ben, and a niece of Mr. Wong Chung Ah,
Johnny, Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael, Mrs. Everitt,
Chung Chui, Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia, Ms. Luk
Kit Ching and Ms. Woo Sin Ming; who are substantial
shareholders of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel, aged 74, joined
the Group in 1985. He has been a Director of the
Company since June 1990. He is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management
Committee and the Administrative Committee of the
Company. He was formerly the Group’s Financial
Controller. In July 2007, he ceased to be the Group’s
Financial Controller and became a financial adviser
of the Group. He is also a director of certain other
companies of the Group. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and obtained a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences,
a Master of Arts degree in China Development
Studies and a Doctor of Philosophy degree from the
University of Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, he
had approximately 10 years’ experience with a major
international firm of accountants.

Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund, aged 68, joined the
Group in April 1992 and subsequently promoted to
Senior Vice President — Sales and Marketing in January
2012. He was appointed Director of the Company in
November 2015. Mr. Hung is also a member of the
Risk Management Committee and the Administrative
Committee of the Company and a director of certain
other companies of the Group. He has over 45 years
of working experience in electronics manufacturing
industry and now has the overall responsibility of
serving a portfolio of customers at Wong’s Electronics
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Prior to joining the Group, he held various
managerial positions in manufacturing, planning, sales
& marketing departments in multinational and listed
companies. Mr. Hung obtained a Diploma in Industrial
Engineering from the Hong Kong Baptist University and
a Master degree in Business Administration from the
City University of Macau.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes, aged 64, joined the
Group in June 2016 as Vice President of Corporate
Finance. He is responsible for all aspects relating to
accounting, finance and taxation of the Company
and its subsidiaries. He was appointed Director of
the Company in April 2021. He is also a member of
the Administrative Committee of the Company and
a director of certain other companies of the Group.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor degree of Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Before joining the
Group, he has more than 30 years of experience in
financial management, business control and auditing
with renowned multinational and listed companies as
well as an international audit firm respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP, FCPA, FCA, FCPA
(Aust), FCIS, LLD, DSocSc, HonDSocSc (EdUHK), BA, FAIA (Hon), CGA
(Hon), HonHKAT, RFP (Hon), aged 69, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-executive Director in April
1999. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Dr. Li is the honorary chairman of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and an independent non-
executive director of SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited, Transport International Holdings
Limited, China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited and Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. He was
an independent non-executive director of Hang Seng
Bank Limited (retired on 27 May 2021). Dr. Li was
a former member of The National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
former member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong,
former chairman of its Public Accounts Committee,
past president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and former adviser to the Ministry
of Finance on international accounting standards of the
People’s Republic of China.

Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JP, aged 84, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-executive Director in October
1999. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Dr. Yu is the chairman of the HKI
Group of Companies and a director of a number
of manufacturing and investment companies. He is
an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Enterprises Holdings Limited, Tongda Group Holdings
Limited and Fu Shek Financial Holdings Limited. Dr. Yu
had served as a member of the Standing Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and the Preparatory Committee for the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region acting as its Hong
Kong affairs adviser. He is currently a member of the
Standing Committee of the Chinese General Chamber
of Commerce and permanent honorary president of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, Jp, aged 84, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
in September 2004. He is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is presently
a common consultant for both K.C. Ho & Fong and
Yap & Lam, Solicitors and Notaries. Mr. Yap is a former
president of The Law Society of Hong Kong and The
Law Association for Asia and the Pacific (LAWASIA).
He is also a former Hong Kong Affairs Adviser and has
served on various public and community organizations.
He is currently an independent non-executive director
of eSun Holdings Limited and Hung Hing Printing Group
Limited.

Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley, aged 57, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
in November 2022. He is also a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lo is a
non-executive director and one of the founders of
Edvance International Holdings Limited (“Edvance
International”, SEHK: 1410). Mr. Lo has over 30 years
of experience in the information technology (“IT”")
industry. Prior to founding Edvance International in
2002, he was a software engineer of DATAP Systems
Division of Sandwell Inc., whose principal business
is the development of IT systems, from December
1989 to August 1992, and he was responsible for
system development. Mr. Lo was a system engineer
of Epic Data Division of Sylogist Ltd., which is
principally engaged in the development of IT systems,
from September 1992 to October 1995, and he was
responsible for system development. From 1999 to
August 2002, Mr. Lo was a technology director of Edeas
Limited, a digital agency based in Hong Kong. Mr. Lo
graduated from the University of British Columbia in
Canada with a Bachelor of Applied Science in Electrical
Engineering in May 1989.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Chan Tin Lun, Byron, aged 55, joined the Group
in January 1997. He is currently Vice President and
responsible for the Group’s Technical Marketing in USA.
Mr. Chan is also a director of certain companies of the
Group, including Wong’s International USA Corporation
which is engaged in the development of the Company’s
original design and manufacturing business in the
North America market. He has more than 30 years of
experience in the field of electronics manufacturing.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan has worked in
various leading international manufacturing companies
in USA. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Mechanical Engineering from the University of Colorado,
Boulder.

Ms. Wong Kit Yee, Kitty, aged 49, joined the Group
in August 2007 and is currently Executive Assistant
to the Chairman and Assistant Vice President of the
Group. She is responsible for overseeing Administration
in Corporate Office in Hong Kong, formulating and
implementing strategies and business plans for the
development of the Group’s property leasing and
management. Ms. Wong is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. Ms. Wong accumulated
extensive experience in various functions of office
management. She obtained a Bachelor degree of
Business Administration from the Open University of
Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior Management (continued)

Ms. Yau Wai Ching, Monica, aged 57, joined the
Group in March 2016. She is currently Vice President
of Central Sourcing Management Department and
responsible for making necessary sourcing and
procurement for the electronic manufacturing business
of the Group. She is also a director of a subsidiary
of the Company. Ms. Yau holds a Bachelor degree of
Business in Transport and Logistics Management from
RMIT University, Australia. She has more than 30 years
of experience in the manufacturing industry.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Personal Information of Director

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, had retired as a member
of The National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference upon expiry of his
term of service on 3 March 2023.
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BiEETHRAE13.51B(1){ 2EZE UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
EREH (&) UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES (continued)

EEME Directors’ emoluments

NTES2EAFSOEAA2% M There were 2% increment to the basic salary entitled

BUNITES FEEEWSDEFAA by the Executive Directors and an increment of

BE10,000 BT - =F—H—H HK$10,000 to the annual Director’s fee entitled by each

B AR Independent Non-executive Director, both with effect
from 1 January 2023:

RABERFS
Adjusted annual
basic salary

BT
HK$
HITES Executive Directors
FARKREE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben 4,596,878
FEHZLT Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 2,454,348
PRFERHT Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 819,132
Ag oK JIE 5 4 Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 1,792,622
PRIEFR L& Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes 1,458,600
RARGTEEEHRS
Adjusted annual
Director’s fee
BT
HK$
BIYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
FREF LT Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 170,000
BRAEL Dr. Yu Sun Say 170,000
ERELE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 170,000
EEELE Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley 170,000
KRB ZEERNHE-_ZT - —_F+=-H The total amount of emoluments of each Director of the
=+t BIFEENMSEEENLGE AT Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set
WERMFE10 - out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short
positions of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

RAEQARARBZHERE Long positions in shares of the Company
K2 BT
RGBS
Approximate
ZERHE percentage
EEHE g4 Number of of the issued
Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares
F A ERMBARZEGNER 2 Eas (W)
Wong Chung Mat, Ben Beneficial owner and interest of 136,828,569 28.60%
controlled corporation (Note)
FE& ERnBEA
Wong Yin Man, Ada Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.21%
PR 2 EREBA
Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel Beneficial owner 1,837,500 0.38%
Ryl ERBEEA
Yu Sun Say Beneficial owner 500,000 0.10%
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company (continued)

Note:

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 136,828,569 shares in the Company. These shares were held
in the following capacity:

(a) 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
personally.

(b) 135,828,569 shares were held by Salop Hong Kong Limited, which
was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2022,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives
of the Company, as at 31 December 2022, persons
(other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:



ESEHREE

Directors’ Report

TERRZER (F) INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
RAEAQNTRBZHFA Long positions in shares of the Company
HEERT
ROBDL
TERREE KB Approximate
Name of EERYE percentage
substantial 4 Number of of the issued
shareholders Capacity ordinary shares shares
EREAA (M)
Salop Hong Kong Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 135,828,569 28.39%
EFEA (B152)
Cantrust (Far East) Limited Trustee (Note 2) 126,298,413 26.40%
TR ERBEAN BEERREERRL
EEINGE)
Wong Chung Ah, Johnny Beneficial owner, interest of spouse and 90,308,532 18.87%
founder of a discretionary trust (Note 3)
i3 42} EakE AREB#ER (M:3)
Luk Kit Ching Beneficial owner and interest of 90,308,532 18.87%
spouse (Note 3)
EnEAA (ME3()
Kong King International Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3(c)) 88,073,532 18.41%
REEHEE 2 #a (EE3()
WLJ Holding Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3(c)) 88,073,532 18.41%
TRH ERBAARLFARA 2 Em (M)
Wong Chung Yin, Michael Beneficial owner and joint interest (Note 4) 78,526,001 16.41%
5 HEBE R REBER (M)
Woo Sin Ming Joint interest and interest of spouse 78,526,001 16.41%
(Note 4)
TRE RREFZEIMA (F55)
Wong Chung Yan, Claudia Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 5) 38,224,881 7.99%
REHER 2 #w (HF5)
New Chung Yan Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 5) 38,224,881 7.99%
AR RREFZEMA (H526)
Everitt, Chung Chui Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 6) 31,379,167 6.56%
BB A (MF6)
Sycamore Assets Limited Beneficial owner (Note 6) 31,379,167 6.56%
EFEA (B15E6)
HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee (Note 6) 31,379,167 6.56%
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TERRZER (H)

REXTRH 2HFR (&)
B -

1. Salop Hong Kong Limited& — @ T AFKELER
BHARENHZAR -F2HAIEERFETHR
ANBZ =] —&ME-

2. Cantrust (Far East) Limited® 18 & (RIFEH K&
BB EEB) AN A 7]126,298,4 130 I& 0 /R 435 5 4
HoRERNDBEBATEHER

(@) 88,073,532k K%M BKong King
International LimitedR & — 18 & # {5 5L
A M Cantrust (Far East) Limited & 3% 12 7&
ZAEFEAN B2 T X EES(C) ©

(b) 19,112,441 B 5 % 19,112,440/% f& 17
7 Al Aldalyn Limited X Blueford Limited
BIE—E2 SR B iMCantrust (Far
East) Limited B Est 255t A @B 2HE T
SCHIRES ©

3. TRAMAEREZTHERZELTHR A (REE
5 R EE D) R A A 7[R — #90,308,532% I
DEBERDS ZERHBBUATINER:

(@ 1,000,000 &M AT RBEEBAFTE -

(b) 1,235,000l B ETLEBEEZETF
fER2E L t#HA-

(c) 88,073,532 &M AKong King
International LimitediR & —E 2 # 55T
HE mMEIEAGEERBER(REFS
M ERE G 0I) % = 58 2 Bl #t A - Cantrust
(Far East) Limitedfl] &1 A ° Kong
King International LimitedfEAWLJ Holding
LimitedZ & # A + i1 7% A & A £ Cantrust
(Far East) Limited2 &# A - T B L4
fE)2 8 2 &= - Kong King International
Limited * WLJ Holding Limited}& Cantrust
(Far East) Limited® B # &R A E R —#
88,073,532/ ik 17 < #E % ©
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

1. Salop Hong Kong Limited was a company wholly-owned and
controlled by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben. Please refer to the
Note under the section headed “Interests of Directors and chief
executives”.

2. Cantrust (Far East) Limited was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to
be interested in 126,298,413 shares in the Company. These shares
were held in the following capacity:

(a) 88,073,632 shares were held by Kong King International
Limited under a discretionary trust, of which Cantrust (Far
East) Limited was the trustee. Please refer to Note 3(c) below.

(b) 19,112,441 shares and 19,112,440 shares were held by
Aldalyn Limited and Blueford Limited respectively under a
discretionary trust, of which Cantrust (Far East) Limited was
the trustee. Please refer to Note 5 below.

3. Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny and his wife, Ms. Luk Kit Ching, were
deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested in the same block of
90,308,532 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the
following capacity:

(a) 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny
personally.

(b) 1,235,000 shares were held by Ms. Luk Kit Ching, wife of
Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny.

(c) 88,073,532 shares were held by Kong King International
Limited under a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Wong Chung
Ah, Johnny was regarded as the founder (by virtue of the
SFO) and Cantrust (Far East) Limited was the trustee. Kong
King International Limited was wholly-owned by WLJ Holding
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Cantrust (Far East)
Limited. Each of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny, Ms. Luk Kit
Ching, Kong King International Limited, WLJ Holding Limited
and Cantrust (Far East) Limited was deemed to be interested
in the same block of 88,073,532 shares.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company (continued)

Notes: (continued)

4.

Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael and his wife, Ms. Woo Sin Ming, were
deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested in the same block of
78,526,001 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the
following capacity:

(a) 50,458,041 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael
personally.

(b) 28,067,960 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael
and Ms. Woo Sin Ming jointly.

Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia was deemed (by virtue of the SFO)
to be interested in 19,112,441 shares and 19,112,440 shares in the
Company which were held by Aldalyn Limited and Blueford Limited
respectively (38,224,881 shares in total) under a discretionary
trust, of which Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia was regarded as the
founder (by virtue of the SFO) and Cantrust (Far East) Limited was
the trustee. Aldalyn Limited and Blueford Limited were wholly-owned
by New Chung Yan Limited, which was wholly-owned by Cantrust
(Far East) Limited. Each of Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia, New
Chung Yan Limited and Cantrust (Far East) Limited was deemed to
be interested in the same block of 38,224,881 shares.

Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 31,379,167 shares in the Company which were held
by Sycamore Assets Limited under a discretionary trust, of which
Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui was regarded as the founder (by virtue of
the SFO) and HSBC International Trustee Limited was the trustee.
Sycamore Assets Limited was wholly-owned by HSBC International
Trustee Limited. Each of Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui, Sycamore Assets
Limited and HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed to be
interested in the same block of 31,379,167 shares.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of
any other persons who, as at 31 December 2022, had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) on 26 June 2020. No option has been
granted under the Scheme since its adoption date and
up to 31 December 2022. As at 1 January 2022 and
31 December 2022, the number of options available for
grant under the scheme mandate was 47,848,379.

SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Scheme disclosed in accordance with
the Listing Rules is as follows:

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to reward the
eligible participants (as described in paragraph 2
below) who have contributed or will contribute to
the Group and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.

2. Participants

Eligible participants include Directors (including
Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors)
and employees (whether full time or part time
employees) of any member of the Group who
the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.

3. Total number of shares available for issue

The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time.
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SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

4.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to any
grantee (including both exercised and outstanding
options) under the Scheme and any other schemes
of the Company in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of shares of the Company in issue,
unless approved by shareholders.

Period within which the option may be
exercised

The option period of a particular option is the
period during which the option can be exercised,
such period to be determined and notified by the
Board to each grantee at the time of making the
offer, and in any event such period of time shall not
expire later than 10 years from the date of grant.

Vesting period of the option

Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its
sole discretion, there is a minimum period of 1
year for which an option must be held after its date
of grant before such an option can be exercised
under the terms of the Scheme.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option
and the payment period

To accept the grant of an option, HK$10 as
consideration for the grant of an option must be
paid by the grantee to the Company within 21 days
from the date on which an offer letter is delivered
to the grantee.
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SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

8. Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the higher of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant;
and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.
9. Life of the Scheme

The Scheme shall remain in force for 10 years
commencing on 26 June 2020 up to and including
25 June 2030.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option scheme, at no time
during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries, its
associated corporations, or its specified undertaking
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, its associated corporations or any other body
corporate.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the
Company during the year, save for the share option
scheme which subsisted at the year end.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes
are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Where any transaction mentioned in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements constitutes a
connected transaction, the disclosure and approval
requirements, if any, under the Listing Rules have been
complied with.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had, whether
directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

There is no service contract, which is not determinable
by the Company or its subsidiaries within 1 year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation), with any Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.
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PERMITTED DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND
INSURANCE

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that every
Director or other officer of the Company and the
liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties
of his office, to the extent permitted by the laws.

The Company has also taken out and maintained
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for certain legal
actions that may be brought against its Directors and
officers.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2022, the details of the significant
investment are set out below:

BEREERLA
BEERGEE Proportion
NCES SR L 5 Number of of ownership FE%%H
Name of company Place of incorporation shares held interest  Principal activities
LEERARES REER
Talent Chain Investments Limited BVI 357 35.7%  Investment holding
BRREBRAR (K:E) 0 TER ESSEC]
Crown Opal Investment Limited (Note) Hong Kong N/A 35.7%  Property holding

Wit: BREEAFRAFATalent Chain Investments

Limited 2 Bt & 2 7] °

RZZEZ_—_F+=-A=+—H8"  RTalent
Chain Investments Limited & 7@ B & G R A
A2 & F 58 58 ¥2,051,800,0007T * 7% &
HHRBAAEEBEESY MAREBEABE
2,071,300,0007T - Bp AL E 42 E E27.0% ©
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Note: Crown Opal Investment Limited is a subsidiary of Talent Chain
Investments Limited.

As at 31 December 2022, net investment in Talent
Chain Investments Limited and Crown Opal Investment
Limited was HK$2,051.8 million, which amount exceeds
5% of the total assets of the Group, and the fair value
was HK$2,071.3 million, which represents 27.0% of the
total assets of the Group.
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REBE_Z__F+_-_A=+—RHLFE"
JE {5 Talent Chain Investments Limited } 7 &
KERR AR Z B8 &% %43,900,0007T
ZeRBERTEEEEPEEBER-

Talent Chain Investments Limited X 7 2 %
BERARIZHER/RFBUREENTWO
Harbour Squarefi ¥ EF & EEAEKE 2
MEZ R NEEBREARSAEERGZY
¥EH 2D UMMELREA®R-

HEBAANMBEXE

BELFTTRNFEF+=ZZEBB I 2RES T
RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H BFFK
EEMA & 30pen Vantage Limited &
Talent Chain Investments Limited 2 & ZH #
1,056,100,0007C ' BB A EER — T = —4F
T_A=+-—BREEZ8% - ZFRERA
EEEREE -ZERRTIR_ZEZTN\FE
T oF FHEEBARTZA=T—HZH
BEERRE#S-

ERZFAELENMBEMM BN
BB HRRMIEI9

RARRDIR=ZZE—RF+—A=Z+tHBER
—E-RAF+ A +HRBEMAMIER
WA A B Talent Chain Investments Limited
RPN BER REBE ETHRE HEX
KRR —HBEIERG E—THBHRZA
o NGB R o
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Directors’ Report

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the share of
losses of Talent Chain Investments Limited and Crown
Opal Investment Limited, which included in the share of
losses of joint ventures, was HK$43.9 million.

The investment in Talent Chain Investments Limited and
Crown Opal Investment Limited is holding a commercial
building in Kwun Tong, Two Harbour Square. It is the
Group’s preference to hold its interest in its attributable
share of the property project as much as possible for
leasing purposes after taking into account the Group’s
financial requirements.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules, as at 31 December 2022, the
loans advanced to Open Vantage Limited and Talent
Chain Investments Limited, the joint venture companies
of the Group, amounted to HK$1,056.1 million, which
amount exceeds 8% of the total assets of the Group
as at 31 December 2022. The advances are unsecured
and interest-free. The advances were made during the
financial years ended 31 December from 2008 to 2022.

The summarised financial information of the joint venture
companies are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 24 November 2015 and 15 December 2015, the
Company issued an announcement and a circular
respectively in relation to the provision of additional
financial assistance to Talent Chain Investments Limited
which constituted a major transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules. Further details were set out in
the announcement and circular.
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GROUP BORROWINGS AND
CAPITALISED

INTEREST

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year or
on demand are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements. Bank loans and other borrowings
repayable within a period of more than 1 year are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
No interest was capitalised by the Group during the
year.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Group’s performance on environmental and social
matters is set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices of the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company as at the date of this Directors’ Report,
the Company believes that the number of shares of the
Company which are in the hands of the public is above
the relevant prescribed minimum percentage.
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= B Em AUDITOR

REZZHEHEABEEFH KBEBEAISE  The financial statements for the year have been audited
BREZ EEmER EHEBT- by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

REREZ® On behalf of the Board

T B WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
TREFTHAAK Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
B T =F=A=+WMA Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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The Company is pleased to present the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to provide an overview of the
Group’s management of significant environmental, social
and governance issues. The report has been prepared
with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange ESG Guide”) which is applicable for the
financial year of 2022. In the opinion of the Directors of
the Company, for the year under review, the Company
has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions
set out in the Stock Exchange ESG Guide.

This Report covers the core activities of the Group
which involve operations of the three manufacturing
factories located in Shenzhen, Vietnam and Suzhou
under our wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Welco
Wong’s Technology (Shenzhen) Limited, Welco
Technology Vietnam Company Limited and Welco
Technology (Suzhou) Limited, respectively. Furthermore,
in respect of the social aspect, the Company’s principal
office in Hong Kong is also involved. Additional
information in relation to the Group’s corporate
governance is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this Annual Report.
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BOARD MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for
overseeing the Group’s ESG objectives, strategies
and management approach; and sets the process
to evaluate, prioritize and manage material ESG
issues. The Board regularly assesses and reviews
the environmental, social and governance risks and
opportunities, formulate its strategies and ensures the
establishment and maintenance of an effective control
systems on the environmental, social and governance
aspects of its business. The Board discusses, reviews
and evaluates all relevant ESG issues and the progress
towards the targets at least once a year. The Group
has set up an ESG Working Group which consists of
members from senior and middle management to assist
the Board to implement the ESG related strategies
and targets. The ESG Working Group strives to guide
and monitor various business functions to effectively
implement the measures to achieve the ESG strategies
and targets.

ESG STRATEGY

The Group’s ESG Strategy is to strive for high level of
positive outcomes on 5 major areas:

(i)  Commit to do business with high degree of ethical
governance;

(i) Provide high quality and safe products to the
customers with a well-established system to select
high quality, efficient and reliable suppliers;

(ii) Establish a good and supportive workplace that
upholds fair and equal treatment, competitive
welfare and incentive system and an effective
training program aim for sustaining a competent,
professional and ethical workforce;
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BE dHEREARARK (&) ESG STRATEGY (continued)

(ivy BE2EZEETESH ZBZFH K (iv) Actively participate in local community activities
HERE BER2HAZHTRIEE- and good corporate citizenship through engaging
B RTFEEARRBE UBIEHRE various volunteering works, charity events and
BE XHEREEAT K education donation with an aim to create shared

value and support the people in need; and

() BUSTENREEEBX MMREE (v Setup asound environmental management system

2REEH RABERES RS NS to ensure compliance throughout the operations

B RERERESNAOBR- meanwhile actively control and endeavor to reduce
emissions, wastes and inefficient use of resources
and energy.

BEMBEINRERE HERER/ER

Our ESG areas of concern
o TEBEEREBMIEZ
_ Workplace Qua"ty and
Employee Relationship

o BB ERRIREIR . EE
Emissions and Energy Employment
Conservation . MTXR|
o AKX Labour Standards
Water Consumption . BEREEY
s BEEWER Development and Training
Waste Management . REEEZD
s FRAEMER Health and Safety
Other Use of Resources o HEIEN
* RIEREL Operating Practices
Climate Change . fEpEsEEE
Supply Chain Management
Product Responsibility
TAARF R BEERREE AL - REF
Also covered in the Corporate Anti-corruption
Governance Report of this o HEEE
Annual Report Community Investment
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The report has been prepared in accordance with the
following principles and is in compliance with the ESG
reporting guideline:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Materiality

The interests and expectation of stakeholders is
taken into account through the engagement with
the stakeholders and the materiality assessment.

Quantitative

Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and source of conversion factors used
have been disclosed. Data reported in this report
have been evaluated and validated.

Balance

The information in this report is presented in a
format that the users can see the positive and
negative trends in performance on a year-to-year
basis.

Consistency

The report is prepared using consistent
methodologies. Information can be compared
on a year-to-year basis. Any significant variation
between reporting period can be identified and
explained.
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MATERIALITY

It is the commitment of the Group to manufacture
and supply good quality products, while caring about
the community, environment and natural resources
and safeguarding the health and safety of the public.
The Group has set up business standards and ethical
practices which enable us to fulfill our commitments to
our stakeholders, including shareholders and investors,
regulatory bodies, communities, customers, suppliers
and employees.

Our material assessment involves a four-step process:

1) Identification of a pool of relevant environmental,
social and economics topics;

2) Prioritization based on the impact and concerns of
stakeholders;

3) validation and approval of the stakeholders
engagement results; and

4) review and identification of the gaps for
improvement.
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B9 & A5
Stakeholder Groups

MATERIALITY (continued)

We realise that dialogues with stakeholders as well
as their feedback and concerns are crucial for the
continuous enhancement and growth of the Group.
Communication channels are as follows:

SHRE
Engagement Channels

BRRERREE

Shareholders and Investors

FE/HERE
Annual/interim reports
NSIFERE]

Company webpage
B

Circulars

RERE

General meetings

EERE
Regulatory Bodies

wE

Reports

REFEA]

Certifications/licensing

B BHRIEX

Meetings, emails and correspondences

HE
Communities

BELY

Charity events

B REH

Emails and Correspondences

'R

Customers

NGIFERE]

Company webpage

MEERAE

Satisfaction surveys

2% B RIEE

Meetings, emails and Correspondences

HES
Suppliers

R T {4

Supplier assessment

gz BHRER

Meetings, emails and Correspondences

BT
Employees

EHRED

Meetings and emails

B RGET

Performance assessment
25t 8

Training programs
NEER

Company events

NER

Notice Board

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 47



R HERELBRSE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EEM(E)
REITINESE R A EBRE &R E B 1% B
M -

MATERIALITY (continued)

The Materiality matrix after external and internal
assessment is summarized as follows:

BB
Materiality Assessment

5.00 . .
20
4.50 ‘ 16 ‘
12
2 ®
ug o & . ©00
= g 13
W o . 14 15
£2 350
= él 3.00
250 .
2.00 250 3.00 3.50 4.00 450 5.00
HBHENET 2
Important to stakeholders
e HE 1 i EE 1
Area ltem Topic Area Item Topic
ES B LTS Sl BRTEgE
Business Strategy and 12 Diversity and Equal
Performance Opportunity
AREE 15 Do Altaion and Retenti
. e alent Attraction and Retention
Gov;é:ﬁnce Risk Management Management
FaE 2 TRFARTIEREEL
An%-/corru tion 14 Employee Benefits and
P ®T Workplace Well-being
EEER Labour 15 ZRRE .
Law Compliance Development and Training
Eﬂg%rggy e(?ﬂoennsiumptlon 16 Occupational Health and Safety
AkEE 7 EIRBINE |
Water Management Employee and Labour Practice
BEREHMN ,
Greenhouse Gas Emission
£ RBE | s g&%%&ﬁﬁ%&%‘% Land
nvironmenta ; upplier Management an
Use of Materials ECRRE Assessment
BEYER Product and EREERT2
Waste Management Service Product Quality and Safety
BHEE
Transportation Management
{rEnER HE HESE
Chemical Management Community Community Engagement
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group believes that environmental protection,
low carbon footprint, resources conservation and
sustainability development is the key trends in the
society. We are committed to minimize the impacts to
the environment and natural resources and continuously
improve the environmental sustainability of the business.
Our vision is to bring good quality products to the
customers around the world while actively control and
endeavor to reduce emissions, wastes and inefficient
use of resources and energy. An Environmental, Health
and Safety Committee (“EHSC”) has been established
to oversee environmental, health and safety matters.
Our manufacturing facilities are constantly managed
and monitored under international environmental quality
systems (ISO 14001 and ISO 45001).
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Our Environmental Policy includes:

Educate and motivate all our employees to be
accountable and responsible for environment
protection;

Prevent pollution through evaluation of
manufacturing processes and materials to eliminate
or minimize environmental impact due to hazardous
substances or wastes;

Identify hazards in all activities, and take
appropriate actions to control risks and avoid
serious injuries;

Conserve all resources through efficient usage;

Comply with all relevant environmental laws and
government requirements;

Review the effectiveness of the environmental
management system through regular audits for
continuous improvements;

Meet international hazardous substance regulations
and green requirements from specific customers;
and

Share and address compliance concerns with all
interested parties.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Emissions and Energy Conservation

We have taken rigorous efforts to enhance and upgrade
the environmental facilities and improve the capabilities
in processing and reducing wastes and emissions
related to hazardous elements in the manufacturing
process.

Our air emissions were generated mainly by company
vehicles. In 2022, our NOx, SOx and PM were 1,617.82
kgs, 1.05 kgs and 115.63 kgs respectively. Comparing
with the result in 2021, the decrease was mainly due to
shipment required local vehicle transportation decrease
in 2022. Relevant departments have been taking
measures to maintain vehicles in good conditions in
order to minimise air emission.

Our greenhouse gas emissions were contributed mainly
by electricity consumptions, company vehicles and
carbon emissions from the production machines. In
2022, our CO, emission was 17,789 tons and electricity
consumptions was 29,756,646 kwh. Comparing
with the result in 2021, there was 4.1% decrease by
improved energy efficiency. The Company considered
great importance on energy efficiency to minimise the
greenhouse gas emission.

We conducted regular environmental testing through
government certified laboratories with respect to
international standards and government laws and
regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Emissions and Energy Conservation (continued)

Actions we have taken to reduce air emissions,
emission of CO,, energy consumption; and improve
energy efficiency include:

— Installed variable frequency devices of air
conditioning systems;

— Replaced low efficiency or eliminated excessive air-
conditioning units;

— Installed the water spraying system on the top
floor to automatically spray water to cool down the
temperature of the workshop in summer;

— Replaced common lamps with LED; and
— Upgraded HVAC system.
Water Consumption

We endeavor to conserve water effectively in the
operations and implemented water conservation
programs as follow:

— Promoted and motivated employees to support the
water-saving program;

— Reduced chiller running time and improved the
utilization; and

— Upgraded the Deionised water system with new
technology and high efficiency.

In 2022, water consumption was 290,772 tons which
was increased 5.91% by comparing with the result in
2021, mainly due to business growth and increased
temperature in summer. Comparing with the result
in 2021, the water intensity by revenue in 2022 was
improved to 85.41 tons per HK$ million revenue after
improving the efficiency of water usage.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Waste Management

In 2022, hazardous wastes and non-hazardous wastes
were 113 tons and 965 tons respectively. Comparing
with the result in 2021, hazardous wastes increased
11% mainly due to the volume increased for the PCB
scrap materials. Non-hazardous wastes decreased
by 1.2% mainly due to better control on the waste
pallets. With the aim to create a sustainable society,
we conduct strict classification of hazardous wastes
and non-hazardous wastes, and hazardous wastes
are stored in special areas, handled by well-trained
employees in accordance with working instructions and
disposed through accredited vendors.

Waste reduction and recycling have been promoted and
implemented in the factories. We recycled solder dross
from the wave soldering machines to reduce the amount
of hazardous wastes. We returned some of the chemical
containers and packaging to the suppliers to reuse and
recycle. We used recycles boxes to reduce the use of
packing materials.

Other Use of Resources

Package materials are used to protect our products
in order to minimise the risk of damage during
transportation. In 2022, package materials used was
1,579 tons which was 25.2% higher than the usage
in 2021, mainly caused by the shipped quantity of
those products with heavy packaging are increased
in Domestic sales. To reduce the usage of packing
materials, we implemented recycle box for more
customers to replace the carton box.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Climate Change

Climate change is mainly caused by the emission
of greenhouse gases due to burning fossil fuels for
energy uses, steelmaking, cement production and
forest loss. The Group has identified and assessed the
potential climate related risks including physical risks
and transition risks as well as their potential financial
impacts to the business. The Group has developed a
climate change strategy and formulated various actions
to cope with climate change. Also, the Group reviews
relevant law and regulations periodically to ensure the
requirements are timely updated and followed.

The Company is adopting the carbon neutrality concept
and is committed to reduce the greenhouse gases by
minimising the energy consumption and improving the
energy efficiency from our daily operations through
various energy saving programs for examples, using
lower emission or renewable source of energy, tree
plantation etc.

Our Group has three manufacturing factories located in
Shenzhen, Suzhou and Vietnam. They are not located
in areas where disruption to the Group’s manufacturing
activities may happen due to sustained high
temperature or extreme bad weather conditions. The
Group also recognises the impacts of climate change
which includes both global warming and weather
patterns change can affect our operation and safety
of its people. The Company has adopted appropriate
measures for extreme weather events. The Company
has comprehensive guidelines to all employees for
typhoon and rainstorm warnings in accordance with
the government regulations. The Company has strictly
follow the measures for employees working in hot
weather and comply with the government regulations.
The Company has the corresponding facilities to prevent
the related employees working in high temperature
environment due to hot weather and closely monitor the
weather information for work arrangements on time.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Targets

We aim to minimise the impacts to the environment
while our electronic manufacturing business consume
significant amount of energy and resources. By
implementing lean manufacturing, automation and
optimising logistics within the factories, we strive
to improve our resources and energy efficiencies,
productivity and to reduce the use of raw materials.
Environmental targets and plans are conveyed to the
employees to maintain an environmental cautious
workplace.

The Group is committed and formulated as series of
environmental measures and set up the targets to
reduce its operational impact on the environment. The
Group has appointed an independent ESG consultant
to facilitate the implementation of our environmental
measures and to provide advices for our continuous
improvement.

The Company has set the targets in Year 2025 to
reduce intensities of energy use, greenhouse gas
emission, waste and water consumption by 5%
compared to the result of Year 2021.
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BR (&) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

BEEFB VRN E BB E M I In response to the initiative to reduce carbon emissions,
R —ZE - —F+ = AEE 7381 K-  our Suzhou factory planted 38 trees in December 2021,
FEEGLEBEEZIEINT3% - F M B AP which greatly increased the green area by 73%. We
ZLHEEEE HI0RB A - currently have planted a total of 90 trees in the factory.

HERINIHMS RAE T _F#D  For our Shenzhen factory, we have planted 292 trees
TEHE 72021 8 K e HAhBe5% LA E MBI K since 2002. More than 65% of them have grown with
EHEHEM—BEKETEDI5F - HMIEHE us for 15 years at least. Our trees not only beautify
BIARTEAIAE(LIRE  MABN I MIE  the environment, but also help us to achieve carbon
RAR A AN - TS EE R D I EHF > neutrality. We will continue to reduce our carbon footprint.

RZE-_—_F=ZA+—H8 BAEIRIHL On 11 March 2022, for factory greening and carbon
e Rtk A R/ YN THAEB TH AN neutrality, our Shenzhen factory held the Tree Planting
TERITTHEBEEY - Day with great support from the staff.
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SOCIAL
Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
Employment

We consider that employees are our valuable assets and
are committed to building an amicable and rewarding
relationship with the employees.

Our policy upholds a fair and equal treatment in areas
of recruitment and promotion, compensation and
dismissal, working hours, diversity and other benefits
and welfare. We adopt a remuneration policy which
is commensurate with job nature, qualification and
experience of employees. In addition to the provision
of annual bonuses and employee related insurance
benefits, discretionary bonuses are also rewarded
to employees based on individual performance.
Remuneration packages and policies are reviewed
periodically to ensure that compensation and benefits
are in line with the market-competitive pay level. We
arrange with some hospitals in China to ensure our
staffs can receive immediate medical services when
working outside their home countries. The Group is
committed to maintaining good corporate governance,
achieving a highest standard of integrity, probity and
accountability by enforcing Whistleblowing Policy.
Employees at all levels are expected to conduct
themselves with integrity, impartiality and honesty which
enable our stakeholders to have trust and faith in the
Group to take care of their needs and to fulfill its social
responsibility.

In the areas of recruitment and promotion,
compensation and dismissal, statutory laws and
regulations are strictly complied with. Overtime is on
voluntary basis and is compensated according to the
local laws.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Employment (continued)

We value diversity, equal opportunity and anti-
discrimination in our workforce regardless of gender,
race, age, marital status and nationality. To promote
the gender sensitivity concept in the daily work of our
staff, the Company has joined the gender focal point
network (“GFP Network”) for listed companies set up
by the Labour and Welfare Bureau and the Women’s
Commission of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government since 2016. Under the GFP
Network, our designated representatives will serve as
the contact and resource persons for communication
and collaboration on gender-related matters between
the Company and the Government with a target to
enhance our gender awareness and understanding of
gender mainstreaming.

Labour Standards

We prohibit the employment of child labour in pursuance
of the International Labor Organization Conventions,
national laws or any other applicable law or standard.
We also prohibit all kinds of forced or compulsory labour
under any conditions, including bonded, forced and/
or compulsory prison labour to work. We also follow
the highest standard regarding the social insurance
requirements for the employees’ contributions.

The Company has a strict recruitment procedure
including checking identity documents and performing
background verifications to ensure the employment
candidates are lawfully employable. No employment is
allowed before the verification process is successful
completed. It is very unlikely child and forced labour will
be hired.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Labour Standards (continued)

The Group is not aware of non-compliance of child and
forced labour-related laws and regulations (including but
not limited to: “Employment of Children Regulations”
and “Employment Ordinance”). To comply with the laws
and regulations related to child and force labour, any
employment will be terminated immediately in case of
any non-compliance case is disclosed.

Development and Training

We allocate ample resources to staff training and
development with the aim of sustaining a competent,
professional and ethical staff force that will contribute
to the success of the Group.

Our commitment to staff development is also aligned
with the expectation that authorised institutions should
engage and deploy personnel with sufficient skills,
knowledge and experience for the discharge of their
duties. There are reinforcement and refresher training
programs to ensure that employees are in possession
of the latest information and skills for carrying out
their duties with the highest standards, for examples,
leadership training, team building and supervisory skills,
safety and sales product and technical training, etc.
In addition, we also sponsor and provide time-off for
employees who take external training programs relevant
to their duties and responsibilities. We have internal
certified trainers to train relevant employees for required
technical certifications. Employees may also join
external training programs on certifications required.
We also recruit some graduates each year to take up
first level jobs and develop them to the upper levels, for
examples, technicians, buyer, planner, etc.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Health and Safety

We are committed to providing and ensuring healthy
and safe working conditions and environment free from
danger and hazards to our employees. It is our principle
that occupational safety and health of employees
should be given the first and foremost consideration at
work. We implement our safety management system
in accordance with the OHSAS 18001 standard.
Health and safety issues concerning our employees
are escalated to the EHSC for decisions and actions.
In addition, certain specific positions, such as nurse
and safety officers, are employed to ensure that the
workplace is safe and that safety device and protections
are adequate to avoid any possible injuries arising from
our work. An examination of whether the workplace
is contaminated by particles is conducted by a
government-recognised third party on an annual basis.
We also arrange relevant workers to take body check
periodically. Furthermore, we provide our employees
with regular intensive training programs to alert their
safety awareness.

To provide relief on job pressure, we organise and
encourage employees to participate the recreational
activities organised by the Group such as annual dinner,
Christmas party, birthday gathering, interest class and
outing from time to time. However, to safeguard the
health and safety of the employees during COVID-19,
certain activities were suspended in 2022.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

Environmental and Occupational Health and Safety
(“OH&S”) Policy:

1.

To protect environment and provide safe and
healthy working conditions for the prevention of
work-related injury and ill health through continuous
education.

To conserve energy & resources and prevent
pollution through elimination of hazardous
substances or wastes.

To prevent work-related injuries and ill health
through elimination of hazards and reduction of
OH&S risk.

To comply with the relevant International and
National laws and regulations on Environmental
and OH&S as well as with customer’s specific
requirements on management of hazardous
substances in product.

To review the effectiveness of the Environmental
and OH&S management system through audits to
make continuous improvements.

To encourage the consultation and participation of
employees through worker’s representatives.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group understands the importance of the supply
chain management for sustainability and committed to
establish continuous and long term relationship with the
suppliers to procure high quality materials efficiently.
We have suppliers from different regions globally.
A supplier management system is established for
selecting and qualifying suppliers to ensure the quality
of the purchased materials complies with the relevant
laws and regulations. Based on adequate qualification,
suppliers are subject to assessment and on-site audits
on product quality as well as capabilities and quality
consistency tests made by our quality department. The
Group only makes purchases from suppliers listed in
approved vendor list. A new supplier can only be added
to the approved vendor list upon detailed assessment
and approval according to the supplier management
system. The suppliers recognise the importance of our
requirements on business ethics, health and safety
environment and public responsibilities. The suppliers
need to confirm to meet the requirements and are
checked according to supplier management system
before approval. Regular review is conducted with key
suppliers on their scorecard performance. Suppliers falil
to meet the Group’s standards may result in termination
of the cooperation.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)
Product Responsibility

Bringing high quality and safe products to our
customers around the world is our main objective. Our
Policy includes:

— Achieve total customer satisfaction through total
commitment to quality;

— Operate our system to fulfill customers’
requirements, international laws and regulations as
well as management’s direction; and

— Comply with all relevant legislative requirements on
environmental occupational health and safety.

The company has established quality assurance
procedure to ensure the quality of incoming materials
and process quality, final product inspection. Product
quality and safety are ensured by defining correct
manufacturing process and process controls Regular
internal reviews are conducted to ensure the products
meet with the customer expectations. Regular product
inspections by both internal and external professional
parties also constitute an important part of the overall
safety program. Reliability tests are conducted to
evaluate product risks. Our quality systems are in
compliance with international standards like ISO 9001,
TS 16949 and ISO 13485 standards.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)
Product Responsibility (continued)

The Company is fully aware of the importance in
protecting intellectual property rights of our own
and customers’ intellectual property rights. The
Company has signed non-disclosure agreements with
the customers and suppliers and has a strict policy
to govern the rules and procedures to protect the
confidential information, personal data and intellectual
property rights of the customers and the suppliers.
The Company also applied certificates to protect the
own intellectual property rights for our products and
trademark. Our information security systems are in
compliance with international standard ISO 27001. Our
internal policies and procedures for information based
on this standard.



R HERERREE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

g (#)
wEES ()
RAS

BMATERESBRRERESTTA B2
BERMHEES BRERFLETITHY
A RE SN T M35 = S - AR Lk R A=A
R EDI R R EB ARG EEREANE
BN EISIT/A TR INA B RER AN 5 B
BEP EBEH BR BEREREKRE
EESSENRERTRBR -BERT
BEHBEREAGE RETS I REM
BESTTR -ASEERZSEBBHEEM
e —MITATA AR S EAKE
REBEFHAE-BRMAETHREERES
LSRR 2B AEFRRER TR
BERHBIBREFLHAF -HMATE
BERRAERENERS - HMREHEA
ARESNHEME - ER-_T__F&
EFIN—Mo BT ETREMNTE
SAEERESBRNITR-

AN REBRRSKFNERE  FRMA
ME LM RN —ERRE N B A
REFTABARRRBRREMEBIAELT
ReFMBERBERYBASEEEEE
WARFREMNTAETHE -

SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)
Anti-corruption

Our Anti-Corruption Policy and Code of Conduct
provide guidelines to all of our staff to meet the
high standards of integrity and honesty in their daily
operation internally and externally in order to prevent
and detect any kinds of bribery and corruption
prohibited by local laws and internal regulations.
This is also to ensure that the Group operates to the
high standards of business behaviour and ethics in
our engagement with customers, business partners,
shareholders, employees and the business community.
Employees are required to sign an undertaking not to
engage in any acts of corruption when being employed.
Business partners are notified of the Group’s Supplier
General Rules of Conduct to ensure their integrity in
the dealings with the Group. We conduct periodical
training in respect of these policies to employees and
refreshing training to employees involved in purchasing
and engineering every year. We also conduct regular
seminars on integrity every year. We have provided
reading materials relating to anti-corruption to form part
of the Directors’ training during 2022. We have zero
tolerance towards non-compliance of the Group’s Anti-
Corruption Policy.

In addition, in order to achieve the highest standards of
openness, probity and accountability, we have adopted
the Whistleblowing Policy to encourage disclosure of
any misconduct or irregularities to the Company in a
confidential way. All reported cases are handled with
care by the Group and are investigated in a fair and
proper manner.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Community Investment

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wong’s
Electronics Company Limited, were awarded the Caring
Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the eleventh consecutive year. These serve
as recognition of the Group’s active participation in
community activities and good corporate citizenship.

The Group also participated in various events organised
by voluntary organizations to support and enhance
family functioning, and endeavor to contribute to
the building of a humane and caring society in Hong
Kong. We support fund raising for providing immediate
assistance to those suffered from misfortunes and to
promote environmental protection in community.

Over the years, we have been taking an active role
in various volunteering works, charity events and
education donation with an aim to create shared value
and support the people in need. Besides engaging
our employees to participate in those community and
charity events, we encourage them to bring along their
family members.

In 2022, the direction of our community services
was focused on the elderly and those in need and
supporting the public with epidemic prevention materials
in order to minimise the risk of exposure to coronavirus.
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e (&) SOCIAL (continued)
HERE (E) Community Investment (continued)

R-ZZE-_—_F—A_+HHBH &AAAIMAZE On 25 January 2022, the Company donated blankets
FEITRREZLEELTER M BEER  to SAGE Mrs. Wong Yee Jar Jat Memorial Home & Yan
TERTITRREEEOB#EEHRLEEE Chai Hospital Wong Wha San Wong Yee Jar Jat Day
BESPRHFFE- Care Centre for the Elderly to celebrate Chinese New

Year.

RZZE-_—_FNAA+—HBH AEBMEZERE On 11 September 2022, our Group donated mooncakes
CTHRREBELEELTERBE AS B2 to SAGE Mrs. Wong Yee Jar Jat Memorial Home for the
D=6 B E’]E’f” ° Elderly to share the festive joy with them.
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i __Eﬂ'ﬂ +A\B - AEBEZ2I On 28 October 2022, our Group joined “Dress Casual
TIEBE R T -__FFkHE]HE Day 2022, the Community Chest of Hong Kong” for a
TOEE o donation.

RZZE-_—_F+—A+HhAB - AEEZ2/M On 19 November 2022, our Group participated in “Yan

TICE x ISCMEZ1T] (HE&EACE Chai x ISCM Charity Walk” which aims at raising funds

BERENCEREERRBEES SN ° for Yan Chai Child Development Services of Yan Chai
Hospital.
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HRENIEE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
a) RIE a) Environmental
HERE Quantitative disclosure
BRENER ZBRICE —B--F
Key Performance
Indicators 2022 2021

BRENRD (A7) Air emissions (kgs)

-Ralt - NOx Al.1 1,617.82 1,985.80

-Hal - S0x Al 1.05 1.39

—BHY - PM A11 115.63 139.86
RERBHR () Greenhouse gas emission (tons) A1.2 17,789 17,933
BURENMBERESEN Greenhouse gas emission per revenue A1.2 5.23 5.62
(REBREETkamn ) (tons per revenue HKS million)

BEEEY(H) Hazardous waste (tons) A13 113 101

BlEBANNBEERY Hazardous waste per revenue A13 0.03 0.03
(REREEETMERNELEY) (tons per revenue HKS million)

BEEEN () Non-hazardous waste (tons) At4 965 976

FUREUNEZEEY Non-hazardous waste per revenue Al.4 0.28 0.31
(REREEETMENELEY) (tons per revenue HKS million)

EREE-RBE(TRK) Energy consumption - Electricity (kwh) A2.1 29,756,646 31,030,526
BRBBUMNEREE-HEE Energy consumption per revenue - Electricity A2.1 8,740 9,719
(REALEETRENESETRE) (kwh per revenue HK$'million)

ke () Water consumption (tons) A2.2 290,772 274,538

BREBNMELE Water consumption per revenue A2.2 85.41 85.99
(REABAETRANFEKERY) (tons per revenue HKS million)

BEMBERE () Packing material use (tons) A25 1,579 1,262

BURENNBRMEERE Packing material use per revenue A2.5 0.46 0.40

(REERBEThENERER)

(tons per revenue HKS'million)

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 69



70

R HLERERRESE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ﬁh AR )\\& j:H $7F ( = )

}%R (mﬁ)

—REE

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)
a) Environmental (continued)
General disclosure
BREXN 11

Key Performance
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Description of emissions target set and steps A1.5

taken to achieve them

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous A16
wastes are handled, and a description of
reduction target set and steps taken to achieve
them

Description of energy use efficiency target set and A2.3

steps taken to achieve them

Description of whether there is any issue in A2.4
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target set and steps taken to achieve
them

Description of the significant impacts of activities A3
on the environment and natural resources and
the actions taken to manage them

Description of the significant climate-related AdA

issues which have impacted, and those which

may impact, the Company, and the actions

taken to manage them

Notes:

evaluate the above performance.

HRRENER,/BE
Emissions and Energy
Conservation/Targets

EENER/BE

Waste Management/Targets

HRREHER/ B
Emissions and Energy
Conservation/Targets

Ak/ B

Water Consumption/Targets

B2
Targets

ARE
Climate Change

Revenue of Electronic Manufacturing Service division is used to

Only emissions data of NOx, SOx and PM from vehicles is

calculated. Towngas and LPG is not applicable.

(3)  The GHG emissions calculation is based on electricity consumption.
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BASRAE MIEE () KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)
b) ##& b) Social

—REE General disclosure
BREN B
Key Performance Section
BEABERENIRRETHEAZREAN  Disclosure of policies and compliance of relevant B1 R
e laws and regulations relating to employment Employment
BEABREELT2MIRLETRBEEZR  Disclosure of policies and compliance of relevant B2 BEaZ?
RIKER laws and regulations relating to health and Health and Safety

safety

R ANBEREEL2EE JARIEE  Description of occupational health and safety B2.3 fEEaz?
BORERAE measures adopted, and how they are Health and Safety

implemented and monitored

BEABRAEIBIIERENME R  Disclosure of policies on improving employees’ B3 BRRE
MER R EE knowledge and skills for discharging duties Development and Training

at work and description of training activities

BEAEMEEIREFSIMEERETA  Disclosure of policies and compliance of relevant B4 STER
BEaRANNER laws and regulations relating to preventing child Labour Standards

and forced labour

HilmTRRENNERNERET R Description of measures to review employment B4.1 BTER
4T practices to avoid child and forced labour Labour Standards
B EERERERREREBBRFMA  Description of steps taken to eliminate such B4.2 AT
g practices when discovered Labour Standards
BREEHEEEEENRE L ARIE Disclosure of policies on managing environmental B5 HIEEERE
and social risks of supply chain Supply Chain Management

Rl EESPIEEEGERDORERMLERE  Description of practices used to identify B5.3 HERSE
BEVEH UREBRTRERAE environmental and social risks along the Supply Chain Management

supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored
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BARENER (H)

b)

e (&)

—REE ()

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)

b) Social (continued)

General disclosure (continued)

BREN B
Key Performance Section
ROEREREARRFZBRREARRE  Description of practices used to promote B5.4 e
MEDN ULABRTREE % environmentally preferable products and Supply Chain Management
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored
BEAEMREERANREORREEZEZ - E  Disclosure of policies and compliance with B6 EmEE
S EHENBEENRBHTANHEER  relevant laws and regulations relating to health Product Responsibility
BTRBAERRANER and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress
RlBgEERRENZEREENED Description of practices relating to observing and B6.3 EmEE
protecting intellectual property rights Product Responsibility
RlEBEERRERABIR URABEH  Description of consumer data protection and B6.5 ERERF
TRREERE privacy policies, and how they are implemented Product Responsibility
and monitored
BEEEDILEE 9% JEEREREMICE  Disclosure of policies and compliance of relevant B7 REF
RETREZZRANNOER laws and regulations relating to bribery, Anti-corruption
extortion, fraud and money laundering
R EEEREHER U RIABNTRRE  Description of preventive measures and B7.2 k&S
EERE whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are Anti-corruption
implemented and monitored
RiamESREIRENREFE Description of anti-corruption training provided to B7.3 RE)S
directors and staff Anti-corruption
BELEZERR Disclosure of policies on community engagement B8 HEERE

LIENER (NIHE RASE 8180
BE Xt 8F)

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

Community Investment

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, BS.1 HERE
environmental concerns, labour needs, heath, Community Investment

culture, sport)



BARENER (F)

b)
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)

b) Social (continued)

HERE Quantitative disclosure
=4 Employment
R EBMR AEEH*E 8 13,051 At the end of the reporting period, the Group
A BITHRERE T RAXFEE had a total workforce of 3,051 employees. The
N breakdown of the total workforce and employee
turnover rates are as follows:
R ENIEEBT.A KPI B1.1
BIZE
Number of Employees
—EC-CF —E-—F
RUEBBINETAY Total workforce by gender 2022 2021
E Male 1,416 1,721
X Female 1,635 1,750
BIgE
Number of Employees
—EBC-_E T —F
EEBEAEINETIHY Total workforce by employment type 2022 2021
T Full time 2,439 2,461
B HEE Part time/Temporary 612 1,010
BIHE
Number of Employees
—E-= —E-—%F
EHBEINETIHAE Total workforce by geographical region 2022 2021
BE Hong Kong 88 90
B A Mainland China 2,745 3,316
pisgN Overseas 218 65
BIEE
Number of Employees
—E-C B
RERARNEINETIHRY Total workforce by age group 2022 2021
305 A T Below 30 827 1,216
3057 2505% 30 -50 2,089 2,122
508 A £ Above 50 135 133
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EEAENIEE (&) KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)
b) #H& (&) b) Social (continued)
HEWRE (&) Quantitative disclosure (continued)
EiE (&) Employment (continued)
BERENEEB.2 KPI B1.2
Bl
Percentage
—E-Cf —E-—F
BURBANE I RAE Employees turnover rate by gender* 2022 2021
3 Male 59.8% 69.8%
7 Female 31.5% 52.3%
BAOL
Percentage
—EC-CE —E-—fF
RERMABEINEIRKLE* Employees turnover rate by age group* 2022 2021
30 AT Below 30 86.1% 86.9%
30 ZE50 % 30-50 33.6% 48.7%
50 M L Above 50 14.1% 20.1%
BAOL
Percentage
—EC-CE —E-—F
BRUHBRESMEIRAR Employees turnover rate by geographical region* 2022 2021
e Hong Kong 26.1% 23.3%
B A Mainland China 47.1% 62.2%
=g Overseas 18.8% 70.8%
* EBAEEBEITI (EPBEEBRENTA - EBFR * Full time employees only (included staff and worker, but
BEEYBREL) RABREOREER excluded part time/temporary employees). Turnover includes
SR RA R EEERR - voluntary resignation or retirement and termination.
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BASRAE MIEE () KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)

b) #H& (&) b) Social (continued)
HERE (&) Quantitative disclosure (continued)
fEREZ P Health and Safety
B R EMIEEB2.1KB2.2 KPI B2.1 and B2.2
RBEBRRN AEEREREMEKR During the reporting period, the Group was not
BREERE T 2 EBARERME AR aware of any material non-compliance with health
SEEAEARENBERA - RBE= and safety-related laws and regulations that would
F(BEREFE) HEBEHET have a significant impact on the Group. There was
TEBB® T EMH i RS H no work-related fatalities occurred in each of the
ANEIEmBANHEER47TH - past three years including the reporting year. In

addition, there were 47 days of lost day due to
work injury during the reporting period.
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BRENIEE (&) KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(continued)
b) #H& (&) b) Social (continued)
HERE (&)

Quantitative disclosure (continued)

TR L IE

Development and Training

REEHAN ANEEB TERE KIS The statistic figures of employee development and

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

SR 8BTS - training during the reporting period for the Group
were as follows:

AR ENIEEB3.1K%B3.2 KPI B3.1 and B3.2

—E-CZE —E-—F
BUBIEINTIETIASE  The percentage of employees trained by gender 2022 2021
3 Male 98.0% 89.7%
7 Female 97.1% 92.2%
BEERERES N The percentage of employees trained by —E-C —ZE-—f
ZIEIE employee category 2022 2021
BRI L Assistant Manager and above 87.9% 92.8%
BERTE Staff and supervisor 92.7% 91.3%
A Worker 99.6% 90.7%

NE
Hours
BUERE TS The average training hours completed per —E-C —E-F
ERZIEY employee by gender 2022 2021
3 Male 24.4 25.4
x Female 23.8 326
INEF
Hours

BEEREREL N The average training hours completed per —E-C —E-—f
THERZIEE employee by employee category 2022 2021
Bl A b Assistant Manager and above 13.6 10.6
BERTE Staff and supervisor 19.2 1.8
TA Worker 26.0 34.6
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BARENER (F)

b)

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)

#He (&) b) Social (continued)
HERE (&) Quantitative disclosure (continued)
25 T 48| Labour Standards
BERENMIEEB4.1KB4.2 KPI B4.1 and B4.2
REBEHAN AEBARBERERER During the reporting period, the Group has
BETRRHISLTHEBEERER (B not identified material non-compliance of child
BARRCERZZRMN) & (ERFE and forced labour-related laws and regulations
1&B) ) BIE MR (including but not limited to Employment of
Children Regulations and Employment Ordinance).
e IE Supply Chain Management
R EBA - AN B ¥ B6450H 1 e During the reporting period, there were 645
B RmEMAS T suppliers, the breakdown by region was as follows:
B8 & W IE1EB5.1 KPI B5.1
—E-CE —E-—F
BERBRESNHERHE Number of suppliers by geographical region 2022 2021
e Hong Kong 192 169
A it Mainland 276 204
L EM North America 28 23
BUN Europe 23 35
TN E MR Rest of Asia 126 62
By
Total: 645 493
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BARENER (H)

b)

e (&)

HEHE (H)

[
o
il
[aA

B8 & N5 1ZEB6.1%B6.2

RmERA AEERERRATML
MERMEBEEAREIRNEMF -BEL
MERLTERRERAMEALENE
EFEHEEM-

kRES

AR ENIEEBT.A

RBEBHA XREETTANBR Y

AR HEEINOCELEESHA

Egue

HEREE

B8R E M5 EBS8.2

RMEBFA AEEBBL2ELRE
& HIBRA B 216,000 B
MEFAATHREN R TELR

ER/FHZBERALR—EAS
RHMARREHABEDNHESIAY-

E& —E-_=F=A=-+mWMH

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

KEY PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS

(continued)

b)

Social (continued)

Quantitative disclosure (continued)
Product Responsibility

KPI B6.1 and B6.2

During the reporting period, there was no incident
of non-compliance with laws and regulations
identified and was aware by the Group. No product
sold or shipped was subjected to recall for safety
and health reasons.

Anti-corruption
KPI B7.1

The Group was not aware of any concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the Company or its employees during the reporting
period.

Community Investment
KPI B8.2

During the reporting period, the Group donated a
total of approximately HK$216,000 by participating
in community activities, including making charitable
donations to “Shenzhen Baoan Charity Federation”
for poverty alleviation of Hozciz, Guangxi and
contribution to a fund for humanitarian assistance
to people in Ukraine.

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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ARABHAHBERGFHEEERT R LE
F-ETHEERERRINZESERZ
S5 ARZRAREENAMMERE K
28R RZEAZNMEEE-

EERA HE-_E-_—_F+=-_A=+—H
FFERN ARABEEBTESBHAERZFT
ERAE ([BRA])ESHLEMHRA(TE
MARA DK+ NE —HoHECES
ASFRI(TEERSFA) 2 sFRMEX  fE
IATREBRON: (@) F & RATIRABE 2 B [F
— AR EHATAEXC21KBER:
ROARRBEAENBBEHRETEZLTAES
B EESTEEXD. 2.6 ER HIE
DRRAREEEFRETERET ] RTR
SERERANEPEE | SRR -

TEC_HFHEAEEEAREELR B
BRFBEETEEE AT ZFAME (£
METEZERIIN) EFLERIAQF
TEEREARTEHEEBRATIEREAR
WoFBERAREERNEE -

The Company is committed to the establishment of
good corporate governance practices and procedures.
The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, effective risk management
and internal control, transparency and accountability to
all shareholders.

In the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company has complied with the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Part 2 of Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), except that (a) the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are occupied by
the same person, which deviates from code provision
C.2.1; and (b) the existing Whistleblowing Policy of
the Company does not accept anonymous reporting,
which deviates from code provision D.2.6. Details
are explained in this Report under the paragraphs
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” and “Risk
Management and Internal Control”, respectively.

During the year of 2022 and up to the date of this
Report, the Board had reviewed and, where appropriate,
made necessary changes to the corporate governance
practices of the Company in order to ensure continued
compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code
(other than certain deviations mentioned above). Details
are disclosed in this Report.
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EECZREERS
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry to all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE

The Board has a schedule of matters reserved for
its approval. Pursuant to the schedule, the Board
is ultimately responsible for the development and
implementation of the Group’s corporate governance
practices, sustainable performance of the Company,
consistent achievement of business plans and
compliance with statutory as well as corporate
obligations. Matters which may be discussed in Board
meetings include the formulation of the Group’s
strategies and policies; approval of significant business,
management and financial matters, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital commitments; approval of matters
relating to the Company’s constitution and share capital,
and change of board members and auditors; delegation
of powers by establishment of board committees;
review of corporate governance and the maintenance
of appropriate risk management and internal control
systems.

The Company has established an Administrative
Committee which has all the general powers delegated
by the Board to deal with administration and daily
operation of the Company save as those matters set
out in the schedule of matters reserved to the Board
mentioned above. The Administrative Committee
currently comprises five Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Chairman of the Administrative
Committee), Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, Dr. Chan Tsze
Wah, Gabriel, Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund and Mr.
Chan Wai Ming, Hermes.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

The Administrative Committee also delegates
specific tasks to the management, which includes
the preparation of accounts; implementation of
strategies and policies approved by the Board; day-
to-day monitoring of budgets; implementation of
specific business and work projects; implementation of
corporate governance, risk management and internal
control procedures and other compliance matters.
Management presents reports to the Administrative
Committee (and other delegated Board Committee) for
its review and guidance whenever necessary.

The vision, mission and core values of the Company
have been set out. The Board, assisted by senior
and middle management, is responsible to develop
and promote a desired company culture in alignment
therewith throughout all levels of the Company.

In order to ensure equal, timely, effective, accurate
and proper disclosure of inside information under
the requirements of Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Company
has identified a team of officers and executives with
knowledge and expertise to assist the Board for
assessing the nature and materiality of potential inside
information and determining whether public disclosure
is required subject to Board approval. The procedures
and documentation in this relation are under review of
the Company’s Internal Compliance Control Department.
Continuous training shall be provided to officers and
relevant employees (who are likely to be in possession
of inside information) for handling and reporting
potential inside information. Also, to minimize the risk of
unauthorized or inconsistent disclosure, only designated
persons are authorized to discuss the Company’s
corporate matters with investors, analysts, the media
and other members of the public.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

To ensure independent views and input are available to
the Board, various mechanisms have been established
by the Company. Such mechanisms include (i) adoption
of a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for nomination and appointment of Board members
to ensure that the power to nominate and appoint is
rested on the Nomination Committee and the Board
as a whole; (i) a balanced composition of Executive
and Independent Non-executive Directors fulfilling
the independence criteria under the Listing Rules; (iii)
emphasis on board diversity as an important driver to
enable objective decisions to be made; (iv) promote
a culture of openness during discussion at board
meetings; (v) establishment of Board Committees to
specialize in clearly-defined functions delegated by
the Board whenever necessary, and (vi) the Board and
its Committees may access to other channels where
independent views and input are available (e.g. external
independent professional advice) at the Company’s
expense in order to assist the performance of their
duties.

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors
and four Independent Non-executive Directors.
The biographical details of the Directors (including
relationships among the members of the Board) are set
out on pages 21 to 25 of this Annual Report.

The Board held four regular Board meetings in 2022
at approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the
overall strategy, operation, financial performance,
dividend payments, risk management and internal
control systems, Directors’ remuneration and corporate
governance practices.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance of the Directors at the four regular
Board meetings and the 2022 annual general meeting
of the Company was as follows:

EZEeRLRER
Attendance at
Board meetings

BRAGHER
Attendance at
general meeting

HTES Executive Directors

TRHEE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben 4/4 1/1
(FERTBAEZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

TEHaL Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 4/4 11

BrEE+L Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 4/4 1/1

ek B4 A Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 4/4 1/1

BRERLAE Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes 4/4 11

BUKHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

FRERBL Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 4/4 111

BRABL Dr. Yu Sun Say 4/4 1/1

EXEEE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 4/4 11

REBEE Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 3/4 11

(RZFZZF+—HZFTNHEE)  (resigned on 29 November 2022)
BEERE Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley 0/0 0/0

(RZFZZF+—H=ZFNHEZF) (appointed on 29 November 2022)

RBBTEESLEN EFQEREHME
FIRERUNEZERE THwmoEE-FTAE

TeREIAERET RESTER
BREZFBEBHAFAETRSE 2L ET
R-BEEEAETAEIUERESBEREE

HRBRZTAFL -FIEEZTEKREA

AARWESKERNERRE -HEH
Z-EFENARIISREXER BEHA
ARBZAT e

Before holding of a Board meeting, the Board is
supplied with all necessary information to enable it
to consider the matters to be discussed. A formal
agenda is followed in all Board meetings. All business
transacted at the Board meetings is documented in the
minutes of such meeting. Some Board decisions are
made by way of written resolutions of all Directors. All
Board members have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. If necessary, Directors also
have access to external professional advice at the
expense of the Company.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 83



TEERREE

Corporate Governance Report

= DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

AABEBEEELEFEFTEIERE - Al Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous

NWEBERTEFHESIEA LT AAREEZA professional development to develop and refresh their

BRERE - ARBTRHRESENALHERE  knowledge and skills as Directors of a listed company.

MBS RERBEEME - The Company introduces and recommends relevant
training courses and reading materials to the Directors
from time to time.

BuUESEHERARRRHEAR =T == Each of the Directors has provided to the Company a
NESEIN sk B@EN 2T record of training received during the year of 2022. The
means of such training are as follows:

EIER Means of Training
BTES Executive Directors

TREEE EME  Mr Wong Chung Mat, Ben reading material

(FEFTHEH) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
TEHLT FIEH A Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada reading material
RFEET FIEHH  Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel reading material
BkIBEE M E  Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund reading material
REREE B /BEME,/ M. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes e-training/reading material/
‘Mg webinar

BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
FRRET Ee /HEME,/  Dr. L Ka Cheung, Eric forum/reading material/
EiIRE/BEEN training course/video reading/
‘Mg webinar
BREET BIEMH/EHEHIE  Dr YuSun Say reading material/webinar
EXERE BIENH/@EHIE My Affred Donald Yap reading material/webinar
REBEE B EEI/BENE,/ Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David e-training/reading material/
(RZFE-ZF+—F=+NREH) BHEe  (resigned on 29 November 2022) webinar
BRERE BEEI/FEEN,/ Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley e-training/induction training/
(R-F-—F4—-H=FNHEZFF) MEVE  (appointed on 29 November 2022) reading material
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Group’s Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and has occupied these
two positions since February 2003. In allowing the
two positions to be occupied by the same person, the
Company has considered the following:

(@) Both positions require in-depth knowledge
and considerable experience of the Group’s
business. Candidates with the suitable knowledge,
experience and leadership are difficult to find
both within and outside the Group. If either
of the positions is occupied by an unqualified
person, the Group’s performance could be gravely
compromised.

(b) The Company believes that the supervision of the
Board and its Independent Non-executive Directors
can provide an effective check and balance
mechanism and ensures that the interests of the
shareholders are adequately represented.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company is satisfied that its Independent Non-
executive Directors comprise a good mix of industrial,
financial, legal and information technology expertise
to advise the Board and the management team on
strategy formulation and other financial or regulatory
requirements. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing
Rules, each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
has provided an annual confirmation of independence
to the Company. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors as independent.

The existing Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company are not appointed for a specific term but
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election no later
than the third annual general meeting after they were
last elected or re-elected under Bye-law 112 of the
Bye-laws of the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee which comprises two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Yu Sun Say (Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Alfred Donald
Yap, and one Executive Director, namely Dr. Chan Tsze
Wah, Gabriel.

Pursuant to the CG Code, an advisory model has been
adopted by the Remuneration Committee under which
the Remuneration Committee shall perform an advisory
role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final
authority to approve Executive Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration. The principal responsibilities
of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on the Company’s policy and structure
for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration,
reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives, and making recommendations on the
remuneration of Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
paid to the Directors and senior management; approved
the proposal of the 2023 remuneration packages of
individual Directors for recommendation to the Board;
and considered the remuneration payable to a newly
appointed Director during the year.

TMZEEeRN T -_—_FEHET— KT The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in
HoTMEESZTENZAEeZ 2HEFEXR 2022. The attendance of the Remuneration Committee
(I members at this meeting was as follows:
R

Attendance
BIUKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
HERmELE (LE) Dr. Yu Sun Say (Chairman) 1/1
ERERAE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 1/1
HITES Executive Director
BRFEEE LT Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 1/1

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Company’s Directors’ Remuneration Policy is to
establish and maintain an appropriate and competitive
level of remuneration to attract, retain and motivate
Directors to run the Group successfully. In determining
the remuneration packages of Executive Directors,
reference should be made to their duties and
responsibilities with the Company, market benchmark
as well as individual and business performance. The
remuneration of Non-executive Directors should reflect
their duties and responsibilities, anticipated time and
effort required and their commitment to the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

On 29 December 2021, the Company established a
Nomination Committee which currently comprises the
Chairman of the Board, Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Alfred
Donald Yap and Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board; making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board; assessing the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors; and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 87



88

TEER
Corporate Governance Report

]:E%;E (#)

BE-Z-—F+-A=+—ALFE

REZESGCHHBUNFRTEZTNEY
I EERIRELE ##MT%%Z{%?

&FHX?%&EﬁALE BREESERES
FROEZ-

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Nomination Committee assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors and considered
making recommendation to the Board on the nomination
of a candidate as an Independent Non-executive
Director and re-election of retiring Directors at the
annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in 2022.
The attendance of the Nomination Committee members
at these meetings was as follows:

=
Attendance
HBTESE Executive Director
TR E (FHE) Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Chairman) 2/2
BIYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
BEREBEEE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2
SR A Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 1/2
(RZFZZFf+—A=F+AHEIL) (ceased on 29 November 2022)
BEEEE Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley 0/0

(R=F——F+—H-FNAEZE)

(appointed on 29 November 2022)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Company’s Nomination Policy (formerly known as
“Policy and Procedure for Nomination of Directors”) is
to serve as a guideline in order to ensure that there
is a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
nomination of Directors with suitable experience and
capabilities to maintain and improve the competitiveness
of the Company. According to the Policy, where a
need is identified and arises for a new Director or
replacement Director, a list of potential candidates
should be complied based on recommendations or
referrals from existing Board members, management
team, other individuals who know the candidates and,
if it deems appropriate, a professional search firm. The
Nomination Committee shall conduct an initial evaluation
of the potential candidates based on the character,
integrity, commitment, knowledge and ability, diversity
of perspectives (with reference to the Board Diversity
Policy of the Company), accomplishment in his/her own
field, professional or personal reputation, particular
experience or expertise relevant to the current needs of
the Board, and in case of a new Independent Director
candidate, whether he/she would be considered as
independent. The Nomination Committee shall then
select and recommend one or more candidates for
interview. Lastly, the best available candidate shall
be recommended for consideration by the Board as
a whole. For determining whether a retiring Director
is eligible for re-election at a general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall consider the
contribution of such retiring Director and other relevant
criteria set out above; and then make recommendation
to the Board for consideration.
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DIVERSITY

The Company recognizes the benefits of having a
diverse Board and believes that a balanced Board
composition will contribute towards the performance
of the Board and success of the Company. In view of
this, a Board Diversity Policy has been adopted by the
Board. Such Policy should be read in conjunction with
the Nomination Policy mentioned above.

The Board Diversity Policy provides that, in designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity shall be
considered from a number of aspects in supporting the
attainment of the strategic objectives and sustainable
development of the Company. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The Board will also
take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the prospective
candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that considerable diversity
perspectives exist in the existing Board of the Company,
including gender, age, educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
target to avoid a single gender Board has been met. The
Board is now made up of individual Directors who each
bring with them unique knowledge and experience in
the industrial, financial, legal and information technology
sectors. The Company shall continue to maintain its
Board diversity and, when there is any vacancy to fill,
to promote the specific objective of gender and age
diversity without compromising the quality of the Board.

The Company is dedicated to develop gender equality
as a part of the organization culture across different
divisions of the entire Group. As at 31 December
2022, the workforce (including senior management) of
the Group was composed of 46.4% male and 53.6%
female.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

A Terms of Reference has been adopted for the purpose
of setting out the corporate governance duties to be
performed by the Board, including (but not limited to)
development of the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations
on changes and updating; review of the training and
continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management; and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this Report, the Board has reviewed the policies
and practices on corporate governance of the Company
to align the recent amendments to the CG Code under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules where appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
(continued)

RAFERITZINRNEEEESET > MAX  Amongst the four Board meetings held during the year,

HMEELAREEEHB - EENZMA  two were related to matters concerning corporate

EEYQRIHEERNT governance functions. The attendance of the Directors
at these two Board meetings was as follows:

HE=E
Attendance
HITES Executive Directors
FARKEE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben 2/2
(FEFETHAAZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
FEHZLT Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 2/2
BRF 1+ Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 2/2
AE oK B % A& Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 2/2
[R {2 BA 5T £ Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes 2/2
BYKEITES Independent Non-executive Directors
E Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 2/2
HERIE L Dr. Yu Sun Say 2/2
ERESLE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2
SR A Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 1/2
(RZFZZFA+—AZFHFF) (resigned on 29 November 2022)
BEERE Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley 0/0

(R -—FE——Ff+—HA -+ NLHEZ(T)

(appointed on 29 November 2022)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

INTERNAL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviewing their
effectiveness through the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit Committee, respectively.

The Board has established a comprehensive risk
management system based on identification, analysis,
evaluation and management of risks on an ongoing
basis. Each department under the Group is required
to own and manage its own risks. A number of
management committees reporting to the Risk
Management Committee have been established to
monitor different aspects of risk management for the
Group. Such work serves to provide an independent
checking of the effectiveness of the risk management
system of individual departments. The independent
Internal Compliance Control Department (“ICC”) of the
Company is delegated with the internal audit function
to conduct regular internal reviews and testings of
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems covering financial, operational, compliance,
risk assessment and risk response implementation
controls. The respective management teams and
committees which comprise relevant executives of
the Group meet regularly to review the findings and
opinions of internal audits conducted by the ICC and
make relevant recommendations. The executives from
the management teams and committees also ensure
the control weaknesses are effectively communicated
to the relevant departments and monitor the follow-up
actions in response to their recommendations. The ICC
regularly reports its major findings and advice to the
Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee
and assists them to evaluate the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
respectively. The Risk Management Committee and the
Audit Committee report back to the Board for forming
its own view on an annual basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL (continued)

INTERNAL

The Audit Committee annually reviews the adequacy of
resources and qualifications, experience and training of
the staff responsible for accounting, financial reporting
and internal audit functions to ensure that ongoing
control process are in place and functioning effectively.

The purpose of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational system in order to achieve the
Group’s objectives. For the year of 2022 under review,
the Board, through the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit Committee, has reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, respectively
and considered them effective and adequate.

The Company is committed to achieving and
maintaining the highest standards of openness, probity
and accountability. Complementary with the Anti-
Corruption Policy of the Company, the Whistleblowing
Policy has been adopted to govern and deal with fairly
and properly concerns raised by our employees and
business partners about any suspected misconduct
or malpractice regarding financial reporting, internal
controls or other matters related to the Group. The
existing Whistleblowing Policy of the Company does
not accept anonymous reporting because the Company
believes it will be difficult to follow up and obtain
information for an effective investigation. Also, based
on experience in the Company’s factories, the Company
would expect an abundance of anonymous reporting
if anonymous reporting was to be accepted and this
would unduly burden the Company’s management
resources. Nevertheless, the Company will make every
effort to treat all reporting in a strictly confidential
manner. All communications between the investigator
and the whistleblowers are strictly protected to ensure
that no reprisal or blame would be directed against the
whistleblowers. The identity of the whistleblower will
not be disclosed without his/her consent, unless the
Company is legally obliged to reveal the whistleblower’s
identity and other information to any government
authorities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee comprises three
Executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada
(Chairperson of the Risk Management Committee),
Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel and Mr. Hung Wing Shun,
Edmund.

The principal duties of the Risk Management Committee
include the oversight of the Group’s overall risk
management framework; approval of risk policies
and tolerances and reviewing the breaches thereof;
review and assessment of the effectiveness of the risk
management systems; and advising the Board on risk-
related issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Risk
Management Committee overseen the risk management
framework; assessed materiality of risks; monitored
and updated the Group’s risk policies; discussed risk

% uT}_L BMEERERBRETEBER L EM- reports on key risks; and reviewed the effectiveness and
adequacy of the risk management system.
}_W EEZEEN_T-__FEHEITTX The Risk Management Committee held ten meetings
2&-RAR %? BLZESZEN%ESH in 2022. The attendance of the Risk Management
HEERMT Committee members at these meetings was as follows:
=
Attendance
BITESE Executive Directors
Bt (EE) Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada (Chairperson) 10/10
BRFEE L+ Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 10/10
A& i JIB 4 A Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 10/10
B 3 - Note:

AEERBTRAETAHFELAZABRERZES

P
= % °

Relevant executives of the Group also attended the Risk Management
Committee meetings above.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Dr. Yu Sun Say and
Mr. Alfred Donald Yap.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include
the oversight of the Group’s financial reporting and
internal control systems; review of the Group’s financial
information; and review of the relationship with the
external auditor of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit
Committee reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group; discussed the auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including
review of the 2021 final results and 2022 interim
results of the Group; reviewed the external auditor’s
engagement letter; recommended the re-appointment
of the external auditor; and reviewed the accounting,
financial reporting and internal audit functions and their
staffs.

The Audit Committee held two meetings in 2022
and met separately with the external auditors. The
attendance of the Audit Committee members at these
two meetings was as follows:

=
Attendance

BUKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
PREEL (FH) Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (Chairman) 2/2
BRAE L Dr. Yu Sun Say 2/2
EXRERAE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION AND AUDITOR
RELATED MATTERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
remuneration paid or payable to the external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

WEE (BT
Amount (HK$)

ZER® Audit services 38,075,581

HEZE R Non-audit services
—BABNEBEHA — Hong Kong profits tax compliance 169,800
—HRTEENEHA — transfer pricing tax consultation 240,000
3,485,381

EERRBOHMBRRZ2EE

EHREZEERZEMEREAEBRLE MR
RZERFHEHRAARFHRFI104Z111E 2
REEE GIE AR

RERE

RRERREDLEN ERRAE L
BRERBINEE YUENRESR
RE-

AN BRZEUNTIEFRE ZFEFR
HRARRZARAR — AN \—FBER
ZERBLERBRIEZRB -

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”
on pages 104 to 111 of this Annual Report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interest and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue.

In addition, shareholders are protected by the following
procedures as governed by the Company’s Bye-laws,
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable
legislation and regulation.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM”)

1.

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10) of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition sent
to the Company’s registered office at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda and its principal office at 17/F, C-Bons
International Center, No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Company Secretary of the Company, to require
a SGM to be called by the Board of Directors for
the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of
the general meeting, signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more of those
shareholders.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary
will ask the Board of Directors to convene a SGM
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid, the shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM
will not be convened as requested.



BEEz ()
BRREBMABRRFRRE ([REFB K

g2l WERr (&)
4. AMEREBCKRRBFLBHMAHREEH

BERABRRNBEREN ARG LiRhER
ZHR HEBEEEmE  FHeh:

() MEBBERAQABZERI*RE
H(BRRAEE ERRAEEER 2 AR
XEBITIN TEBFUEE)
AlEZL BEE - +—2NERB
RALDRTA0)ETELEERZ
EmMBEAM: R

(i) HMEEBRARRZEBRE
EOHAZRLEHTEOA4)EE
HEFTDRT(10)ETEEEH
ZEHBA -

BRERARRASRHEERE (BREMAZ
BESRN) NERF

ARRABFRT-RXRRBFAE
(MRFRBEFARE]) WA R E R
TRARRFIAG ZERAE -

BREOHNVEEAREAE LEEC22E
RERBEREES DR =+ 2—(1/20)
Z B (i) R100B R R - AT IR
RERNBRRBFRE EFMEBHERESR
CEAER IR BFERRAE L
ERFTE) R BRI EIE AT R IR
2 EBR R EBIB1,000F 2 B i o

TEERREE

Corporate Governance Report

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM”) (continued)

4.

The notice period to be given to all the registered
shareholders for consideration of the proposal
raised by the shareholder(s) concerned at a SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as
follows:

(i) at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not
less than ten (10) clear business days’ notice
in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company, which cannot
be amended other than to a mere clerical
amendment to correct a patent error; and

(i) at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less
than ten (10) clear business days’ notice in
writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to make proposals
at general meeting other than a proposal of a
person for election as director

1.

The Company holds an annual general meeting
(“AGM”) every year, and may hold a general
meeting known as a special general meeting
whenever necessary.

Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not
less than one-twentieth (1/20) of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (i) not less than 100
shareholders, can submit a written request stating
the resolution intended to be moved at the AGM,;
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to make proposals
at general meeting other than a proposal of a

100

person for election as director (continued)

EMEK MRBHERBIEEZE 3. The written request/statements must be signed by
W RBF R ERITHA LR IS(6) the shareholder(s) concern and deposited at the
EH(WEXEHIABRBA) IR Company’s registered office at Clarendon House,
BRERGRITAI—(NEHR (HAEM 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and
HMER)ZAREARARABEIMPEEE its principal office at 17/F, C-Bons International
(#b 4k & Clarendon House, 2 Church Center, No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda) Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
MEBRER (MUt ABEBNLEEE Company Secretary of the Company, not less than
FEEHIOSRHAERHBKE KNEI7TE) - I six (6) weeks before the AGM in the case of a
HRWRHEABARB Z A NG WE- requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than one (1) week before the general meeting
in the case of any other requisition.
WETMERBEE AAMEHBERKA 4. If the written request is in order, the Company
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Secretary will ask the Board of Directors of the
Company (i) to include the resolution in the agenda
for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the statement
for the general meeting, provided that the
shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum
of money reasonably determined by the Board
of Directors sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in serving the notice of the resolution
and/or circulating the statement submitted by
the shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid or the shareholder(s) concerned have
failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution
will not be included in the agenda for the AGM; or
the statement will not be circulated for the general
meeting.
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BREER (&) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

BREARBRRASEHEZRE (BEB8MAZ Procedures for shareholders to make proposals
BREERMNNERF (K) at general meeting other than a proposal of a
person for election as director (continued)

S—HEHEERRERAZEFHEEAMNTE A separate document containing the procedures for

Frz Xt e FI B R AR &) 484k - a shareholder to propose a person for election as
a director is also published on the website of the
Company.

BRERODEESREEANERF Procedures by which enquiries may be put to

the Board of Directors by shareholders

—NAN—FBREQAESARAE Z2AA There are no provisions in the Bermuda Companies

MBI EECHTERBAARNTEEESIE  Act 1981 or in the Bye-laws of the Company that

HER R - BREEEYNI(MERE provide for a procedure by which shareholder(s) may

BUATREBENEEM A RNEREER put forward an enquiry to the Board of Directors of the
Company. A shareholder may, of course, at any time
send their enquiries in writing to the Board of Directors
of the Company via the following channels:

BEut: BHENLEBE Mailing Address: 17/F, C-Bons International Center,
#1085 No. 108 Wai Yip Street,
HEBRKE17E Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(FFRMHEABRAIMESR (For the attention of the Company
EESERE) Secretary or Chairman of the Board)

BE: (852) 2797 8076 Fax: (852) 2797 8076

TH enquiry@wih.com.hk Email: enquiry@wih.com.hk
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy of the
Company aims at promoting effective communication
with the shareholders and other stakeholders;
encouraging shareholders to engage actively with
the Company; and enabling shareholders to exercise
their rights as shareholders effectively. The Company
communicates with the shareholders mainly in the
following ways: (i) corporate communications of
the Company (including, but not limited to, annual
reports, interim reports, notice of meetings, circulars
and announcements) to be published in a timely and
consistent manner as required by the Listing Rules; (ii)
information and documents of the Company posted on
the Company’s website; (iii) annual general meetings
and other general meetings of the Company which
serve as the primary forum for communication by
the Company with its shareholders; (iv) shareholders’
enquiries may be sent to the Company or the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong; and
(v) other investor relations communication platforms, if
appropriate.

In support of environmental protection, shareholders
are recommended to read the Company’s corporate
communications electronically on the website of the
Company or the Stock Exchange. Shareholders have the
right to choose the means of receipt of the corporate
communications either by mail or by electronic means.
Shareholders are able to change their choice from
time to time. Also, shareholders are encouraged to
participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies to
attend and vote at the meetings for and on their behalf
if they are unable to attend the meetings. Chairman
of the Board and other Board members, chairmen of
board committees or their delegates, and the external
auditor shall attend annual general meetings to address
and answer any questions from the shareholders. Any
concerns and views of the shareholders will be taken
into consideration by the Board when formulating the
business strategies of the Company. The Board has
reviewed the implementation of the Policy during the
year and considered the Policy effective.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents
of the Company in the year of 2022. The existing Bye-
laws of the Company is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Recently, the Stock Exchange has amended the Listing
Rules concerning the core shareholders protection
standards under the new listing regime for overseas
listed companies set out in Appendix 3 to the Listing
Rules. In order to conform to such core standards
and, taking the opportunity, to provide flexibility for the
Company to hold hybrid or electronic general meetings
and bring the existing Bye-laws in line with the relevant
requirements of the applicable laws of Bermuda, the
Board intends to seek approval of the shareholders
(by way of a special resolution) for the proposed
amendments to the existing Bye-laws by adoption of
a new Bye-laws at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 1 June 2023. A
circular containing, amongst other things, information in
this relation, together with the notice of the meeting will
be sent to the shareholders in due course.

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WONG’S INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Wong’s
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages
112 to 247, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022;

° the consolidated income statement for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.
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B KA
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022,
and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.
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BAREETEE KEY AUDIT MATTERS
AREAETESRERMAOZEHLE -2 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
BEAHSARBRENETRAEEN professional judgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

FH- BLFHERERMBAERRAN

BRALEEBERETREN - LM
S ELFEREREBNER -

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to

BMEFRTTINERETFTERER

106

FEEE G- estimated provision for inventory.

BREIER AMNETINEERRENSH

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FEREET AMTRTERERRRERBRRENADEHNNTERE LRBZRA

Estimated provision for inventory
BRAGAHBRRM T4 RT3

Refer to Note 4(a) and Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEER T _F T A=+t BRENEEAEB487,000,000m° &

CERBERERRFERR RSB —ERTNREN L
The Group held inventory of HK$487 million as at 31 December 2022, It
consistently applies a specific provisioning methodology for slow moving
inventory based on products life cycle and inventory ageing.

AMBERBHAHEBRARARERTEARENRT TRELRANE
ERM-ARBRERERBHERNEEIR2ZEREDHRERN
HOMRERERELFESREAAN Bl FRAGREAEANE
AR -

We focused on auditing this area because the estimation of provision
is subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty and its financial
significancy. The inherent risk in relation to the inventory provision is
considered significant due to significant judgements involved in identifying
the inventories associated with risk of obsolescence and slow moving and
evaluating the possible utilisation of the aged raw materials by making
reference to products life cycle.

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

AREUNRENELEFRRER (FImIEY BEE ZHIREREN
FRZAEMERMBEROGRMN) KT FETEAERNERRR -

We obtained an understanding of the management's internal control and
assessment process of inventory provision estimation process and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as subjectivity and
complexity and changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

AMEEEREREHENAR Y (A aR) ERBRRFENRIER
NREBEFRBHERREF LN RAME AFHERBEARENRA -
AN EREEE TR ERE2ZEnBENERRERMHMTELRE
REERNBRR R TEXRERER

We examined the basis of the methodology with respect to inventory provisions
and evaluated, amongst others, the outcome of management’s estimations in prior
years, analysis and assessment made by management with respect to slow moving
and obsolete inventory to assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation
process. We also evaluated, on a sample basis, the assumptions and estimates
applied by management to determine the possible utilisation of aged raw materials
by making reference to the products life cycle without contradictory evidence
noted.

AFEEREEE L TRRARHEMANFIRENERL TERA_Z
It Rt -HNEERRREREEENER BN EN A ER AR
We evaluated and tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing profile of
the inventory used in the calculation. We performed a recalculation of the inventory
provision using the ageing profile of the inventory as at 31 December 2022 and the
products life cycle determined by management.
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BEAAE
OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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B RR KB

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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KRk E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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B RR KB

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit
committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lee Chung Bor.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE_F_-_—F+-HA=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

—E-— —F-—
2022 2021
M5 BET T R T T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Y 25 Revenue 5 3,466,674 3,256,729
E AU A Other income 6 12,333 16,806
MR ERERBRIFEZEE Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress 43,859 (65,249)
FfE A 2 RE ROBEFE @ Raw materials and consumables used (2,628,835) (2,344,085)
EERHAMEZ Employee benefit expenses 7 (457,111) (485,674)
e Depreciation 8 (71,931) (76,437)
Hib ez i Other operating expenses 8 (170,206) (175,987)
H e — %5 Other gains - net 9 136,764 7,023
KEWMELRBEEY Change in fair value of investment
properties 16 (80,148) (11,700)
BERKMEGFTE ZMBEME  Provision for write-down of
stock of completed properties 24 (9,800) -
JEWE Z BRI ZRE Provision for impairment losses
EE R on trade receivables 25 (368) (1,126)
BN Operating profit 241,231 120,300
mE WA Finance income 11 19,317 17,607
A& AR Finance costs 11 (57,655) (46,442)
FE(REE 2 A R) (F18)  FE  Share of (loss)/profit of an associate 18 (4,170) 3,123
fEfE & &% (FB) FIE  Share of (losses)/profits of joint ventures 19 (44,073) 32,074
BR BT 15 B4 Al 7 B Profit before income tax 154,650 126,662
Frig 8 X Income tax expense 12 (42,214) (37,188)
BRETBH & FE Profit after income tax 112,436 89,474
RATREE AEMREB Profit attributable to owners
of the Company 112,436 89,474
EANREBEAELFE Earnings per share attributable
sRAER to owners of the Company
during the year
2R Basic HK$0.23 HK$0.19
14 B%0.23% B E0.197T
g Diluted HK$0.23 HK$0.19
14 & #0.23T PEH0.197T

bl iy A ek 7k R SRR MY B A — GBI AR o

The above consolidated income statements should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE2E-_F-_—F+_HA=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

—Eg=-= T —%F
2022 2021
Bt 5 BT T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FERNH Profit for the year 112,436 89,474
Eﬂi’.%ﬁlﬂlk : Other comprehensive income:
A]BEEFT 7 HE Items that may be reclassified to
i E Y z:*?Z EH - consolidated income statement:
ReEnEeEHHR-—FEIR Cash flow hedge - fair value gains
BEksE for the year 21,365 18,049
RemEEHF-—CER Cash flow hedge — deferred
EIEFTS income tax recognised (3,525) (2,978)
BEMmE Currency translation differences:
—AR&EHE - Group (183,407) 54,097
NG - Associates (389) 182
HETSEH 7 Items that will not be reclassified
e ham ks H 5 : subsequently to consolidated
income statement:
HERARBETAEM Loss on disposal of financial
ZHBRANEREEZ assets at fair value through other
E1a comprehensive income (458) -
BAREEFTAEMEE Changes in fair value of financial
AR ©BEE assets at fair value through other
NAEBEEEZD comprehensive income 21 10,067 2,686
FEHME2@E (FE), Other comprehensive (loss)/
CacBAEB income for the year, net of tax_ (156,347) 72,036
AKAREBEAEMLEESRE Total comprehensive (loss)/
(F518) W ABE income for the year
attributable to the owners
of the Company (43,911) 161,510

bR a 2B AR EEEENHE — 0 The above consolidated statement of comprehensive
B o income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=ZFZ=—F+=H=+—H Asat31 December 2022

—E=-= —EF -
2022 2021
B 5 BT T TS F T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
LERY IS Property, plant and equipment 15 251,882 219,598
wEME Investment properties 16 1,959,215 2,041,508
EREEE Right-of-use assets 17 119,677 131,935
BN AR E Investments in associates 18 = 26,583
AETENER Interests in joint ventures 19 2,058,112 2,141,455
BRARBEFAEMER Financial assets at fair value through
WA EREE other comprehensive income 21 158,538 15,470
REFTESREE Deferred income tax assets 22 19,662 21,807
7] & I H fth fE AR X Deposits and other receivables 26 18,843 20,035
mE2MIT A Derivative financial instruments 28 21,435 -
ZRERE Restricted cash 27 1,055 -
4,608,419 4,618,391
REBEE Current assets
7E Inventories 23 487,189 388,487
EERMETE Stock of completed properties 24 203,610 213,410
FEWE 5 8RR Trade receivables 25 1,071,437 1,003,075
ENFIE -FE Rk Prepayments, deposits and
H ) i U5 BR K other receivables 26 90,169 107,082
BARBETAEMEE Financial assets at fair value through
AR BEE other comprehensive income 21 78 53
& BRI AT U B TS A Current income tax recoverable 1,356 1,883
XBRHERE Restricted cash 27 124,702 136,320
RHEIRIT K Short-term bank deposits 27 546,736 877,757
BeRReEED Cash and cash equivalents 27 544,537 400,818
3,069,814 3,128,885
BEE Total assets 7,678,233 7,747,276

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-FE-——F+=-H=+—H Asat31 December 2022

—E=-= —EF -
2022 2021
B 7 BET T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
R EQUITY
BENEKQATEBAZER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
i Share capital 32 47,848 47,848
H b & Other reserves 33 519,291 673,305
REBETF Retained earnings 33
— R AR B - Proposed dividend 21,533 11,963
—H A - Others 3,824,421 3,745,421
MRS Total equity 4,413,093 4,478,537
aE LIABILITIES
kARBEB Non-current liabilities
TEemIT A Derivative financial instruments 28 8,613 -
FEET & A N H b BR X Accruals and other payables 30 - 5,788
HEBE Lease liabilities 17 19,419 26,312
RIEMBHAR Deferred income tax liabilities 22 81,070 71,809
B Borrowings 31 1,070,294 1,301,554
1,179,396 1,405,463
REaE Current liabilities
ERTE SRR Trade payables 29 710,517 658,995
T/ T E Derivative financial instruments 28 - 8,543
FEETEAREMEMNER Accruals and other payables 30 229,258 229,082
GHBE Contract liabilities 5 131,574 126,291
HERRE Lease liabilities 17 18,914 20,804
EHFEHAaE Current income tax liabilities 42,807 45,397
B Borrowings 31 952,674 774,164
2085744 - 1,863,276
we® Total liabilites =~ 3265140 3,268,739
HEZKREE Total equity and liabilities 7,678,233 7,747,276

FAEVBRRENR T _=F=A=-+HIAH
BEEefARRENE YHTINES

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March

REFEE: 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:
T BFK ITEH WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG YIN MAN, ADA
FTEFRITHAAE BEE Chairman and Chief Executive Offcer Director

bt ER A B 5 R 0 3% FE B BE B B 5 — OF

The above consolidated statement of financial position

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.
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mEREREER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_F_-_—F+-HA=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

ADAEARAER
Attributable to owners
of the Company
A BiaE Hib#EE @it
Share Share Other
capital premium reserves Total
(B3E32) (Hf5E33)  (HIk3R)
(Note 32) (Note 33) (Note 33)
BETT BT T BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
RZZZ—%—H—H As at 1 January 2021 47,848 153,025 4,132,901 4,333,774
ZEBA Comprehensive income
FEME Profit for the year - - 89,474 89,474
H2EBA Other comprehensive income
BORBEFALAZEKRAN Changes in fair value of financial
SREENAEEED assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 2,686 2,686
ERHNEER Currency translation differences - - 54,279 54,279
Bensdr-FEAnBERE Cash flow hedge - fair value gains
for the year - - 18,049 18,049
BeRmeHT-DRAELHEH Cash flow hedge - deferred income
tax recognised - - (2,978) (2,978)
AprEbAR® Total other comprehensive income S S 72036 72,036
2EBALE Total comprehensive income - - 161,510 161,510
BEBAZRS Transactions with owners
ENALEHEEAZKRE Dividend paid to owners of the
Company - - (16,747) (16,747)
REBAZZSRE Total transactions with owners - - er4n)  (16,747)
RZEZ—4%+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2021 47,848 153,025 4,277,664 4,478,537

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEr—F - —F+=-HA=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

ADREEAESL
Attributable to owners
of the Company

(L& R 5ERE Hitnf# o
Share Share Other
capital premium reserves Total

(FiEE32) (FiEE33) (FEE33)
(Note 32) (Note 33) (Note 33)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

R-Z-—_%#-HF-H As at 1 January 2022 47,848 153,025 4,277,664 4,478,537
ZEKA Comprehensive income
FEME Profit for the year - - 112,436 112,436
H2EBA Other comprehensive income
HERAABEGAEMZEBKALN  Loss on disposal of financial
SREEZER assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income - - (458) (458)

BARBEGAEGEZAKARN Changes in fair value of financial
CREELABEED assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income - - 10,067 10,067
ERhEES Currency translation differences - - (183,796) (183,796)
ReRmer-FELABEKS Cash flow hedge - fair value gains

for the year - - 21,365 21,365
Renefh-CRABLHAEH Cash flow hedge - deferred income

tax recognised - - (3,525) (3,525)
ArzEBRR® Total other comprehensive loss R T 1198347 (156,347)
2HERASE Total comprehensive loss - - (43,911) (43,911)
REBAZRS Transactions with owners
ENARRHEAZRE Dividend paid to owners of the

Company - - (21,533) (21,533)
REAAZRSEE Total transactions withowners S T 21538 (21,539)
R-E-Z§+-A=+—H As at 31 December 2022 47,848 153,025 4,212,220 4,413,093
Fatsr AR EERELEFBEMNM s —6f The above consolidated statement of changes in equity
BsE o should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE—ZFT-——F+=-H=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

—E-CE —E-—F
2022 2021
k=3 BT BETFT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
EETHMBRLRE Cash flows from operating activities
HEEEMREFE Net cash generated from operations 35(a) 123,458 6,858
ENEBNGER Hong Kong profits tax paid (3,296) (7,944)
BATER Overseas tax paid (30,779) (31,306)
BRNGERER Hong Kong profits tax refund = 26
BN RER Overseas tax refund = 2,672
ERME Interest paid (57,655) (46,442)
EETEHEL, (FTB)NBEEFE Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities 31,728 (76,136)
RETBMEBHERE Cash flows from investing activities
BANE BRERR Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (92,756) (17,633)
WEEREEE Acquisition of right-of-use assets - (10,464)
HENE BERRERSHE Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 35(b) 884 2,308
B B A TR B Dividend received from an associate 3,819 2,441
BAREEFAEMEERAL Additional investment in financial assets
SREESBIMEE at fair value through other
comprehensive income (830) (5,474)
BEOnBEFALZMZERAN Proceeds from investment in financial
SREEMGIE assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 2,615 119
W BB B 2 R 2 D A Recovery of amount due from an
B associate previously written off - 7,310
BHRROFERRD/ (Em) Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank
deposits 284,707 (126,411)
ZWHIR2EM Increase in restricted cash (1,075) (131,422)
BEGERR Repayment from joint ventures 39,270 39,270
E YA S Interest received 19,317 17,607
REFHHRE,/ (FTB)WEELFE  Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities 255,951 (222,349)
BETBHREHERE Cash flows from financing activities
EARERTETEN-FE Increase in trust receipt bank loans - net 117,758 863
MIERITER New bank loans 487,000 1,525,000
BEBITER Repayment of bank loans (657,508) (1,488,815)
THBAERR Payment of lease payments 35(c) (21,322) (20,782)
BEARE Dividends paid (21,533) (16,747)
METBHRANREFE Net cash used in financing activities (95,605) (481)
BeRBEE/YzEM,/ (HD) Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and
FE cash equivalents 192,074 (298,966)
ENBERBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 400,818 680,202
BERABES Currency translation differences (48,355) 19,582
FRZASRBSESEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 27 544,537 400,818

iR e R REEBEMN s —fF The above consolidated cash flow statements should be
B & o read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

118 ITREREESRAR 2022 FF



e MR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—REH

ITREREEERQA ([ARA]) R
HfE AR (I AKE]) T2H]E
R 2E HERDHEFEM N
SE/ESSE

RARTTRBRETMK L 2 B
REREAAR -FMMHEEREE
& 2 1 B 95 Bl i 7 Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda X & & /188 B ¥& & XX 110857
HMEBIRKEITE

VI

KRR ZBNEBERBEBBHAEZXSM
BRAREREM -

BRRBEAIN GEMBRRIABEE
27 HREVBBRRER T _=F
At AEESEE AT

2IREGREMBREMARAZEE
SETERRER T X -FRARBERIN %
ERRERMB2INFEERER -

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wong’s International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
development, manufacture, marketing and
distribution of electronics products as well as
property holding.

The Company is an exempted limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office and principal place of business
are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda and 17/F., C-Bons International
Center, No0.108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 24 March 20283.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
presentation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 1 1 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FEEHHEERME (&)

21 REEE

(a) BTEBMBREEURE
&2 aHRH

REBZZEFAMBRE
EIRRATE @R & B %R
SRR ([F BT |REHE
A1) RBEERAGE (A
NEMER) (F622F ) 24
BHREMRE-

RENEBEBWHREER
ZIEAVBHRRERERE
TS A MEXRE
EEREAANEEEFBER
ZBREPITEHAG - F RS
EHE GRS
HAMBRERBEEATEN
RER b5t E P 44K ER -

(b) EEAEH

ZERAMBRRCRIBE
SERAEN CGEBEHRA
REBEFAEBEZEKRAD
TRMEENKREYE (B
NABEIKR)ETEL)

R

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance

These consolidated financial statements
of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
and disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (“HKCO”)
Cap. 622.

The preparation of the consolidated
financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

Historical cost convention

These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on historical cost
basis, as modified by revaluation of
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 ITESHHREME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
21 mBEEE (F)
211 B BRBERERE

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

21.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

(a) AEED RN AL (@) Amendments to standards, annual

FREUGE M55l 2 1BF]

— % — —

=

AEEER
F-A—HRBZEE
BEHEERERUAT
R F 2 UE K35 5l
ZIEET:

2R BiIEE

BERBEE —B--47A

EH|F16% =T H%EE2019
BT EHRREREE
JHLEE

ERMBEE SEHIER
BRI F3%

2B
FARHEN N2 BERRE
$i6%  EIERER
ZBUR RENZER

BAGHEN ZEoN: AN
ERIb BHZHA
b4 HIA
EEYEER —T-N\EZE
ZBiR —T-EEEH
LEEHE

EitEoIE5% KRR A G

(BBE)  AfeEA

Rz EEA -FEXR
MRSl ZER]I T e Y
S BREKREMNEAXN
EERHARENEE
Ko 8 755 7R 5 3 B AE AT
MERFE-

improvements and guideline adopted

by the Group

The Group has applied the following
amendments to standards, annual
improvements and guideline for the first
time for their annual reporting period
commencing on 1 January 2022:

Standards

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to

Subject of amendment

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts: Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 1 21

Annual
Improvements
Project

2018-2020 Cycle

Revised Accounting Merger Accounting for
Guideline 5 Common Control
Combination

The adoption of these amendments
to standards, annual improvements
and guideline does not have any
significant change to the accounting
policies or any significant effect on
the results and financial position of
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FEEHHEERMEE (&)

21 wWEEE (&)
211 EFFRREBERKE (&)

()

4 55 B R SR 2 3
B RAIZ EETRRRE

HT et A £
ZERT B B E
BEREE_ZT_—

T-A=+—BIFE
58 1T BN B4R
B BHRRE IRER

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b) New standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation not yet
adopted by the Group

Certain new accounting standards,
amendments to standards and
interpretations have been published
that are not mandatory for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and
have not been early adopted by the

SEIRFEREM: Group in preparing the consolidated
financial statements:
BUT A
A ¥ ik
FEBEEX
Effective for
annual periods
%A CHES: beginning on
Standards Subject of amendment or after
ERSHERNFINRABUBERE SHERIER —2-=%—-f—H

EAEBREF2R 2B
Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BB ERFESR 2 BFTIR
Amendments to HKAS 8
BAGHERE12% 2B TR
Amendments to HKAS 12
BARBRERREITR

HKFRS 17
ERMBREEUE TR
HKFRS 17

ERUBREENE1TRZBFR
Amendments to HKFRS 17

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BitfhRtZER

Definition of Accounting Estimates

HE-RPELVEERABRBIRENE
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

RBRAH

Insurance Gontracts

NRERBEYBREENETHEREBUHEREEN R - HLBEH
Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 - Comparative Information

ERUBREENE1TR 2B
Amendment to HKFRS 17

1 January 2023

I =
1 January 2023
—T-=%-A-H
1 January 2023
—E-=F—f—H
1 January 2023
—2-=%—-H—-H
1 January 2023
—EZ=5—-H—H

1 January 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FESHHEME(H) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2.1 ﬁ%gﬁ ( IIIE.)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

211 Bt BRBEREE (&) 2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)
(o) ZAEBE KRN L (b) New standards, amendments to
Al - ER ZEFT KB E standards and interpretation not yet
(%&) adopted by the Group (continued)

BUTHH
H2EkiEtz
FEBEEX
Effective for

annual periods

£8 CHES:| beginning on
Standards Subject of amendment or after
ERGHENFIR 2 ETMR MBBREZFEENR “Z-mE-A-H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements on Classification of Liabilities 1 January 2024
ERGHENFIR ZETMR WERENERDAE —T_ME-A-R
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenant 1 January 2024
ERMBREERF16% 2B TR ERHETMEERE —Z-mE-A-H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BERBEST (KB:T) RHEBRRNIIBR - ERAH S ERERERNEGXNERETNSE —Z-mME-A-H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)  Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower 1 January 2024
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
BREUBRELENE10H R REERABENARAECE A EELEHTE "E
BAGRAIE6R 2 EETR
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its To be determined

and HKAS 28

Associate or Joint Venture

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 1 23
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FTESHBEREE (&)

2.1 mBEE ()

211 S BRBERKE (&)

(D) NGB R R BR R 2 2
AR 2B kB
(%)

REE R Lt ¥R %
AR ZEFTR K2
BB RM - N QA
EECETVILE
B RMZFHMATE
AR ZEATR K2
B & 8 R 5 B 1) B 7%
AR B A 2 AR KT
MEATE-

22 &#E

REMBERREEARTE
FTENBRAREZ T~ —
+—A=+—HItZHBHRK-

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(0)

New standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation not yet
adopted by the Group (continued)

The Group will adopt the above new
standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation when they become
effective. The Directors of the
Company have performed preliminary
assessment and do not anticipate
any significant impact on the Group’s
financial position and results of
operations upon adopting these new
standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December

2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 ITESHHREME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

22 =E (&) 2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a) ISR A (a) Subsidiaries

fBAREME AN EEHE
AEEHENERE (BEME
BUHEER) EAKERSZ
1 5% B BE M A & ] # Bl 3R A
- EERC I JEE Gl Sk
WHBENBEBIERLERA
BHE N FE I F [ R
AEENEFZER-HE
NAEZEHEEEEANEE
ZER2HEAAKR -MEB
NEEZEGIER L2 BEE
IHER A ARR e

AEBEEBAHEAKES
AOAARR e

RNAHEZR G HEHREEE
RAAR 72 RER I H
EHHE-REREBERTEY
HoRFEZXHRERHEERR
R EREECHE B
RAIZEHABRERAR
B S B R R R R [E
RAZ EFTHER — 8

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business
combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FESHBEME (H)

22 #&ZE (#E)

(b) BtERTF

BERREMAASRESHE
BEATZENEBEIZFI X
ARZEHEZ AR BEAR
EEFA HE20%E50%% F
BB E RA MR E AR
GEOEAR (R TX(0) ¥
IR ANHERR ©

(c) E&RH

R EE BB kS E R
FIREERE REEXR
et EeRBAHtRAKE
HEERE - HRIDBUER
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b) Associates

(c)

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting
(see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements,
investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor, rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangement. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures. Interests in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity
method, after initially being recognised
at cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d)
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Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in
consolidated income statement, and the
Group’s share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates
and joint ventures are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in
an equity-accounted investment equals
or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf
of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in
Note 2.7.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(e) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change
in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable
to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because
of a loss of control, joint control or
significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in consolidated income
statement. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to consolidated income statement or
transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (continued)

(e) Changes interests

(continued)

in ownership

If the ownership interest in a joint
venture or an associate is reduced but
joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to consolidated income statement where
appropriate.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-
maker (“CODM”). The Group’s senior executive
management, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, is considered as the
CODM that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in
equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses
including those relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated income statement
within ‘other gains — net’.
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) XER#EeR(HE) (b) Transactions and balances (continued)
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Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income are
analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security, and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised
in consolidated income statement, and
other changes in the carrying amount
are recognised in consolidated income
statement and other comprehensive
income for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive
income respectively.

Translation difference on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as
financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative financial instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss and
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in consolidated
income statement as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as
equities classified as financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income are included in other
comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
report;

(i) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)y all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.
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Buildings comprise mainly factories and
offices. All property, plant and equipment is
stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 6 to 40 years

Plant, machinery and 510 7 years
equipment

Furniture and fixtures 51to 7 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Property,
(continued)

plant and equipment

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment under construction or
pending installation and is stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any. No provision
for depreciation is made on assets under
construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available
for their intended use. On completion, the
relevant assets are transferred to property,
plant and equipment at fair value or cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, are held for long-
term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that are not occupied by the
companies in the Group.
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2.6 Investment properties (continued)
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Investment properties comprise land held
under operating leases and buildings held
under finance leases. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as
investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance
leases.

Investment properties are measured initially at
its cost, including related transaction costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties
are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers at least annually.
Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the
external valuers use alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.
Changes in fair values are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to
the asset’s carrying amount only when it
is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the period in which they are
incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment, and its fair value at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because
its use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16.

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures
and non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Investments and other financial assets

(i)

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 1 37

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through
consolidated income statement), and

° those to be measured at amortised
COst.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in
consolidated income statement or other
comprehensive income. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss
are expensed in consolidated income
statement.
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(continued)
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Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly
in consolidated income statement and
presented in other gains — net, together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures
all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to consolidated income
statement following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in
consolidated income statement as other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(i)

(iv)

Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments (continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in other gains — net
in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. Impairment losses
are presented in consolidated income
statement. For trade receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the statement
of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or
the counterparty.

Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The accounting for subsequent changes in
fair value depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives:

e hedges of a particular risk associated
with the cash flows of recognised assets
and liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges).
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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2.10 Derivatives and hedging activities
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(continued)

The Group documents at the inception of the
relationship between hedging instruments and
hedge items, as well as its risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether
the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions have been and will continue to
be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items.

The fair values of various derivative financial
instruments used for hedging purposes are
disclosed in Note 28. Movements in the
hedging reserve in shareholders’ equity are
shown in Note 33. The full fair value of a
hedging derivative is classified as a non-
current asset or liability when the remaining
maturity of the hedged item is more than
twelve months; it is classified as a current
asset or liability when the remaining maturity
of the hedged item is less than twelve months.
Trading derivatives are classified as a current
asset or liability.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Derivatives and hedging activities
(continued)

(i)
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Cash flow hedge that qualify for hedge
accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in reserves
in equity. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in consolidated income
statement within ‘other gains — net’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified in the periods when the
hedged item affects profit or loss, as
follows:

e The gain or loss relating to the
effective portion of the interest
rate swaps hedging variable rate
borrowings is recognised in profit or
loss within finance cost at the same
time as the interest expense on the
hedged borrowings.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Derivatives and hedging activities
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Cash flow hedge that qualify for hedge
accounting (continued)

When a hedging instrument expires or
is sold or terminated, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
existing in equity at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when
the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in consolidated income
statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported
in equity is immediately reclassified to
consolidated income statement.

The derivative instruments do not
qualify for hedge accounting

Changes in the fair value of these
derivative instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other gains — net’.
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211 FEREERUREFE

2.11 Inventories and stock of completed
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properties

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the weighted average method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Stocks of completed properties are stated at
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined by apportionment of the total
land and development costs attributable to the
completed properties.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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2 ITESHHREME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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2.12 Trade and other receivables (continued)
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Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. See Note 25
for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and Note
3.1(b)(2) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

213 BERBREEEY 2.13 Cash and cash equivalents
RekBeEEYMEEFERE Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
RITARANFHR - RINEA B =@ hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
AU THEM SIS ERE N short-term highly liquid investments with
TERIRITEZ original maturities of three months or less, and

bank overdrafts.

214 A 2.14 Share capital
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Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16

2147

Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
consolidated income statement in the period
in which they are incurred.
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2.18 Financial guarantee contracts
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Financial guarantee contracts are recognised
as a financial liability at the time the guarantee
is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value and subsequently at the higher of
the amount determined in accordance with
the expected credit loss model under HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments” and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined as the present value of the
difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments under the debt
instrument and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a
third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or
other payables of subsidiaries or associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions
and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the
Group.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the
period is the tax payable on the current
period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.
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2 ITESHHREME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

219 EMiRIEEFRSH (&) 2.19 Current and deferred income tax
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(continued)
Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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(continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in
consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

Group companies participate in general
defined contribution pension schemes.
A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the reporting date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

(d)
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Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the
Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when
it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal
plan without possibility of withdrawal; or
providing termination benefits as a result
of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more
than twelve months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present
value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus
plans due wholly within twelve months
after the end of the reporting period are
recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.
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2.21 Provisions
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, which will probably
result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs, so that outflow is probable, it will then
be recognised as a provision.

2.22 Revenue recognition

(a) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the control
of the products is transferred to the
customers at a point in time, being
products are delivered to the customers,
the customers have full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customers.
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2 FESHERME (F) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
222 TR (&) 2.22 Revenue recognition (continued)
(a) EmEE (&) (a) Sales of goods (continued)
FEWRIA A E R AT IR RERR A receivable is recognised when the
B A 3% 2 B B (2 8 R [ goods are delivered as this is the
BE RZEREERELIE point in time that the consideration is
R4 - unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is
due.
EEAKDMBEBHEEL R Payments received in advance that are
NHERNNRERBE L related to sales of goods not yet delivered
BE UREETBRAEK are recognised as contract liabilities and
TR - deferred in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

(b) FEUWA (b) Interest income
MEWAEAERMNEKIR Interest income is recognised on a time-
fF ] B B R o proportion basis using the effective

interest method.

(c) WA (c) Rental income
MeWRAREERBAER Rental income is recognised on a
SEMERR © straight-line basis over the lease periods.

(d BREWA (d) Dividend income
AR B A P W ER KR I8 #Y R Dividend income is recognised when the
W T R RERR © right to receive payment is established.
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2 ITESHHREME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 BFHEE

2.23 Government grants

156

2.24

fid BE 5 & 32 i TE 7N 5 B 75 UL B X
R RAEBTEMEN®
it AR E R R BEERARA
fhae

B X 785 T A BT 8 B AR A =
By £ 5% 475 18 B AR 75 T BC S 10 B
A AR U R IER

HEAME BEARKEEHENK
5 8 B 470 25 1 /5 4 XE BT 4 B &t
ABE TRERIBAZYE
TR B5 Ko 3% 1 B 5 2 WS 4 B 4R
AREERNEREE CTABRAIE
REIRGE SR ARER

HE

HEXRHEEEAHAKEFER
EAMAREREEERAE
BE-

BRF R HERIFHEANK
B - AEEZRHEENRIFEE
MRER D HHER B LB B A
WREIEZEE MIFEEEK
BB o PR AR SR B R A AR
FEHEMS HEZESKHEE
KIFMEEKET D ARSE—TE
SRS WESRERD

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair values where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase
of property, plant and equipment are initially
included in liabilities as deferred government
grants and when such property, plant and
equipment are built or purchased, the
received government grants are recognised
in consolidated income statement on a
systematic basis over the expected useful lives
of the related assets.

2.24 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-
lease components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these
as a single lease component.
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2 ITESHHREME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

224 FHE (&) 2.24 Leases (continued)
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Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value
of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based
on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in
the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing;
and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease,
e.g. term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance cost
is charged to consolidated income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each
period.



e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 ITESHHREME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

224 FHE (&) 2.24 Leases (continued)
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Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

e any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis. If
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful
life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in consolidated income statement.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term
of twelve months or less.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

Leases (continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the underlying asset
and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
based on their nature.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
certain risk exposures.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk
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(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally
and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency
exposures. The Group’s foreign
currency assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally
denominated in Chinese renminbi
("“RMB”) and United States dollars
(“US$”). These currencies are not
the functional currencies of certain
subsidiaries of the Group to which
these balances related. Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from
future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments denominated in RMB
and USS.

The Group mitigates this risk by
maintaining HK$, US$ and RMB
bank accounts which are used by
the Group to pay for the transactions
denominated in these currencies.

The Group has certain investments
in Mainland China, whose net
assets are denominated in RMB.
The conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations on the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Mainland
China government.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2022, for the
group companies with RMB as
their functional currency, if RMB
had weakened/strengthened by
5% (2021: 5%) against US$ with
all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would
have been HK$16,892,000 (2021:
HK$16,362,000) higher/lower (2021:
higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses (2021:
foreign exchange gains/losses) on
translation of US$-denominated trade
receivables and payables and cash
and cash equivalents.

At 31 December 2022, for the
group companies with HKD as
their functional currency, if HK$
had weakened/strengthened by
5% (2021: 5%) against RMB with
all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would
have been HK$157,000 (2021:
HK$135,000) lower/higher (2021:
lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains (2021:
foreign exchange losses/gains) on
translation of RMB-denominated
trade receivables and payables and
cash and cash equivalents.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

miEE bk () (a) Market risk (continued)
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(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to the USD, the Group management
considers that the relevant foreign
exchange risks are minimal.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest
rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest bearing assets
and liabilities. Cash flow interest
rate risk is the risk that changes
in market interest rates will impact
cash flows arising from variable rate
financial instruments. The Group’s
interest bearing assets mainly include
deposits at bank. The Group’s
floating rate borrowings will be
affected by fluctuation of prevailing
market interest rates and will expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.

The Group manages its cash flow
interest rate risk by using interest
rate swaps. Generally, the Group
raises borrowings at floating rates
and swaps them into fixed rates
that are lower than those available
if the Group borrowed at fixed rates
directly.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)
(i)  Cash flow interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, if interest
rate on bank borrowings had been
1% (2021: 1%) higher/lower with all
variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been
HK$4,367,000 (2021: HK$8,982,000)
lower/higher (2021: lower/higher),
mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate bank
borrowings, which are not hedged
with interest rate swap contracts.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises
from cash and bank deposits as well
as credit exposures to customers such
as trade receivables, financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income, loans to joint ventures, deposits
and other receivables. The credit risk
on cash and bank deposits is limited
because the Group mainly places the
deposits in banks with high credit rating
and management does not expect any
losses from non-performance by these
banks.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) EERE (&) (b) Credit risk (continued)
() REkEEE ()  Risk management
REBEERR K& To manage credit risk, the Group has
EEZEMBEEAERK considered the underlying security
HHEFHFCERHAER and the long-established business
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relationship with the counterparty.
The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales of products on
credit terms are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history
and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers.
Normally the Group does not require
collaterals from trade debtors. As at
31 December 2022, the Group has a
concentration of credit risk given that
the top five (2021: five) customers
account for 85% (2021: 83%) of
the Group’s total year end trade
receivable balance. Management
considers that the credit risk in
respect of these customers is
minimal after considering the financial
position and past experience with
these customers.

The credit risk of the Group’s other
financial assets, which comprise,
restricted cash, short-term bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, loans
to joint ventures, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables and deposits and
other receivables are subject the
expected credit loss model.

(1)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade
receivables.

To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables
are assessed individually
for provision for impairment
allowance. Trade receivables
have been assessed based on
credit rating of the customers,
the repayment and default
histories of different customers
and on-going business
relationship with the relevant
customers. The loss rates
are further adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has
identified the Gross Domestic
Product index of the countries
where the customers located to
be the most relevant factor, and
accordingly adjust the historical
loss rate based on expected
changes in these factors.
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(continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

(1)
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Trade receivables (continued)

Loss allowance in respect of the
trade receivables amounted to
approximately HK$3,468,000
(2021: HK$3,100,000) based
on an expected loss rate of
0.01% to 4.26% (2021: 0.01%
to 5.50%) as at 31 December
2022, primarily based on
individual assessment.

Trade receivables are written
off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of
recovery includes, amongst
other, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with
the Group.

Impairment losses on trade
receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against
the same line item.
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3 H¥EAKkERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
31 MEREKREZ (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) FERMR (&) (b) Credit risk (continued)
iy SMEERE (&) (i) Impairment of financial assets

(continued)

(1) EKREZEN(E) (1) Trade receivables (continued)
RZEZZFR The movement of loss allowance
T —F+=H for trade receivables as at 31
=+—H EKE December 2022 and 2021 are
SRR K BB as follows:
SEIIT
—EC-CE —E- %
2022 2021
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
R—A—RRHNEERE Opening loss allowance at 1 January (3,100) (1,974)
BEEE Provision for loss allowance (368) (1,126)
R+ZA=+—BMBEREERE Closing loss allowance at 31 December (3,468) (3,100)
E W E 5 KK Provision for impairment losses
A E B R E on trade receivables amounted to
B #368,0007T HK$368,000 (2021: HK$1,126,000)
—E-—F is included in the consolidated
#1,126,0007T ) 5t income statement.
AEREWETR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

2

Other financial assets at amortised
cost

Other financial assets at amortised
cost include deposits and
other receivables. Management
considers that the credit risk
of these balances has not
increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the
counterparty historical default
rate and current financial position.
The impairment provision is
determined based on the twelve
months expected credit losses
which was immaterial.

While cash and cash equivalents,
short-term bank deposits and
restricted cash are also subject
to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and the
availability of funding through an adequate
amount of available credit facilities. The
Directors aim to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping credit lines available.

The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements, its
compliance with lending covenants and
its relationship with its bankers to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, based
on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.
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3 BXEBRER (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
31 MEREKREZ (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) RBESRER (&) (c) Liquidity risk (continued)
EESMI RERBEAERDN The analysis shows the cash outflow
XPHH (MERATEE based on the earliest period in which the
BIEGENDERAFER) entity can be required to pay, that is if the
W SIR EMIRITE R lenders were to invoke their unconditional
MEE B ST IREBETE rights to call the loans with immediate
HEAZ T effect. The maturity analysis for other

bank borrowings is prepared based on
the scheduled repayment dates.

B R
Maturity Analysis

15 RE
REREE 122% 255 SENE B8

Less than

1 year or

repayable on Between 1 Between 2

demand and2years  and 5years  Over 5 years Total

ARTT BRI BRI AR ARTTL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

4 Consolidated
W-B-—-£+-A=+-H At 31 December 2021
EREHER Trade payables 658,995 - - - 658,995
A ERRAERER Accruals and other payables 223,295 - - - 223,295
HERR Lease liabilities 22,499 4,590 9,448 22,045 58,582
ERMERTER Trust receipt bank loan 326,673 - - - 326,673
AMFETER Other bank borrowings 467,350 502,135 828,049 - 1,797,534
1,698,812 506,725 837,497 22,045 3,085,079
RZE-Z§+-8=1-H At 31 December 2022
ERESER Trade payables 710,517 - - - 710,517
A ERRAERER Accruals and other payables 223,964 - - - 223,964
RERR Lease liabilities 20,460 17,360 2,835 - 40,655
ERRERTER Trust receipt bank loan 448,471 - - - 448,471
REERERARE Other bank borrowings subject
ERBOER to a repayment on demand
clause 60,240 - - - 60,240
EBRTER Other bank borrowings 513,102 620,524 530,023 - 1,663,649
1,976,754 637,884 532,858 - 3,147,496
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3 H¥EmER (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.2 EXEREE 3.2 Capital risk management

AEBNESEIREHRERERA
SEREFEESE EERBRIE
BRI B E R0 7 KA e -
(7] By 4 5 A% 152 1) B 7K 465 18 DA DAL (K

REFAHBELRER ~RHE
AREgRBEXNTRENBRERS
B MRRERE AN BTN
S EEENEEER-

HEMAR-Z AEENRFE
ERELRERERERNELE-
ZLRIFAER AR ST E
FREREERNMEERBERT
REERS BHROTERALAR
EREEBMtE -

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of net
gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings and lease
liabilities less restricted cash, short-term bank

deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

—ZE-Z —E-—F

2022 2021

BETT BT T

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BB Total borrowings 2,022,968 2,075,718
HEAE Lease liabilities 38,333 47,116
2,061,301 2,122,834

SRR 2 Restricted cash 125,757 136,320
g HIIRTTIF 3K Short-term bank deposits 546,736 877,757
BeRBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 544,537 400,818
1,217,030 1,414,895

FEE Net debt 844,271 707,939
B Total equity 4,413,093 4,478,537
FEEHEAEREE Net debt to total equity ratio 19% 16%

AEBR-_ZE-_—_F+= A
Zt+—HZFEEABLEXA
19% (ZF = —F:16%) - FE&E
EBELRENTHABEYE-
B REREAZIRE -

The Group’s net gearing ratio was 19% (2021:
16%) as at 31 December 2022. The increase
in net gearing ratio was due to cash used for
purchase of property, plant and equipment.
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3 HHERER(HE)

3.3 RABEEME
TIeRmEERBBZAREBE
HHEAREERE
s EWEHRNK
o Gl KEMBUERR
e XREIRE
e  FHIRITER
e HREaRREEFEY
e RENEFSEREX
o [EFFERARHMEMNERRK

e

o IRTTEXR

(I
b

e MHEHR(

I
.

TR AGEETERAALE
BIEREZEMI AN - TR%
BZEEWMT:

It

5

e WHANMBEESXBBEAEE
BmERE(KREAE)
(B18R) »

o BREIPFTRHMEIN BE
EXRBEEE (AER)HHE
(BB ERMAB)BEME
SE(F28) -

o  WHERABEMSEE (&
FBRZ2B)CEEXARE
228 (F3) -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of the following financial assets
and liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts:

e Trade receivables

° Deposits and other receivables

° Restricted cash

o Short-term bank deposits

o Cash and cash equivalents

o Trade payables

o Accruals and other payables

° Bank borrowings

° Lease liabilities

The table below analyses financial instruments

carried at fair value by valuation method. The

different levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

(Level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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3 HHEARER(HE)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value at 31 December 2021.

BRI Eof ERH Fob]
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETL BT BETT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
BLABEFAZAZEKRAN Financial assets at fair
tREAE value through other
comprehensive income 70 - 15,453 15,523
a8 Liabilities
TESBI A Derivative financial
instruments - 8,543 - 8,543

The following table presents the Group’s
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair

ZLEERBE- value at 31 December 2022.
SR E-PE F3 “m
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EE Assets
BORBEFALAZEKRAN Financial assets at fair
cREAE value through other
comprehensive income 138,507 - 20,109 158,616
fTESRTE Derivative financial
instruments - 21,435 - 21,435
=L Liabilities
TESmTAE Derivative financial
instruments - 8,613 - 8,613

FA-FEIR F2M R B3R E

I T o
FAEERDLERLME-

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2
and 3 during the year.

There were no other changes in valuation
techniques during the year.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

F1REWMIA

EERMZEEMSRIA
ZARBERBERSHOT
HGREY R MR RER A
ERTEHER S &HE-
e TESEE RERE
HEERBEES MZIH
ERMERREHIZA TR
BT 2mBER S BlZm
LR BERME - NEEHF
ERNESRMEENTISRER
ERERE-ZFITAGA
F1R -

F2F @M ITAE

WIHEERMSEENS R
TAE(BIIBINMTET RN
AREBENFERABERDE
F-ZEHEHRTDREFEH
Az A BEmiSE8E
WRAERDEKBERIIET
HEt - WTAAAREBEZE
B EEZELX2H Y AER
ZITRFAZE28R -

FRTESR T ABENX
mE E R EESERG
BERTDEE -ZFHERD
BREFRAARBZABED
158U - I 3% AT BE R A K 78
ERBEMET

(a)

(b)
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Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in Level 2.

Level 2 derivative financial instruments
comprise interest rate swaps. The fair
value of interest rate swaps is determined
by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates.
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3 HHEARER(HE)

3.3 ARnEEME (&)
(c) HFIMEMTA

W —IAZHERZHI I
ERABEmSHEE AT

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the

At A3 instrument is included in Level 3.
TEHEEL —EZFR The following table summarises the fair
—EI—F+ZA=+— El value and quantitative information about
ARELMAERERES the significant unobservable inputs used
ﬁﬁfZ%B%&@fﬂE@%%ﬁﬁ in Level 3 fair value measurements of
A ArBEREREELS investments in unlisted private investment
RPN TEEEHR: fund and entities as at 31 December 2022
and 2021:
BEREX BEEES YN
i —E-- —TE=—F BEEZY DREEZBE
Description 2022 2021 Significant Relationship of
BET T BT T unobservable  unobservable inputs
HK$’000 HK$’000 inputs to fair value
FLTLEREESR 13,815 9,979 HEAEEDN RPERES
HEIRZ 5B AREBEES
Unlisted private investment fund Recent transaction The higher the
prices of underlying  transaction prices, the
assets higher the fair value
RIELTAREEBZERRE 5,474 5,474 FIRER R FRE HEEREX
HEHEE #Me/ /#Me AAEE
HIE B
Equity investments in unlisted Discount rate, Sales The higher/higher the
private entities growth rate discount rate/sales
growth rate, the lower/
higher the fair value
RIELTRLEER  EXRE 820 - 11 35 5 (B 2 2P ERME -
ARBEES
Equity investments in unlisted Recent transaction The higher the
private entities prices  transaction prices, the
higher the fair value
20,109 15,453
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3 B¥ERKmEE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.3 AREEME (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(c) FE3MEMmI A (F) (¢) Financial instruments in level 3

(continued)

TREJINFRNEIRIAZ The following table presents the changes
28 in Level 3 instruments for the year:
—F=-C —ET-_—F
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
F AR Opening balance 15,453 7,440
N Addition 830 5,474
AZARMD Refund of capital - (119)
EARBEFAEMEARAHESEE Changes in fair value of financial
ERARBEED assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 3,826 2,658
FRER Closing balance 20,109 15,453
4 BEAREFHHFRHE 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS
hrt RHAEAFET G TERBEL Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
BhkEMEER BEKEBEERBIEE and are based on historical experience and other
BARKREHREETER- factors, including expectations of future events

that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

REEFARREL BT RBR  EEHD The Group makes estimates and assumptions
M ERR RS HEEHAERS concerning the future. The resulting accounting
RTE-BHT—UHBREEEERNRAR - estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
EXNEERABERABEAFELEEKXRH the related actual results. The estimates and
BHhat REBREEN T assumptions that have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are addressed below.
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4 BEREFHEF KA (E)

(a)

(b)

(c)

FEZAHFERE

AEEREBEHGFEANEREEN
%ﬁ'hTfWHiTmﬁ@ﬁ
1hﬁ$#il MECRRTREER T
ﬂimﬁn%AhffWﬁ@A
B o 8B THURKE S5 7858 R HIV I K fih
oM eBERBAETAR
ZEBRSTEFERTERMG
EFHMENFEMRE-

FE W BR Rz i 5T B

THMEECEHEREDREED
R\ M AR BRREE -
AEBENEHZFBRRMEERR
@ﬁ%ﬁk%%%—ﬁ%%ﬁ$
SEBEESL RITRARRE
& B R 2 R 2R Af 5T A -
ERETEBRRLA 2H ASE
Z R IBEN P S

FEMEEZRIE

WA TR FEHHIBERE BRI
TREEZRAEEREERKED -
AIZB(E R E R AT - ] IR E & 58
DR BEERAEEFEXTSEE
MEE & F5t 8 IABERH
i R Al 5t

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated provision for inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the
realisability of inventories. Write-downs
on inventories are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The
identification of write-downs requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and write-downs
of inventories in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.

Estimated impairment of receivables

The loss allowance for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations. These calculations require the use
of judgements and estimates.
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4 BEREFHEF KA ()

(c)

(d)

FEMEEZRME(F)

EEERAYEEERGRE L
HEFAE: ((BREEDEEMEET
EHEEBETREEIREZSE
5 (i) r] W=l 5B (BMR E B+ #
BERBEEMMET AR EBERB
ERARAKIBEREFIRE (K
RaahRE) ) REERZRBEE
ZHREE RiNFEREREREHE
AR FREENETERS B
EERABEMNENRAZERS
A= TEA

MEREFEREZ BREE (8
EReRERAMRA AL
S EEBR) AU HLRER
S EBA R E AR E A
EMBAHMR R BB LA

REMEZQIREE

BREWMEZHREDREEENE
A2 MM TR GERER]E
T-ERAGBESFFHAENRM
B E HEEREREETS
ABZABELLBHER S -

AEMHERRANRRIAEE
Al gt g W IREHE BN KD
EFEEEFLEAFHENEK
[ B2 o

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Management judgement is required in the area
of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may
not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell or net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.

Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.

Fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties is
performed in accordance with the “Valuation
Standards on Valuation of Properties”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation is reviewed semi-
annually by qualified valuers by considering
comparable sales transactions as available in
the relevant market.

Changes to the assumptions used in deriving
the valuation could have a significant risk of
causing material adjustment to the carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position.
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4 BEREFHEF KA (E)

(e)

(f)

ME BMERREBZERFR

AEEEEEECEYE BFE
KRR A (E T A IR S AR BRI
ERX -Zbsr IIRERALEE
ENEZME BERZBER
ERFROBELREL - WE
AERERERNMGEFT 2FR &
HEESRMTE L
MORE ZA K E 2 BB Rk
FEBEEE - BEREEFHX
g EEFER R AR - E iR
AR T EFHLIRES
RmBHARBE 2T ERTE
Fﬁ—ﬁi@:}o

FREBRIELFE
$¢l % fE AR RE 18 R B P

1S o N TE & Hb BT 1S T 8 45 5
ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬂ% HEXBKRARE
PEZRRGAMEBEZER
SEREMBRTHE - NEER
BAGFT = B B SN ER SN T T 7
REFBHEZREECBE M
EREEERBBEREY S
ABRRERR ZE=BBYEE
THEBHEREZFAEHRMEL
TR IR
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e) Useful lives of property, plant and

(f)

equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives, and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charges where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives. It will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable
lives and therefore depreciation expense in
future periods.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in
various jurisdictions. Significant judgement
is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be required. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
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4 BEREFHEF KA ()

(f)

(9)

e RIELEFTEH (&)

fHEEERSEE A EHIRAK
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ETHREEZRZETERBEEE R
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EHAERMKEERM L
ERZERMBHEEERNE
EMSHAEEERENK SR
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RAEETRYEFE 2 AT #3H
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REXMAE-FEHEBEERERE
ERREBEREEREMHNET
ARERR BRETEEIRFE
HEVMXGHEESAERZAELL
BMiHR S HERZE -

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(f)

(9)

Income taxes and deferred income tax
(continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is
likely that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled. When the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred tax
assets and income tax charges in the period
in which such estimates have been changed.

Provision for write-down of stock of
completed properties

In assessing the net realisable value of stock
of completed properties, the management
took reference to the independent qualified
professional valuations. The assessment is
dependent on certain key assumptions that
require subjective assumptions and significant
management estimates, including adjustment
factors on comparable market transactions
used in valuation of completed properties held
for sale.
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4 EBEARESEFRHE (&) 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(g) Provision for write-down of stock of

() EXTHMERE MR 2 BRE

(&)

AEBRBEETHKMEFENA
B FERYET S 1 U B
H-EAERFERNEREE
R B SRR 7 578 7F L HUR
BRI E IR FENER Y LA
i K fh AT e

completed properties (continued)

The Group recognises provision for write-
down of stock of properties according to net
realisable value of the stock of completed
properties. Provision for write-down of stock
of completed properties is required when the
net realisable value is lower than the carrying

value. Recognition of net realisable value
involves judgment and estimation.

¥ A REB G A FEE
R -ZERKeTERERRN
EXRMEFEREE-

If the result of new estimation differs from
current estimation, such difference will impact
the carrying value of stock of completed
properties for the corresponding period.
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7 B E

AEBE ERTHREEERGEREE
EL/%?E%((I% SERRAE]) oK
SEBH RS AMELEEFT :

BFEERS ([EMS]) —AEMSER
BERDHEEFEM-
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TELERRECHEHNAEERA
NERBRE AFEERREDEE
ﬂ?I%”“% RERBE D B FA 25T

EFHZEDHRR A EELER
%*WHﬁ@WA\ﬁmWA—%%
MEXA—FEREEBRZERR (B
B) /MBzEENHEE HETERE
TEMRDERAZ MEBLERKRE
REZHEMERIRERS VBRI
I —HEAE-

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s senior executive management is
considered as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(“CODM”). The Group is currently organised into
two operating divisions:

Electronic Manufacturing Service (“EMS”) -
manufacture and distribution of electronic products
for EMS customers.

Property Holding — development, sale and lease of
properties.

The CODM reviews the performance of the Group
on a regular basis and reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. The CODM assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of segment results. This measurement
basis includes profit or loss of the operating
segments before other income, other gains - net,
finance costs — net and share of (loss)/profit of an
associate but excludes corporate and unallocated
expenses. Other information provided to the CODM
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.
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oEER (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
EMSHPF MEHEDM “m
Property
Holding
EMS division division Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE-ZE--F+-A=+—-HLEE  For the year ended
31 December 2022
oM E External revenue
EF AW Revenue from contracts with customers
Wz T R Timing of revenue recognition
-EE-BE — At a point of time 3,404,482 = 3,404,482
H A U 5 R Revenue from other sources
-HelA - Rental income - 62,192 62,192
3,404,482 62,192 3,466,674
NEBEE Segment results 157,165 (88,095) 69,070
nE Depreciation 69,653 43 69,696
EEaEtEER Share of losses of joint ventures - (44,073) (44,073)
BREMELAEBEE Change in fair value of investment
properties - (80,148) (80,148)
ERKMETE MR RRE Provision for write-down of stock of
completed properties - (9,800) (9,800)
BARAX Capital expenditure 92,756 - 92,756
EMSEFT MR B k]
Property
Holding
EMS division division Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-Z--%+-A=F+—HIFE  Forthe year ended
31 December 2021
oM e External revenue
EPAHWaE Revenue from contracts with customers
o 3 TR Timing of revenue recognition
~EE-BE ~ At a point of time 3,192,699 - 3,192,699
Hib ezt KR Revenue from other sources
—-HEWA - Rental income - 64,030 64,030
3,192,699 64,030 3,256,729
DEEE Segment results 82,116 66,504 148,620
neE Depreciation 74,155 42 74,197
[ElEAE B ERE Share of profits of joint ventures - 32,074 32,074
BREMELAEBEED Change in fair value of investment
properties - (11,700) (11,700)
NG Capital expenditure 17,620 13 17,633

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R



e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o EE R (H)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

EMSHM MEREHM ok
Property
Holding
EMS division division Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

R=%-=Ft-A=1-8

As at 31 December 2022

DHEE Segment assets 3,147,298 2,186,962 5,334,260
ARELENER Interests in joint ventures - 2,058,112 2,058,112
2RI PEERE Total reportable segment assets 3,147,298 4,245,074 7,392,372
EMSEFT  MEHE A k]

Property

Holding
EMS division division Total
BETT BETL BETL
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

RZEZ—F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2021

NHEE Segment assets 3,184,951 2,269,129 5,454,080
RECENER Interests in joint ventures - 2,141,455 2,141,455
ERNPEELS Total reportable segment assets 3,184,951 4,410,584 7,595,535

DHEETEBREME  WENMRE
RENE ERAREE BE2RXEN
o FE CXADEFE EBIK
BHERN BANRE -T2 REME
Wk ZRGIE S BERTEK
EReLAEEY BETEEEE
RAMERE BEARBEFARME
HEANEREE - TTEERT A
BB HREE & KO mEHR
REERARDEEE-

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, right-of-
use assets, interests in joint ventures, inventories,
stock of completed properties, trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
restricted cash, short-term bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents, but exclude investments in
associates, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, derivative financial
instruments, deferred income tax assets, current
income tax recoverable and corporate and
unallocated assets.
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5 o#HER (#E)

2RO XELRAEHRANEZ

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

A reconciliation of reportable segment results to

%ﬂl,ﬁﬁﬁﬂ—l—- profit before income tax is provided as follows:
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
BT T TS F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
E2HRDBEE Reportable segment results 69,070 148,620
H b U A Other income 12,333 16,806
Hth s — 5 Other gains - net 136,764 7,023
BhE R AR —F 58 Finance costs — net (38,338) (28,835)
EfhE QR (BR)FH Share of (loss)/profit of an
associate (4,170) 3,123
TEERRIERX Corporate and unallocated
expenses (21,009) (20,075)
BR AT 18 B A1 FIE Profit before income tax 154,650 126,662

T2RHDEERGEE Y WHEMT :

Reportable segment assets are reconciled to total
assets as follows:

—E-= T —F

2022 2021

BET T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

2R, BEE Reportable segment assets 7,392,372 7,595,535

& N AR E Investments in associates - 26,583

BERAARBEFSFTAEMZEKRA Financial assets at fair value

" EEE through other comprehensive income 158,616 15,523

PTETmIA Derivative financial instruments 21,435 -

EIEFTIS %RQF Deferred income tax assets 19,662 21,807

=8 e ey Current income tax recoverable 1,356 1,883

CENKIEEE Corporate and unallocated assets 84,792 85,945
BEVBRRERANBEE Total assets per consolidated

statement of financial position 7,678,233 7,747,276
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ﬁ%ﬂﬁ*ﬂ’ (n\ﬁ)
=

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

MBERIBE 2 HERAT Reconciliations of other material items are as
follows:
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
e Depreciation
—A 2D 48 - Reportable segment total 69,696 74,197
AL FCE - Corporate headquarters 2,235 2,240
71,931 76,437
BEARMX Capital expenditure
—A 2D IR - Reportable segment total 92,756 17,633
ASIFCE - Corporate headquarters - -
92,756 17,633
AARIRBREFM - UTAEALXEE The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. Analysis of

?;zimlu:umi%gJ > 2 WD (IREF
ZHEORTE )

the Group’s revenue by geographical market, which
is determined by the location of customers, is as

follows:
—EC-CF T —%F
2022 2021
BT T VS F T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
1t ZE M North America 472,813 345,221
TM(TBERE) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 1,991,567 1,999,852
B Europe 655,048 516,633
%.E;‘% Hong Kong 347,246 395,023
3,466,674 3,256,729

HE_ZT-_—_F+ZH=+—H1
F[E - #)8#1,652,473,000T (=&
— — % 5 #1,418,527,0007T ) & B
#416,578,0007T (Z T = —F 1 B
421,282,000 ) 2 Wz o Bl 2K B ™
RINBEF - ZERPSEAEBRK
7 210%3K A | o 5% F 2 BEMSHEB
P9 FE (5 Y 2% o

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenues
of approximately HK$1,652,473,000 (2021:
HK$1,418,527,000) and HK$416,578,000 (2021:
HK$421,282,000) were derived from the top two
external customers respectively. These customers
individually account for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue. These revenues are attributable to the
EMS division.
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o EE R (H)

AT RASEZETSE D 2 IR
BEENN:

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by
geographical market is as follows:

—E-= —E-—F

2022 2021

BETT BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

1t =M North America 1 7
TN (TBERE) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 352,033 310,621
B Europe 14 20
&5 Hong Kong 4,236,709 4,285,936
4,588,757 4,596,584

FRBDEEREVE BELRHE:
BREMEX EREEE BEQAN
RE AELEER BaREE
AAARMMEEBRANESREE T4
TR TR R & S E MR S I
XRERe EIBRBEELEMRFH
BE-

Non-current assets comprise property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-use
assets, investments in associates, interests in joint
ventures, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, derivative financial
instruments, deposits and other receivables and
restricted cash. They exclude deferred income tax
assets.

AEEEHRTIEEFPEHNEF@AN The Group has recognised the following liabilities
BE: related to contracts with customers:
—E-CF —_E=-—
2022 2021
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
&4 8 E-EMSEBM Contract liabilities — EMS division 131,574 126,291
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oEER (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
TRIREE R E—FE BB ER The following table shows how much of the revenue
AEHEEEHMNERRKEZSE recognised relates to carried-forward contract

liabilities that were satisfied in a prior year:

—E-CF T —%F

2022 2021

BT T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

EMSHS S EMS division 126,291 164,190
Har A 6 OTHER INCOME

—s==-= T

2022 2021

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT B Government grant 11,447 13,861

o E R R Sales of scrap and spare parts 857 2,822

EHAh Others 29 123

12,333 16,806

EEENBEX (BEESEMEL) 7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

—EC-CF T —%F
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

TE #He ZUMNHEMBEBEF Wages, salaries, allowances and
other termination benefits 408,929 439,914

RURE AN — A E 3G 3 Pension costs — defined

contribution schemes 48,182 45,760
457,111 485,674
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EERANAX (BERESHE)

(&

~

TEBAREEMBAEREEBRILR
slEAEeFE ([AEEEE]) -
Beitdlc EERASEEEDRAF
B UESFABAZTAERE - RER
Beia AEBEREREREFAS M
SFEMER MR 2B AREEMRBUWA (F
HEREBRIELTELEIEN) 2
5% AEBEREBECHREREAES
AE¥1500t (ZE-—F 5 ABK
1,50070) - AR EEENRFB TIES -

R NRAAME ([ E]) K b 8
RAZEBERTELBEBMNRILZ
BREMETEIKE

BEREMBARIALEPE R MEREXR
RIRETEE R - B R R EIR M —
APt E e BB &K
NEEERREEZEKRE ZFHET
BOSWHH RN ERERLDIREEHR
IR o

AR E RS KREIRE 2 B ARLB
#48,182,000c (=T = —F : B
45,760,0007T ) 5 AN & B 5t AN B B [
B EIINPA:T &

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

7

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
(continued)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “Fund Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Fund
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
Under the Fund Scheme, each of the Group and
its employees make monthly contributions to the
Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. Both the Group’s and the
employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month (2021: HK$1,500 per month).
The contributions are fully and immediately vested
for the employees.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Vietnam are
members of retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC and Vietnam governments.

The relevant subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the state retirement schemes in
the PRC and Vietnam. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of payroll to
the schemes. The PRC and Vietnam governments
are responsible for the pension liability to the
retired staff. No forfeited contributions under these
schemes can be used to reduce the existing level
of contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income
statement of approximately HK$48,182,000 (2021:
HK$45,760,000) represents contributions payable
to the schemes by the Group in respect of the
current financial year.
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8 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is analysed as follows:

—Eg-= T —

2022 2021
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

WE -WEREZEIITE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 47,971 52,455
FRAEEEZTE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 23,960 23,982
e Depreciation 71,931 76,437
2% 856 BN & Auditor’s remuneration 3,309 3,260
RITFEE Bank charges 3,299 2,466
EFERE Building management fees 15,170 13,721
{LERNERER Chemicals and consumables 33,192 32,589
& Commission fees 10 1,769
BRE Cleaning expenses 3,246 3,230
R B Entertainment expenses 734 1,018
BT #0782 K 2= A Government rent and rates 2,851 2,957
IR B n & Government surcharges 5,168 6,117
R B Insurance charges 2,303 2,302
FEELREEER Legal and professional fees 4,241 5,479
RERX Motor vehicle expenses 4,719 4,812
WAENRKERZ Office and factories expenses 3,854 3,967

HEHE KEHENRS Operating lease rental in respect of

short-term leases 1,283 2,690

RE B REMETH/FMEZ  Recruitment, training and
other staff welfares expenses 2,026 4,648
#iERRE Repairs and maintenances 14,749 15,886
REE Security expenses 2,440 2,463
kB Travelling expenses 1,304 868
EWE Transportation 30,979 29,624
~ARX Utility expenses 26,455 23,949
Hth Others 8,874 12,172
Hhges W Other operating expenses 170,206 175,987
Gk Total 242,137 252,424
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9 Hihz—F8 9 OTHER GAINS - NET

—E-F T —%F
2022 2021
BT T B’ T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
&5 e (1) —F58 Exchange gains/(losses) — net 15,396 (7,313)

RAEDE —HEE ARz Wa Gains on deemed disposal of
an associate 117,064 -

HEWE WE RFEH 2 W Gains on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 804 1,857
HEEmr = Gains on lease modification 832 -

W ElE A B 2 Recovery of amount due from an

JE LB & R R FIR associate previously written off - 7,310
1 o] H 4t JiE 1< BR 3K Write-back of other payables 2,668 5,169
136,764 7,023
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10 EERESHEEE2M2 (E) 10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
(@) EEM< (&) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
ikl : TEREEBRBRARAERERITH Note 1: Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Chairman and
BEHEHFHE R EXEE- Chief Executive Officer of the Company and his

remuneration has been disclosed above.

Mo : BRBEENRZ=ZZT=Z—F<A Note 2: Mr. Wan Man Keung retired as Executive Director on
—HEER{TTES- 1 June 2021.

MeE3: BREMBREER=ZZT=Z—FMNA Note 3: Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes was appointed as
—AEZEERRITESE- Executive Director on 1 April 2021.

Wiks : REBEERZZT=_=F+—A Note 4: Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David resigned as Independent
ZtHNABABEEBIERTES - Non-executive Director on 29 November 2022,

W5 : BEBEER-ZZT-_=_F+—A Note 5: Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley was appointed as
ZtHNBEZERBLIEHRT Independent Non-executive Director on 29
S November 2022.
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10 EEREREEE2ME (F)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEME (&)

BE_Z_—_Fk-_ZT-—%
+-_A=+—BIFE HESE
EHREXRBERETANE -

EERKER

WEEAESRAKENREZR
—ECFR T —F+=A
=+ —BHLEFEALZT-

EERLERBER

WELAMEERIERSEEFR
BHE_ZT_—_FK_ZT_-—%F
T+ A=+t—HIEFEARZff-

RRHESBRBAE=5/FH
B R E

RBEZE-__FR-_F-_—F
T A=+—HLEFER AR
AVERRHEETRERE=FH
AT ERARAE -

MEE SZFESEHNE
AEBRRZSESNEELRE
RENER EERNMEMK
ZHEHR

NBE_E KT =-—F
TZAZT " HLEFEFERX
ENEMEN CEAES T2
SEFEHNEAABREZSTE

EMEETERAEMENR &
EFRMELEMR S -

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

10 DIRECTORS’

AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in any of the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No Directors’ retirement benefits were paid
during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

Directors’ termination benefits

No Directors’ termination benefits were paid
during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available Directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any
third parties for making available Directors’
services during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

Information about loans, quasi-
loans and other dealings in favour of
Directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
Directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
were made available in favour of Directors,
body corporates controlled by and connected
entities with such Directors subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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10 EEREREEB2HS (&)

(f)

(9)

EERRE ZHREHNFTH
EXHER

REBEE_T__FE_FT_—

+ A=+ BLFEFHERK
FREMERB ANRAFWERTL
BIASEXEFEMARAESEHE
EEETEERREERERZD
BERG LHHIEL -

TEEBRSMEAL

FRN AEERZEESHE A
T BRE=F2(ZZ=—F:=4)
EE HFECZHMeEEN EXET
AWM -BTRBE(ZEZ—F:
MG ) AT 2 B F A& AT

10 DIRECTORS’

AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group for the year
include three (2021: three) Directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable to
the remaining two (2021: two) individuals are
as follows:

—_E:=-= —EF=-—

2022 2021

BT T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

e REMEN Salaries and other benefits 3,493 3,315

TE4T Bonus 269 277
BIRE KA — R EHREE Pension costs — defined

contribution schemes 18 18

3,780 3,610
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10 EERESHEEE2M2 (E) 10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

() TEEESHMESAL (&) (g) Five highest paid individuals (continued)
AE
Number of individual
—EC-CF T —%F
2022 2021
P <& %6 & Emolument bands
71,500,001 7T — & 2,000,000t HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 1
78 #52,000,001 7T — & #2,500,0007T  HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 1 1
FR - AEEHMEZNME TE No emolument was paid by the Group to the
EERARIIBEEMARNEEK Directors as an inducement to join or upon
MAREER 2 BB HIERBE joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
BomiE - of office during the year.

(h) EREEE (FTEEES #ME (h) Senior management’s (excluding
EE Directors) emoluments by band
BREEE(TRIEES) 2 M The emoluments of senior management
SN TUATEHE : (excluding Directors) fell within the following

bands:
AE
Number of individual
—EC-CF T —%F
2022 2021
P <& %6 & Emolument bands

78 #500,001 7T — /& #1,000,0007T HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 - 2

78 51,000,001 7T — % #1,500,0007T  HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 3 2
MeE: BRERAXENR-_ZT=_—FMA—H Note: Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes was a senior management
BEAAPTESHASRERE - before appointed as Executive Director on 1 April 2021.
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MERA— B 11 FINANCE COSTS - NET
—E-—F T —%F
2022 2021
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
=N Finance income
—RITFERZFBWA — Interest income on
bank deposits 19,317 17,607
B & A A Finance costs
- HEEBEZANBERAX — Interest expenses on
lease liabilities (1,082) (2,961)
—RITERZFERZ — Interest expenses on
bank borrowings (566,573) (43,481)
BEBEAEX Total finance costs (57,655) (46,442)
A A — F R Finance costs — net (38,338) (28,835)

FrigBiBA

EEFGHROCRELATBERESZ
AT R FEZE R E16.5% (=ZF
——F:16.5% ) sTiRBE o

ANEBAPBRANMK B AR AZHP
B EMESH ([CEMGH]) B
RAEETFIBEZ225% (T = —4F:
25%) MHEARBZEEKB AR E
B (&M BERAA ([E#ES &
MBI -ESEHEMNTAE TR
TETZ215% (ZEZ—F:15%)
BELEMBME EE-_T-=

+=-A=+—H-

12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong
Kong.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
subject to the China Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)
at a rate of 25% (2021: 25%) on the estimated
profits, except for Welco Technology (Suzhou)
Limited ("WTSZ"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. WTSZ is entitled to the preferential CIT
rate of 15% (2021: 15%) under the New and High
Technology Enterprises status till 31 December
2028.
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12 FiBHMAx (&)

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

FAGEWRERNAEHEEE: The amount of income tax charged to the

consolidated income statement represents:

—E=-= T —%F
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EHEH Current income tax
—BBNEBR — Hong Kong profits tax 5,169 5,949
—BHNEiTE - Overseas taxation 29,908 27,269
—BETFEEERE — Over-provision in prior years (5,799) (747)
B — R B FEM A AL Dividend withholding tax paid
M8 AR 2B 9IkIR on the distributed retained
Bz kBB profits of a PRC incorporated
subsidiary 6,543 -
BEIEFTS L (MEFE22) Deferred income tax (Note 22) 6,393 4,717
42,214 37,188
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12 FriE5%imx (&) 12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

BAAREBERMAANEZHIEAR R The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax
KAGHEERAEERMINEFSH differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

ERELENERSELNT using the weighted average tax rate applicable to

profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

—Eg-= T —
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B BT 15 35 Al KB Profit before income tax 154,650 126,662
RIE AR SRR 2 B T & Tax calculated at the domestic tax
FTE 2 BIIA rates applicable to profits in the
respective places 32,463 21,882
EEFRBERRREEDLERT%  Tax effects of associate and
HECHBEE joint ventures’ results reported,
net of tax 7,960 (5,808)
TR A X Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes 24,761 13,063
BARBIUA Income not subject to tax (22,636) (4,418)
B Bk R A — i AR B R A B S Dividend withholding tax paid or
WEARZRABFMEZ payable on the retained profits of
[i% B FE A a PRC incorporated subsidiary 13,888 -
FREAERABEBEREMEREME  Utilisation of unrecognised tax
= losses and other temporary
difference (14,120) -
WEERELEFRSHEEMNTIEEE Tax losses of which no deferred
income tax asset was
recognised 5,697 13,216
BEFEREREE Over-provision in prior years (5,799) (747)
8 i = Income tax expense 42,214 37,188
ERMEFABER2I% (ZT = — The weighted average applicable tax rate was 21%
Fi17%) ° (2021: 17%).
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13 ®RE

—ECCFR T —FEMNHRE
7 Rl B 4978 #21,533,0007T (& % 75
0.04570) I & #16,747,0007T (& &
#0.0357T) ° B R AN A A FE fE A R A
FAELERERZBEZE_ZT_—
+TZ A=+ —HALFEREREARE
A% B #0.0457T - & H 4 #21,533,000
Toot FM B mEN BRI RERN
REAIR B, ©

13 DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2022 and 2021 were
approximately HK$21,533,000 (HK$0.045 per
share) and HK$16,747,000 (HK$0.035 per share)
respectively. A final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2022 of HK$0.045 per share,
amounting to a total dividend of approximately
HK$21,533,000 will be proposed at the upcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. These
financial statements do not reflect this final
dividend payable.

—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B HERE - ERER0.027C  Interim dividend paid - HK$0.02
T —F: #%0.0157T) (2021: HK$0.015) per share 9,570 7177
BUR A HIR B — FA B #0.0457T  Proposed final dividend -
—T = —%F: 5%0.0257L) HK$0.045 (2021: HK$0.025)
per share 21,533 11,963
31,103 19,140
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14 ERER
(@ EX
FREABRMDBRARNRDES

A A R R B BL 4 PO BB AT
B BT R E -

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

—EC-_F —_E - —
2022 2021

RAGHEE AEEFE CGEETIT)  Profit attributable to owners of

the Company (HK$’000) 112,436 89,474
BEITEBRZIMEFHE (F) Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue

(in thousands) 478,484 478,484
BRATEF (BBT) Basic earnings per share (HK$) 0.23 0.19

(b) #F

MEFMEFEEZRSRET
&R A5 W EFE A EE
ZBEEE A -

(b) Diluted

No diluted earnings per share is presented
for both years because there is no dilutive
potential ordinary shares outstanding
throughout both years.
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15 ¥ -BMERRH 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
g7 EEIR HERGE  BURRE nE ait
Plant,
machinery
Construction and Furniture Motor
Buildings inprogress  equipment and fixtures vehicles Total

ARt BT ARt BRI EETn REER
HKSO0  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HK$00

RZZ-§-5-H At 1 January 2021
RAE Cost 148,604 - 891223 146,454 13511 1,109,792
2HNEREE Accumulated depreciation and
impaimment (58,334) S Me31Y (133488 (11709 (949,836)
ERSAE Net ook amount 90,270 - 14910 12,968 1808 249,056
BEZF--FHZA=t-ALER  Yearended 31 December 2021
ENEETE Opening net book amount 90,270 - 144910 12,968 1808 240956
hE Additions - 5,890 11,443 300 - 17,633
HE Disposals - - (451) - - (451)
g Depreciation 6,257) - (41,632) (4,508) 61) (02,455)
FHAEEE Currency translation offferences 1482 6 3363 7 [ 4915
EXEEEE Closing net book amount 85,49 505 117,633 8710 1745 219508
RoE--E+-f=t-8 At 31 December 2021
RAE Cost 151,426 5955 869,38 143,301 13230 1,183,310
ZHEREE Accumulated depreciation and
impaimment (65,931) - EITeY (1453 (1485 (963712)
FEFE Net book amount 85,495 5,955 117,633 8,770 1,745 219,598
BE:
BT KEIR KBREE  GAREE HE =i
Plant,
machinery
Construction and Furniture Motor
Buildings ~ inprogress  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total

BT ERTn R®Tn E®Tn RRTR RRTx
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

BE-B--E+ZAZ+-BLEE  Yearended 31 December 2022

ENGEER Opening net book amount 85,495 5055 117,633 8,770 1,745 219,598

AE Additions 975 65,784 25,989 - 8 92,756

ik Disposals - - (80) - - (80)

g Depreciafion (9,013) - (38260) (447) (45)  (47971)

EEREZE Currency translation differences (3,290) (970) (8,137) (24) - (124

FREMFE Closing net book amount 74,167 70,769 97,139 8,99 1508 251,882
R-BZZE+ZA=1-R At 31 December 2022

AE Cost 143,987 70760 828,305 142,950 13,078 1,199,089

ZHEREE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (69,820) - (181,166) (134,651) (11,570)  (947,207)

FESA Net ook amount 74,167 70,769 97,139 8,29 1508 251,882
WZZEZZF+=ZA=+—8" As at 31 December 2022, certain bank borrowings
ETHRTERHEERBEARN B are secured on buildings with carrying amount
19,734,000 ( — & = —F : & of approximately HK$19,734,000 (2021:
20,323,000 ) 2 EFIEHE R HK$20,323,000) (Note 31).
(BF3E31) °
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16 REWHE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—E- & —_E=-—

2022 2021

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

n—H—H At 1 January 2,041,508 2,052,585

N BEEEE Fair value losses (80,148) (11,700)

ERMEERE Currency translation differences (2,145) 623

R+=ZRA=+—H At 31 December 1,959,215 2,041,508
AEEREFERFEARIKREMER The Group’s interest in investment properties at
wmIZ10E50F 2 R HIME AR B - their net book values are on medium-term leases of

10 to 50 years.

WRZZEZZF+ZAR=+—8" As at 31 December 2022, certain bank borrowings
ETROTEXNBEREELZERNBE are secured on investment properties with an
1,927,000,0007C (ZF = —F : B aggregate carrying amount of approximately
2,006,000,0007T ) Z 2 & ) 3 {E K 17 HK$1,927,000,000 (2021: HK$2,006,000,000)
(PFF&E31) © (Note 31).
EXFRREMH*EBEERE: Value of investment properties shown above
comprises:
—E=-= —E=-—
2022 2021
BETT  BETR
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEEME Properties in Hong Kong 1,936,400 2,016,200
EBEBIND Properties outside Hong Kong 22,815 25,308
1,959,215 2,041,508
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16 REWE (H)

rEBZEERRE

REMEBIFREERLBEMKE
REMER_ZT_—_FR_FZ—F
TZ A=+ —B 2 hEHE R ZAD
ﬁ%%lrﬁﬁﬁ@ AT HAR
BRAEMBEE RSB BREFEUK
HEAERZE 13553 ZEWREMEZRR
BEGTEEHRINHENT

7N 5% (8] 2 B 05 1B P A B 5 R S AR T
TREVMEGHE EREEEERE
H-REAEEZRER BEEEZ
BEEREEEEMEREXFED

THEA Nk
u‘—_r af — A °

~

2B R E A S S BB
DI EIR AR BIEZBH - (£ R
oz —#5 HEKRIRE  URE
HEEED B

»E B Hﬂ}*
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The investment properties are valued semi-annually
on the direct comparison approach. The valuations
of the investment properties at 31 December 2022
and 2021 were carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, Roma Appraisals Limited, who
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The fair value measurement information
for these investment properties in accordance with
HKFRS 13 is given below.

The Group’s finance team performs the valuations
of investment properties required for financial
reporting purposes. This team reports directly
to the management. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the
management and the team at least once bi-
annually, in line with the Group’s reporting dates.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at
each reporting date valuation discussions between
the management and the team. As part of this
discussion, the team presents a report that
explains the reasons for the fair value movements.
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16 REYWE (&) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
EEBZHEBRE (&) Valuation processes of the Group
(continued)
AABEGE
Fair value measurements
WERT BEXREAM EREHR
ZHE BEfR52Y BE28
(E148) (%28) (534)
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETT BB BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERDABETE Recurring fair value measurements
R-BZZ£+ZA=1-H As at 31 December 2022 - - 1,959,215
RZEZ-E+-A=t—H As at 31 December 2021 - - 2,041,508
FR-F1R - FRREIR 2HEILE There were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2
Ei%o and Level 3 during the year.
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16 BREWE (&) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
FRAEXRELZEEZHITELRE Fair value measurements using significant
8 (ZE34k) unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Investment properties
B BEEEN @

Outside

Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
BETTL BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-E--§-8-H At 1 January 2022 2,016,200 25,308 2,041,508
MAEEER Fair value losses (79,800) (348) (80,148)
EMBEER Currency translation differences - (2,145) (2,145)
R=2=Z#+=-B=+-AH At 31 December 2022 1,936,400 22,815 1,959,215

ERFREEEELAE (RERMBEE  Total unrealised losses for the year
HAGARBRATRENEAAERE  included in the consolidated

#8H]ET) income statement for assets

held at the end of the year,

under ‘Change in fair value of

investment properties’ (79,800) (348) (80,148)
RZ2--%-A-H At 1 January 2021 2,027,900 24,685 2,052,585
MrEEER Fair value losses (11,700) - (11,700)
ERBEER Currency translation differences = 623 623
RZE-Z-F+-A=t-H At 31 December 2021 2,016,200 25,308 2,041,508

ENAEABELE (FELMBEE  Total unrealised losses for the year
SAREMERARENERAARBE  included in the consolidated

ZEIET) income statement for assets

held at the end of the year,

under ‘Change in fair value of

investment properties’ (11,700) - (11,700)
REMEZ AABEEFERAEEZELER Fair values of investment properties have been
FEHE BEFREUNAREFLAILR valued by the direct comparison approach
MEEME - WL EMRB TS LR assuming sale of the properties in their existing
[JBZALEBREERHER - states with the benefit of vacant possession and by

making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant market.
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16 R&EYE (A)

EREARBEIERSHUFEQIRE
B (534%k) (&)

BERDBRREBEARRETSLE
W I ERHEREIGRRAL 1R
HE- &2 0% BEGEREAMBEU
ZHO AR ERMEZEE LI
fHERYEGTMENAEIFELE
REMREFENEBCBERE T
B - NBHERETE BRI
FWEEMHRIT

FR-HERDAEES -

AEBERBCEHERHIEEYE 7]
WRH2EIF WHEEEAIRENY
EZIGHER ERHERERLS KA
Me - #Hz2—_T-_—_F+-_HA=+—H
IEFE - REVMEZHSWABELNAR
562,192,000t (Z 2 = —F : B K
64,030,0007T) - MABEEZ R4 A
14,738,000 (ZE - —F : BK
14,912,0007T ) °

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (continued)

The valuation has been made on the assumption
that the owners sell the properties in the open
market without the benefit of deferred term
contracts, leasebacks, joint ventures, management
agreements or any similar arrangements which
would serve to increase the values of such
properties. In addition, no account has been taken
of any option or right of pre-emption concerning
or affecting the sale of the properties and no
allowance has been made for the properties to be
sold in one lot or to a single purchaser.

There were no changes in valuation techniques
during the year.

The Group leases out the investment properties
under operating leases, for an initial period of 2 to
3 years, with an option to renew on renegotiated
terms. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the gross rental income from investment properties
amounted to approximately HK$62,192,000 (2021:
HK$64,030,000) and related direct outgoings
amounted to approximately HK$14,738,000 (2021:
HK$14,912,000).
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17 A&

AR IR WA AAEANE
R -

AEEBHELZHEMETZRERE
BAZET - BIBEESEE-HE—K
ElE AB2E 154

() FEMBRAKXRFHDER

TREAMBRRARIIRAT

17 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the
Group is a lessee.

The Group leases a number of premises mainly for
use as factories, office premises, staff quarters and
warehouses. The leases are typically made for fixed
periods from 2-15 years.

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial

HEEFHENEEHE: position shows the following amounts relating
to leases:
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets
THE T 4 b R Leasehold land and land use rights 79,288 83,539
T &EF Factories and buildings 40,389 48,396
119,677 131,935
HEAE Lease liabilities
mE Current 18,914 20,804
FETRED Non-current 19,419 26,312
38,333 47,116

TE U BREEARENEE
31,926,0007C (=& = — 4 :
B 44,788,000 ) Y F A

REBE_T-_—_F+_-_A=+—H
EFERN - KEEFHEEWE
B-AEBEERBEE BEHE
FREEEY A B®16,142,000
ThkEBEEGBEBINNAB
¥16,974,000c - REZE = F
T+ -_A=Z=+—HItEFE
W EEKEREE-

m_v__¢+ A=+—8"
ETFRTEFHEAEALNE
55,222,000 (— & = — 4 :
7 56,870,000t ) 2 EF AEE
EEVEH A (KIRE31) o

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

Additions to the right-of-use assets during
the 2022 financial year were HK$31,926,000
(2021: HK$44,788,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group modified leases with right-of-use assets
amounted to approximately HK$16,142,000
and lease liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$16,974,000 under the mutual agreement
with landlord. No lease modification was made
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, certain bank
borrowings are secured on right-of-use assets
with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$55,222,000 (2021: HK$56,870,000) (Note 31).
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17 & (&) 17 LEASES (continued)
(i) HERZRIPNEERESE (i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement
el maRIIIATEAS The consolidated income statement shows the
AR e following amounts relating to leases:
—E-= T4
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRAEEENITEX Y Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets
THE £ i & 4t (5 A 4 Leasehold land and land use rights 2,238 2,262
T REF Factory and buildings 21,722 21,720
23,960 23,982
MERX (GFAREKAE) Interest expense (included in
finance costs) 1,082 2,961
EHEEHHEENHY Expenses relating to short-term
(FTAEMEERE) leases (included in other
operating expenses) 1,283 2,690
2,365 5,651
TR FHEAGBMNHRESRD The total cash outflow for lease liabilities
4858 A 21 322 0000 (=& in 2022 was HK$21,322,000 (2021:
——% : B¥20,782,0007T) ° HK$20,782,000).
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18 BEQTNRE

18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

—E_-= —EF - —
2022 2021
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
& NARIRE Investments in associates
—EhEEFE — Share of net assets - 26,583

EIEEEFEZSHNT

Movements in share of net assets is as follows:

—ZE—-— —EF -
2022 2021
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
w—HA—8 At 1 January 26,583 25,719
f&x 2 Dividend (3,819) (2,441)
MR E AR (BE),/FH Share of (loss)/profit of
an associate (4,170) 3,128
RAEDE —HEE 272 W Gains on deemed disposal of
an associate 14,956 -
JElE—EBE AR EBREEE Share of currency translation
differences of an associate (389) 182
EAR AR EBEAFAEMZEBAR Transfer to financial assets at
TREE fair value through other
comprehensive income (33,161) -
R+—A=+—8H At 31 December - 26,583
JA S —_E-—%+=A As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
=t—H AEERNUTIELTEE had interests in the following principal associates,
G N RIEARER which are unlisted:
NEER S ALt RERERLA TEEH SHEEE
Proportion of Measurement
Name of company Place of incorporation ownership interest % Principal activity method
—E-CE —E--F
2022 2021
NEEERERERERAT REHS - 9.04 REER &
(MBERARERERRRA)
(MhE%eEr]) (K 2k3)
B.Duck Semk Holdings International Limited Cayman Islands Investment holding Equity
(formerly known as Semk Holdings
International Limited)
("B.DUCK SEMK”) (Notes 1, 2 and 3)
ERERARERAR ([BREBER]) Re¥s - 1099 EELX Es
(B R2)
Semk International Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Inactive Equity

("SIHL") (Notes 1 and 2)
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18 BEARMNKRE (K)

CEIR

GEZE

GEZE

RZZ-_—F+-HA= + H rEBER
BEE-—# ) EBRARRABRRERE
%@%$ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ&éﬁ%
BERFEN-

RZB-_—F—A-+0R EREEE
RREEEERD  AEERERBREER
HEEAR10%EE10.99% R T - —F=
A+hB EFXFZEHK(2EERE N
BARREERIREER) BAKENE
BEAZROMEEE )\ EBER - R
T —FZA-+AA EEEEERNI
E%n&ﬁim$%lnm¢ﬁ%%ﬁz
BH-BAit AEBER)DEHRERZ Ea
59.37%  MERBERIERAEELSE /)
HWERASIAFREE MAEER/)E
BER I ESN_BE_—FE+_A=1+—
A#EE0.04% - E%B EREER

2::¢7H+t5%§%$x%tﬁo
RN EBRERAZERTE EMEE—TEE
B7.96% ANBREKEHINHEBEZR
FPTEEREREARIEREE -2

—ZHENAtTZHRBRER -ARNEEKE
bﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&l%$k§$ﬁﬁ%

%Eﬁ%ﬂ %ﬁ'ﬂ%¢%%%§&%
Eﬁ@h&%iﬁ$%@%%%@?oﬁ
R BAEER NEHRERREREE
ﬁk%&ﬁﬂﬁ?““ﬁﬁﬁAﬁﬁiﬁ
WARESREEAR-

NEBER _7_2¢+ H+ B
B RIREERAT -EMBAR T 2R
FACEREXTLRETASREMER-

18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

Note 1: The Group had the right to appoint one director to the
Board of B.DUCK SEMK and SIHL as at 31 December
2021. Therefore the Group was regarded as having
significant influence in these investees.

Note 2: On 25 January 2021, SIHL repurchased its shares and the
Group'’s interests in SIHL increased from 10% to 10.99%.
On 19 March 2021, its principal activity, including provision
of licensing services business operating through a
subsidiary was transferred to B.DUCK SEMK by receiving
shares of B. DUCK SEMK in return. On 29 March 2021,
SIHL distributed the shares of B.DUCK SEMK to the Group
by distribution in specie. Thereafter, the Group’s interests
in B.DUCK SEMK was 9.37% and SIHL became inactive.
B.DUCK SEMK introduced new investors and the Group’s
interests in B.DUCK SEMK was diluted to 9.04% as at 31
December 2021. Subsequently, B.DUCK SEMK was listed
on Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 17 January 2022. The
interests in B.DUCK SEMK was further diluted to 7.96%
after listing. Our representative tendered his resignation
as a non-executive director of B.DUCK SEMK and as a
director of SIHL with effect from 13 September 2022.
As a result of the Group’s loss of representation on the
board of directors of B.DUCK SEMK and SIHL, its ability
to exercise significant influence over B.DUCK SEMK and
SIHL was lost, thus B.DUCK SEMK and SIHL ceased
to be associates of the Group. Henceforth, the Group’s
investment in B.DUCK SEMK and SIHL is accounted for as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Note 3: B. DUCK SEMK was incorporated on 10 December 2020
as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the character licensing business and
e-commerce and the other business.
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18 BELATNKRE (&) 18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

AEBEEEBE AR Z WS 28 The Group’s share of revenue and results of its
FEEEEMBEBNT associates and the assets and liabilities, are as
follows:

—E-= T —4F
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
MEE Total assets - 409,982
BBE Total liabilities - (115,917)
EEFE Net assets = 294,065
RZE-_—_F—A—H= Revenue for the period from
ZEZFNA+T=H 1 January 2022 to
(REEAFENER) 13 September 2022
i FEHKE (date of loss of significant
influence)/for the year 111,521 290,730
RZEBE-_—_F—H—H= (Loss)/profit for the period from
—EZFNA+=H 1 January 2022 to
(REXERFENER) 13 September 2022
HMFEH (B18) /B (date of loss of significant
influence)/for the year (52,414) 34,548
MBRERNBELR Reconciliation of summarised financial
information
FIEMmPBEREBRERNTNIRE 2 Reconciliation of the financial information presented
BREECHER to the carrying amount of its interests in the
associates.
—E-= T —F
2022 2021
BHEET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Rt+—_A=+—HZEEZFE Net assets at 31 December = 294,065
FEIEEEFE@ 9.04% Share of net assets @ 9.04% - 26,583

HE-_Z-_—_FALA+=8H Share of (loss)/profit of an
HEZHIEFERWGE B associate up to 13 September
AR (EE) /FlEe 7.96% 2022/for the year @ 7.96%
—EFE T —9:9.04%) (2021: 9.04%)
(4,170) 3,123
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EELENER 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
—E-F T —%F
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEEEFE Share of net assets 1,001,980 1,046,053
ERTAEEDLE Loans to joint ventures 1,056,132 1,095,402
2,058,112 2,141,455
ELHEEFEZEE WO T Movements in share of net assets is analysed as
follows:
—E-= T —%F
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
n—A—H At 1 January 1,046,053 1,013,979
EheErE (BR) FH Share of (losses)/profits of joint
ventures (44,073) 32,074
WR+—RA=+—H At 31 December 1,001,980 1,046,053
RZE-—F+_A=+—H &&H As at 31 December 2022, the Group had interests
RATHELITEBELENEERRES in the following principal joint ventures, which are
unlisted:
NAER RIERES RERRERLA TEEH BENE FREE
Place of Proportion of Principal Nature of the Measurement
Name of company incorporation ownership interest % activities relationship method
—EC-CE —E--%
2022 2021
EBBARNS RERR first s
Talent Chain Investments Limited BVI 35.7 35.7 Investment Note Equity
(Note) ( FizH) holding
BRREAGRAA (M) EE EST] st i’
Crown Opal Investment Limited (Note) Hong Kong 35.7 35.7 Property holding ~ Note Equity
EBEARES NERE il g
Open Vantage Limited BVI 35.7 35.7 Property N/A Equity
investment
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19 fEENER (H)

Talent Chain Investments LimitedZ &
MBARITREEBRARNEDES
BEB -MEEBERAUNREENS
¥RBF HOE0ERAZEE-R=F
T+ A=+—HB WAEBOMN
8% (ZFT = —F:98%)ENEAEE
b/ e

Talent Chain Investments Limited»
B & B R A A &Open Vantage
Limited & A A R] - H A& {7 I #& 7] B
1SS WE-

RTIINHEEERIHMBERBRE -

19 INTERESTS
(continued)

IN JOINT VENTURES

Note: Crown Opal Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary

of Talent Chain Investments Limited, is engaged in the
business of property holding. The property project represents
the holding of a commercial building in Kwun Tong, which
comprises 20-storey of office floors. As at 31 December
2022, 98% (2021: 98%) of the office portion were classified
as investment properties.

Talent Chain Investments Limited, Crown Opal
Investment Limited and Open Vantage Limited are
private companies and there is no quoted market
price available for their shares.

Set out below is the summarised financial
information for joint ventures.

Talent Chain
Investments Limited a5
(Note i) ( K3i) Open Vantage Limited Total
—g--f -E--F C-E-ZE  -F--% CZE-CE  -E--E
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
BT BETT BETR BRI BRI BETT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£E ASSETS
ERE Non-current
REmE (W) Investment properties (Note i) 6,570,508 6,868,004 17,900 18500 6,588,408 6,886,504
knpaEe® Toalnon-curent assets 6570508 6868004 17900 18500 6588408 6,886,504
it Qurrent
ROREEE  Todorenasls 19406 626 B B 10 1762
A LIABILITIES
g Current
ERESEFRAMTHASE  Trade payable and other curent
(TBEEEE) liabilties (excluding financial
liabltes) (152,080)  (149,659) (158) (405)  (152,238)  (150,058)
nHEEEE Total current liabilties (152,080) (149,653 (158) (405)  (152,288)  (150,058)
E i) Non-current
SHEE Financial liabilties (3,366,228)  (3,476,229) (4,015) (4015 (3,370,243)  (3,480,244)
EGE L Other non-current liabliies (453343  (502,444) - - (453343  (502,444)
*RpoFeR Total non-curtent [eolites | @81957) (3978679 | (015 | (4015)  (3,625,986)  (3962,688)
EEEE Net assets 2,792,883 2,915,974 13,785 14,145 2,806,668 2,930,119
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AECENER (&) 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
Talent Chain
Investments Limited 45
(Note i) (Hi&Ei) Open Vantage Limited Total
—“g--f -E--E C-E-ZE  -F--% CZE-CE  -E--E
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
BT BETT BT BETT BRI BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wi Revenue 197,671 194,313 364 3 198,035 194,624
BeRY Operating expenses (47,379) (40,715) (110) (132) (47,489) (40,847)
TRRE% Administrative expenses (120) 97) (14) (13) (134) (110)
RENELLBEED Change in fair value of investment properties — (297,586) (45,866) (600) (2000~ (298,186) (48,066)
BESLEE (BR)/FE  (Loss)profit fom continuing operation (147,414) 107,635 (360) (34) (147,774) 107,601
fEhEs/ (F2) Income tax credit/(expense) 24,323 (17,760) - - 24,323 (17,760)
REASHAREOZENR (Loss)/profit after income tax from
(BR)/TE continuing operation (123,091) 89,875 (360) (34 (123451) 89,841
L ON Other comprenensive income - - - - - -
2E(BB)/ MALE Total comprehensive (loss)/income (123,091) 89,875 (360) (34 (123451) 89,841
Bt 5 Notes:
(i) ZEeBERREEMBRARZEATBER - (i) The amount represents the consolidated financial information
with its subsidiary.
iy HREVWEZLAAEBHEEHBILGEMUAR (i) Fair values of investment properties have been valued by
BHERERBRAEREEGEE BEREE independent valuer with the direct comparison approach and
MERRRBEZRINAEIMR- income capitalisation approach. The investment properties are
classified as Level 3 in fair value hierarchy.
MBRERNBELR Reconciliation of summarised financial
information
FTEmBEREeEhEER 2R Reconciliation of the financial information presented
H B2 %R to the carrying amount of its interests in the joint
ventures.
—Eg=-= T —
2022 2021
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
R—A—RBAZEEFE Net assets at 1 January 2,930,119 2,840,278
FE (BB, /FE (Loss)/profit for the year (123,451) 89,841
R+ZA=+T—RAZEEFE Net assets at 31 December 2,806,668 2,930,119
BEPECRERELREE Interests in joint ventures and
FE@ 35.7% share of net assets @ 35.7% 1,001,980 1,046,053
RS E (BE),/ Share of (losses)/profits of joint
FE@ 35.7% ventures @ 35.7% (44,073) 32,074
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19

e ENER (H)

MBEEMBENR (F)

EXTRLEXA/EEAR RENMBA
RAX+—_EABE HEEARENE
Hitget KELBUARERGEDLE
KREFRZ BN -EFRA MEE
CERHKZEFNEREEZEAAE
BEREF - ZFoRNBEE.

R-ZB-_—F+-_A=+—H0 &K&EH
WHEBBEEGEDLECEREKERKIA
BE-

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

19 INTERESTS

IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial
information (continued)

The loans to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-
free and will not be repaid in the coming twelve
months. They represent the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investments in the joint ventures. The Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of the loans to
the joint ventures approximate their fair values. The
amounts are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has no capital
commitments nor contingent liabilities related to
the joint ventures.
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20 SUBSIDIARIES

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H8 ZK Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31
BARZHBLT: December 2022 are as follows:
NRER A L3 B BEARBRRE AEERERRERAAL TEER
Percentage of equity
Place of Issued and fully paid interest attributable
Name of company incorporation share capital to the Group Principal activities
—E-_-F C—E--F
2022 2021
RERAREE  STET REER
Bollardbay Limited BVI US$357 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBABREE  BE10R REER
Catel (B.V.I.) Limited BVI HK$110 100% 100%  Investment holding
HEAERLA B BB NERE
Easywise Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property holding
Mg Mg EYERES
Elite Sourcing Pte. Ltd. Singapore S$1 100% 100%  Electronic products
trading
KBEXERRA B0 Bon REBRRIEREER
BRAGNAKE
Siu Wai Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding and
acting as an agent
for its immediate
holding company
FLERAF B0 7%1,000,0007C REER
Top Plenty Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
ABABREE  1En REER
Ubiquitous International Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
e 2,500,000% 7 RESTEM
Welco Technology Vietnam Company Vietnam US$2,500,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
Limited manufacturing
ESRE (BN ERAR M 9,000,000% 7T HEBTER
Welco Technology (Suzhou) Limited? PRC US$9,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
manufacturing
ERTRME (R ERAR hE 30,000,000% 7 HEETER
Welco Wong's Technology (Shenzhen) PRC US$30,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
Limited? manufacturing
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20 B~ A (&) 20 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
NAER MR BEATRARRE rEEEGERAEZEAL  TEER
Percentage of equity
Place of Issued and fully paid interest attributable
Name of company incorporation share capital to the Group Principal activities
—E-CF -
2022 2021
Mg T EfERES
Wellink Dynamics Pte. Ltd. Singapore S$1 100% 100%  Electronic products
trading
ERRE CRIDERR =) HE 7,500,000% 7T HEETEM
Wellop Technology (Shenzhen) Limited* PRC US$7,500,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
manufacturing
IREFERLA 0 7 %1,000,0007C EfERES
Wong’s Electronics Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
trading
IRIX (RE)ERAT 0 75 #5007 REBR
Wong’s Industrial (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong HK$500 100% 100%  Investment holding
AX 20,000,008 HERTISHE
Wong'’s International Japan Inc. Japan JPY20,000,000 100% 100%  Sales and marketing
xH 10,000% 7 5 hE
Wong'’s International USA Corporation United States of US$10,000 100% 100%  Marketing
America
IRRBRERDA B0 1007 EFERES
Wong's Strategic Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Electronic products
trading
tORBRBUEE  WARAINEBERE- # The company is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise under PRC
law.
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(&)

ERINEHAEBEEBEATEL
EAEBITERDEEFE T EM
BRR ARAEZRAEEEERER
A HIIEMHNE AR 2BF BB
DItk

HE—_T-_—"F+_-_A=+—HLHF
& B RE - BB A B B 2 3
TEREAR-

BRAaABEFAHMGEERA
MEMEE

) BRAAEESFAHMEERA
NEMEE2TE

BRARBEFAEMEZEEAR
THEERRAIFFIEEENR
AiEz BARKEC R )5 MR
PRy /1 R 3R 30 3 328 122 5 L 10 bt S EE'J
NER - ZEFEFDRERE B
AEER B D BEBERMME-

20 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

21

The above lists the principal subsidiaries which
principally affected the results or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Company’s Directors and the Group’s
management, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital
in issue at any time during the year ended 31
December 2022.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

(i) Classification of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income comprise equity
securities which are not held for trading, and
which the Group has irrevocably elected at
initial recognition to recognise in this category.
These are strategic investments and the
Group considers this classification to be more
relevant.
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(i) RAAEBEEFAHMBEZERA
HRERE

BRARBEFAEMGLZEEA
M RERE B EIA T ERRE

Bt AHMZ2EU A 21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
E

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

(ii) Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income comprise the following
individual investments:

JE #E R

— = —

—_— =

—E-—F T —%F
2022 2021
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000

EFHRAES Listed equity securities
—REELE™ — Listed in Hong Kong 138,494 53
—RAEBEI LT — Listed outside Hong Kong 13 17
JELTRAEFEH Unlisted equity securities 20,109 15,453
158,616 15,523
EWEETE Market value of listed securities 138,507 70
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EMED Non-current 158,538 15,470
mE Current 78 53
st Total 158,616 15,523

2 _F+A=+—HIHF
ZAABEFAHEME2EYK
AMETMEEZCANEE
#10,067,0007T W 5+ A H At 2 WA
75 ¥2,686,0007T) ©

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

The changes in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income
of HK$10,067,000 (2021: HK$2,686,000) was
recognised in other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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22 EEFBHREE (AE) 22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES)
WTREEFMSHEERBELEMSH The analysis of deferred income tax assets and
BEST: deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:
—E-CF —E=-—
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEMEREE Deferred income tax assets 19,662 21,807
RIEFRENHEE Deferred income tax liabilities (81,070) (71,809)
EEHEEEFE Net deferred tax liabilities (61,408) (50,002)
ELEEHERE Eaazam T : The movements on the deferred income tax

account is as follows:

—_Eg:=-= —EF=-—
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
w—HA—H At 1 January (50,002) (42,835)
RiEE R ER (MFE12) Recognised in the consolidated
income statement (Note 12) (6,393) (4,717)
REMEEBRARER Recognised in other comprehensive
income (3,525) (2,978)
BB E =R Currency translation differences (1,488) 528
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December (61,408) (50,002)
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22 Jf 5E Fit BHEE (BfE) 22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/

(&)

m

REF A E — BT 2 R 0R AT -
EEFEHEERABRERZ B

-

(LIABILITIES) (continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets
and liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

EEFTEREE

Deferred income tax assets:

fFETAR
HRHENE B BB REER AEBE ag
Decelerated tax Government Fair value of
depreciation Provision grant Taxloss  derivative Total
BEfT  BETR BEfT  BETT  RETR B%Tx
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZEZ-%-f-H At 1 January 2021 8,290 10,761 4104 564 4,387 28,106
REAMERIA/ (1K) Creolted/(charged) to the
consolidated income statement 3,378 (1,010) (1,389) - - 985
REBZENADR Charged to the other comprehensive
income - - - - (2,978) (2,978)
EEAEEE Currency translation diferences 262 246 84 - - 592
RZE--£+ZA=1-H  At31 December 2021 11,930 9,007 2,805 564 1,409 26,705
REAUEERITA/ (MIB)  Credited/(charged) to the
consolidated income statement 3,140 2,213 (1,329) - - 4,024
REMZEARANR Charged to the other
comprehensive income - - - - (1,409) (1,409)
EMREEE Currency translation differences (1,140) (889) (193) - - (2,229)
RZF-ZETZA=1-H  At31 December 2022 13,930 11,321 1,283 564 - 27,098
BEEMEHRAE: Deferred income tax liabilities:
NELR fTEIR
NERERE EEE RERNH MEE ag
Fair value
Accelerated tax  adjustment on Dividend Fair value of
depreciation properties  withholding tax ~ derivative Total
AT BETT ASEfr  E¥Tn BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
R-E--%F-F—-A At 1 January 2021 (8,981) (61,960) - - (70,941)
REARERNR Charged to the consolidated income
statement (5,702) - - - (5,702)
ERBEER Currency translation differences (64) - - - (64)
RZZ--F+ZB=+-R  At31 December 2021 (14,747) (61,960) - - (76,707)
REAREZ (1) /A (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
income statement (4,689) 1,617 (7,345) - (10,417)
REMZERANR Charged to the other comprehensive
income - - - (2,116) (2,116)
ENBEER Currency translation differences 479 5 255 - 734
RZBZZE+ZR=1-H At 31 December 2022 (18,957) (60,343) (7,090) (2,116) (88,506)
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2 EXEFMBHEE  (AE)

(&

BEIEFTS I E E T A FE B RE B 1E M) 2
a] B8 3 1B R 2R FE SR B R B =38 W b
S s HEEBRETER R_Z
T ZF+ZA=+—H XKEAANU
EIHRRAM B 2 Gt RE A IEEIE
#) 5B ¥5287,079,0007T ( — T = — 4
75 #5305,780,0007T ) © A i iR 7% 55 4
o MIBEBEEB RRERB AN EER
EABEMNENORE NS SR
HEEEREENEEE - BAWES
N A B I8 B 1B 40 8 % 268,336,0007T
(ZZF = —4F : % ¥235,978,0007T) AJ
EEHLE MAPBRMNBRRNTIEE
1B 478 #19,195,000TC (=& = —F:
75 #69,407,0007T ) BIJ 7 7R 2R PO 4F 7] 4
EW(ZE-—F :RAF)-

RZEBE-_—_F+_A=+—8B " #R¥
f B A AR S B9 BB R RI A R TR AR
BABENBENREREERIBEGES
7,090,000 (ZE=-—F:8)H
AABETFTRARZMALZ B R A
HIF R R D IRIRE B FERELER B
BE RARD KBRS KRER
FAggEP R - RZEZZF+=H
=+—8  REE R BT Y
BRralaRBEB R RREF BB
#1,206,211,0007C (Z T = —F : B*
1,218,682,0007T) ° 3t B K 2 2
B ARMD IR B 2EABENMRE
N F5%ZE10% °

22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/

(LIABILITIES) (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2022, the Group has estimated unused tax
losses of approximately HK$287,079,000 (2021:
HK$305,780,000) available for offsetting against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses as the
realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profit from these tax loss carry-
forwards is not probable. The tax losses amounted
to approximately HK$268,336,000 (2021:
HK$235,978,000) from Hong Kong subsidiaries can
be carried forward indefinitely and the tax losses
amounted to approximately HK$19,195,000 (2021:
HK$69,407,000) from PRC subsidiaries can be
carried forward in coming four years (2021: five
years).

As at 31 December 2022, deferred tax liability of
HK$7,090,000 (2021: Nil) has been recognised in
respect of the withholding tax on the undistributed
retained profits of a PRC incorporated subsidiary
and no deferred tax liability recognised for the
remaining undistributed retained earnings of certain
PRC incorporated subsidiaries as the distribution of
the remaining undistributed retained earnings is not
probable. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s
PRC incorporated subsidiaries have approximately
HK$1,206,211,000 (2021: HK$1,218,682,000)
undistributed retained profits in aggregate. The
applicable withholding tax rate on dividend
distributed by PRC incorporated subsidiaries is
ranged from 5% to 10%.
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23 8 23 INVENTORIES
—E-CF —_E=-—
2022 2021
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
R K Raw materials 345,534 290,691
8 Work in progress 60,345 28,278
LYK o Finished goods 81,310 69,518
487,189 388,487

BE-_FT-_—_Fft+-A=+—HL
FE - FEEBEE®14,836,0007T
(ZEZ—F : FEREROEBE
1,291,00070) E4r & W= R AH [FT
FRAZRERMEBEREm] ER -

24 EXEHMERE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
provision for inventories of HK$14,836,000
(2021: reversal of provision for inventories of
HK$1,291,000) was recognised in ‘raw materials
and consumables used’ in the consolidated income
statement.

24 STOCK OF COMPLETED PROPERTIES

—_sg:=-= —EF=-—
2022 2021
BHEET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
n—A—H At 1 January 213,410 213,410
MRE KD EGTE 2 BB Provision for write-down of
stock of completed properties (9,800) -
R+=Z—HAH=+—8H At 31 December 203,610 213,410
ETKMEFERRE: Stock of completed properties comprised:
—E-CF —E=-—
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
PEERANEEN Commercial office units 183,260 193,060
B Car parking space 20,350 20,350
203,610 213,410

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R



24

25

e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EXRYEFE (K)

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H B%K
MEGFERBHMREBD  Wiga #
IR % E 78 203,610,000 (=& = —
& #213,410,0007T ) BB - B
HE-_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHF
& 2 iR A W = T R OB B S
9,800,000 (ZE = —F : &) - B 5%

24 STOCK OF COMPLETED PROPERTIES

(continued)

As at 31 December 2022, stock of completed
properties are all located in Hong Kong and
carried at net realisable value amounted to
HK$203,610,000 (2021: HK$213,410,000) and
provision for write-down of HK$9,800,000 (2021:
Nil) was recognised in the consolidated income
statement during the year ended 31 December

EKMEFECERERASEERZ 2022. The stock of completed properties were
AR o (FIFE31) © pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings
(Note 31).

FEWE Z R 25 TRADE RECEIVABLES
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
BHEET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEWE 5 BR R Trade receivables 1,074,905 1,006,175
R EWE SRR RERE Less: allowance for impairment
of trade receivables (3,468) (3,100)
1,071,437 1,003,075

AEBRHRTEFIEPZ2HREHEEN
T30BE120H 7% B & WELE
Al F| & o

AEEXRERTEEERER - —REE
HE—=2=ERA -BURFHYEES
EEB AEBRAEFEREITHE
WK 2 B IE  UREEERE -
AEBYERERESRRERTR
THERRIXKAEMEERAE
Mo mREBEABTER R BELER -
EWE SRR TITETE o

The credit period allowed by the Group to its trade
customers mainly ranges from 30 days to 120 days
and no interest is charged.

A defined credit policy is maintained within the
Group. The general credit terms range from one
to three months. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
its credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Overdue balances are
regularly reviewed by senior management. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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25 EWE SR (&) 25

AEERWEZHRFREZAM K

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables by

BROTnT: invoice date is as follows:
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
BT T BEET T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
0%Z60H 0 - 60 days 657,007 700,265
61290H 61 — 90 days 204,214 175,039
EB3iE90H Over 90 days 213,684 130,871
1,074,905 1,006,175

REBEEREL YRS L FEHR
AAERBEEBE B TE B
B R 5 RS0 A TR A 1R B
oM E31(b) iR B BB E
ZlE e

FEWE 2R 2 FRE(ER A A EBERE -

AREBEEWE ZERFATINEHFE:

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about
the calculation of the allowance.

The carrying amount of trade receivables
approximate their fair values.

The Group’s trade receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

—E-= —E-—F

2022 2021

BET T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

e United States dollar 608,466 483,298
AR Chinese renminbi 441,001 497,555
H Japanese yen 1,028 -
ikt Hong Kong dollar 24,410 25,322
1,074,905 1,006,175
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26 EANFRE PR EMEWERF 26 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
—E-= —F -

2022 2021

BETT BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BEEEZIZS Deposits for fixed assets 12,021 14,496

EfRFE Prepayments for inventories 12,273 21,978

JiE Wi 5B B Value added tax receivables 6,468 10,195

W ERES Effective rent receivable 67 198
He BEBRAXKEERZRS Rental, management and

utility deposit 6,782 5,539

FE SR 17 F) B U A Bank interest income receivables 6,739 6,277

b e W BR R IR TR AN 5RIA Other receivables and prepayments 64,662 68,434

109,012 127,117

B FEMENED D Less: non-current portion (18,843) (20,0835)

T E B 1D Current portion 90,169 107,082

BNFE e REMEREFTAT

JI g EHE

The prepayments, deposits and other receivables

are denominated in the following currencies:

—E_-= —EF - —
2022 2021
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR Chinese renminbi 65,399 65,765
e United States dollar 2,150 10,593
ke Hong Kong dollar 36,940 37,787
H Japanese yen 1,314 3,789
MEE Vietnam dong 2,002 8,909
Eh Others 1,207 274
109,012 127,117
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27 BERBAELESEY "HEIT 27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
FREZREEREE SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH

—E-C T4
2022 2021
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEBES Cash on hand 385 369
RITER Cash at bank 544,152 400,449
ReMBRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 544,537 400,818
REBARBB=-EAZ Short-term bank deposits with
RERITIE original maturity over three
months 546,736 877,757
ZRGIR Restricted cash 125,757 136,320
BekRE&EEY REETT Cash and cash equivalents,
EREkZBERe short-term bank deposits and
restricted cash 1,217,030 1,414,895
ReLBEeEFEY BHRTERK Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
SXBREIBESUA T EEETE: deposits and restricted cash were denominated in
the following currencies:
—E-CF —_E=-—
2022 2021
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
e Hong Kong dollar 90,507 32,507
AR ¥ Chinese renminbi 802,840 906,756
E7T United States dollar 317,447 468,202
Hith Others 6,236 7,430
1,217,030 1,414,895
RITERZMETHERFEFNER The weighted average effective interest rate on
271% (ZZFE=-—%:2.18%) ° bank deposits was 2.71% (2021: 2.18%) per
annum.
RITFRZERSARITERANEZ Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based
FE)F R BREUF B o on daily bank deposit rates.
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RehkReEEY BHRT
FREZRHRE (F)

BOIER ERHRERUARZREIES
,%’l% 096,670,0007C (ZZE = —F:
7 #1,279,697,0007T ) Ty A R B
B HABTEMIIEEZRE - ZF
EHINEE TR EH I EHREK L A
ESHRG  TREEBE MBS -

RZEZZF+ZRA=+—H &%
125,757,000 (ZE = —F : B
136,320,0007C) T ZE ARIRITHFAE
EARR—MESHNB AR RERITR
iéiﬁ’ﬂsﬁﬁé’];l?ﬁ%ur%k R HI R &
Bea_T_=FNAE_FT_F

27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

Cash at bank,
restricted cash of HK$1,096,670,000 (2021:
HK$1,279,697,000) are held in China and are
subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provide
for restrictions on exporting capital from the
country, other than through normal dividends.

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (continued)

short-term deposits and

As at 31 December 2022, HK$125,757,000 (2021:
HK$136,320,000) are mainly restricted deposits
held at bank as reserve for banking facility granted
to a subsidiary in Hong Kong. The restricted
cash will mature from June 2023 to April 2024

: June 2022 to November 2022), and are

WMA(ZEZ—F: 2= XA denominated in Chinese renminbi or Vietnam Dong.
ETC_F+-A)EH AT UAA
R MEETE-
TEEmIA 28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
—E-C —E-_—fF
2022 2021
BE =N BE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BET T BET R AT T BB T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
X B RELR Interest rate swap —
cash flow hedge
ik Current - - - 8,543
FERE Non-current 21,435 8,613 - -
e Total 21,435 8,613 - 8,543

TETAERELELFRSZMIER
1 o

AEMNEXEHEOR T -
TZAZ+—BZEEA 2B REY

1,500,000,0007C (Z & = — E B
1,000,000,0007T) °

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging
purposes and not as speculative investments.

The notional principal amount of the outstanding
interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2022
was HK$1,500,000,000 (2021: HK$1,000,000,000).
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28

29

fTEemIT A (&)

RZEZZFR_FT-_—F+=H
=t+t—H FENERERAGAO/FEY
FIZE A K A NN RS
HRET-_BAARNLEE E25 5
NBEESABE - FERTH X
HEea T _AFE_ZT-_+tF
SR F I ZEIF) A

AEEAEEACREH N ZETER

HAKFE210 - BEAEEMTETIAERA
BEMBZHEMRERBL2HM:E3.3

B E 5 IR

AREBENESERLKBREQH K
AR B UNNE

28

29

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all interest rate
swap contracts meet the hedging criteria. They are
presented as current assets or liabilities if they are
expected to be settled within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period. The outstanding
interest rate swaps will mature from 2025 to 2027
(2021: 2022).

The Group’s accounting policy for its cash flow
hedges is set out in Note 2.10. For information
about the methods and assumptions used in
determining the fair value of derivatives please refer
to Note 3.3.

TRADE PAYABLES

Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables by
invoice date is as follows:

—E-= —_E -
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
0£60H 0 - 60 days 573,875 488,570
61£290H 61 — 90 days 61,937 86,087
B @90 H Over 90 days 74,705 84,338
710,517 658,995
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29 TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

following currencies:

The Group’s trade payables are denominated in the

—ZE=-= —EF-—

2022 2021

BET T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

o Hong Kong dollar 101,183 102,275

AR Chinese renminbi 125,865 133,635

ETT United States dollar 456,732 400,552

H Japanese yen 6,882 4,950

BT Euro 17,708 17,268

HE A Vietnam dong 2,147 295

Hty Others - 20

710,517 658,995

30 EtEARHEMEMNERX 30 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
—E=-= —E=-—

2022 2021

BET T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

JEETE B A& R AR Accrued employee benefit costs 102,885 115,803

H b eI IR Other tax payables 18,190 17,513

JEETME R RFEEFEER Accrued freight, delivery and

storage charges 12,267 13,935

JEEt AREEER Accrued utilities charges 1,772 1,870

EETE IS Accrued construction payables 29,849 19,272
B 8 BY AR B8 RO IR JE U A Deferred income in relation to

government grant 5,294 11,675

Hib Others 59,001 54,902

229,258 234,870

B IEmENE S Less: non-current portion - (5,788)

mENE D Current portion 229,258 229,082
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30 ExtERRHEMWENEKS (&Z) 30 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

(continued)

AEERFERREMBENERTIAT
JIEHEETHE

The Group’s accruals and other payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

—E-CF —E=-—
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
AR Chinese renminbi 82,110 102,400
B Hong Kong dollar 105,248 93,897
E7T United States dollar 30,201 35,623
MEE Vietnam dong 11,358 2,627
H Japanese yen 73 75
Hit Others 268 248
229,258 234,870
31 BX 31 BORROWINGS
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERCUURIRITE R K Trust receipt bank loans, unsecured 443,564 325,806
RERTER BRI Short-term bank loans, unsecured 224,000 226,000
MERTTER . BEA Short-term bank loans, secured 115,000 115,000
SHEREREEERD Long-term bank loans which
RHRITER  GET contains a repayment on demand
clause, secured 58,405 -
o REBITER Portion of long-term bank loans
R—FERNEE BEF due for repayment within one
year, secured 111,705 107,358
o RAEBITEN Portion of long-term bank loans
R—FREE BHEE due for repayment after one year,
secured 1,070,294 1,301,554
#E R Total borrowings 2,022,968 2,075,718
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31 EXR(&E) 31 BORROWINGS (continued)
—E—-= T —%F
2022 2021
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
IERB Non-current 1,070,294 1,301,554
T Ep Current 952,674 774,164
HER Total borrowings 2,022,968 2,075,718

R-ZE-_—_F+=-A=+—H &%

BERZEBEBRWT:

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowings
were repayable as follows:

—E-= T —%F

2022 2021

BET T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

1F R Within 1 year 952,674 774,164
15224 Between 1 and 2 years 568,544 485,825
2E 5 Between 2 and 5 years 501,750 815,729
BE R Total borrowings 2,022,968 2,075,718

RZE_—_F+_A=+—H B
1,355,404,000c (Z T = —F : B
1,623,912,0007T ) 2 R HARITE R K&
EHH'EE%T?T,TJXLATEIJKIE%%M:

e RZTEZZF+ZA=+—8"
BREELBE®19,734,0007T
— =~ — 4 : 5 ¥20,323,0007T)
ZME - BELRZE REELD
78 1£55,222,0000T (—Z T = —4F -
7 #56,870,0007T ) Z F A EE
= - BREE 475 %1,927,000,0007C
— = = — 4 : % #2,006,000,000
TIZEREMEREERMBELBE
203,610,0007C ( — T = —4F : B
213,410,0007T) 2 B Sk ¥ % 17
B

As at 31 December 2022, the short-term and long-
term bank loans of HK$1,355,404,000 (2021:
HK$1,523,912,000) were secured by the following:

e As at 31 December 2022, charges over
property, plant and equipment with carrying
amount of approximately HK$19,734,000
(2021: HK$20,323,000), right-of-use assets
with carrying amount of approximately
HK$55,222,000 (2021: HK$56,870,000),
investment properties with carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,927,000,000
(2021: HK$2,006,000,000) and stock of
completed properties with carrying amount
of approximately HK$203,610,000 (2021:
HK$213,410,000);
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31 &Ex(#)

e ARA—ZXEEZEWB QA
FIT 12 4 75 %121,906,0007T ( =&
— — 4 : 7 #133,263,0007T) Z ¥
BR HIIZR &

e AKEERNAEE D ETalent Chain
Investments Limited,225.7% (=&
T—F:25.7%) 2RO AR
&

e ARA—ZXKMEEEEMBRRFT
= IR A #760,000,0007T 2
R

R-FE-_—_F+-_A=+—H &K
BrzERBARAEHR 2 BEERE
?J%f%

B Lt &SN REEE R BT R L
RITHEIN 2B T R TSR B 324 -

ARBERZ 'JHE &S A REE
HEAREERE

3Ffﬁ§bﬁﬁzﬁ§ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬂﬁ{ﬁﬁ$ﬁ

c RN A BEDBEIRANEERH =
Tﬁiﬁzfﬁimu WTERAARBESR
Fofp

REEBEFRABEE

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R

31 BORROWINGS (continued)

° Restricted cash of HK$121,906,000 (2021:
HK$133,263,000) from an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company;

e A share charge over the Group’s 25.7% (2021
25.7%) share of Talent Chain Investments
Limited, a joint venture of the Group; and

e A guarantee limited to HK$760,000,000 from
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowings
were guaranteed by the corporate guarantee given
by the Company.

In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to
comply with certain restrictive financial covenants
imposed by certain banks.

The carrying amounts of the current borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The carrying amount of the non-current borrowing
approximates its fair value. The fair value is based
on the cash flow discounted using a rate based on
current borrowing rate and is within Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy.

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in Hong
Kong dollar.
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31 &% (&) 31 BORROWINGS (continued)

EFXRMERRZEBRFNEDAT : The effective annual interest rates of borrowings at
the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

—E=-= —EF -
2022 2021
RESRITER Long-term bank loans 4.53%-6.05% 1.14%-1.74%
EREUURIRITE R Trust receipt bank loans 3.71%-5.14% 0.74%-1.39%
MHIRITER Short-term bank loans 5.40%-6.02% 1.06%-1.45%
32 /A 32 SHARE CAPITAL
&1 & B [EINED
Nominal
Number of shares value
BT T
HK$’000
S mESE10T 2 @Ak Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
JETE AN Authorised:
R=-—ZE-_—%—H—8- At 1 January 2021,
—E--H+ZA=t+—HK 31 December 2021 and
—E-_—Ff+=-HA=+—8H 31 December 2022 700,000,000 70,000
EETREERAE: Issued and fully paid:
R=—EB=-—-%—-H—8" At 1 January 2021,
—E-—H4+=-A=+-—-8HER 31 December 2021 and
—E--F+Z-A=+—H 31 December 2022 478,483,794 47,848
FENARQRSETANE R A EE Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
B HERBERARRRMEM LETES- purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s

listed securities during the year.
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33 f##E (&)

fiata :

MisED -

AEBEZ BHRABEARER-NNTF
EERAPENB A RN < mEREAR
BRI I B TTAR ) Z EEME 2 25 -

¢iwm%ﬁﬂ% AN B R B A A
M2 2B RBADE -2 HRB

1%Wﬂﬁ%ﬂ&¢ ERER)E—RE#

wREEBERES-

BMEED S RIEPBEEAG KA
HMeET TRHEREASEMATE10%
B EATE MG BEEEARRE
HREELRBEDRAIEREEZFHE B
ﬁﬁm%LU%E%Eﬁﬁ$ZW%ﬂU

BEEDTMNE - ZOR - —RHEHE
ﬁwﬁ% BEFEBESBNEITAR
R 15 o

HREEBRESME DEZBDLIH
EXEFET CEBRESTANER
REER-

BHE-Z-_ZF+=-A=+—HLHF
& B #2,333,0000 (ZE = —F 1 /BH
2,385,0007T ) D AL = — A RE R (> 4
RBES-

33 RESERVES (continued)

Note a:

Note b:

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the acquired subsidiaries, and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of
the Group’s reorganisation in 1990.

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
Mainland China are required to appropriate a portion of
their after — tax profit (after offsetting prior years’ losses) to
the general reserve and the enterprise expansion fund.

For the general reserve, the PRC entities are required to
transfer at least 10% of its net profit, as determined under
the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
general reserve. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of dividends to equity owners. When the
balance of reserve reaches 50% of each entity’s registered
capital,
reserve can be utilised to offset prior year losses or be
utilised for the issuance of bonus shares.

any further appropriation is optional. The general

For the enterprise expansion fund, the percentage of
appropriation is determined annually by the directors.
The enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for the

development of business operations.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, HK$2,333,000
(2021: HK$2,385,000) was appropriated to the general
reserve and the enterprise expansion fund.
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34. ZERHEsz2EMITA 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
AEBEREATERITA: The Group holds the following financial instruments:
—ZE=-= —EF -
2022 2021
B 7 BT T S F T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
SREE Financial assets
LA S5 A AN BR 2 Financial assets at amortised cost
W E 5 R Trade receivables 25 1,071,437 1,003,075
71 K A b JE Ui BR R Deposits and other receivables 20,973 19,976
ZRHIER ® Restricted cash 27 125,757 136,320
EERITIE R Short-term bank deposits 27 546,736 877,757
ReRReEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 27 544,537 400,818
BRAREEFAEM Financial assets at fair value through
AWM ANESRHEE other comprehensive income 21 158,616 15,523
TESmITA Derivative financial instruments 28 21,435 -
2,489,491 2,453,469
cHEasE Financial liabilities
LABESERK A%IBE 2 BfE  Liabilities at amortised cost
FERE SRR Trade payables 29 710,517 658,995
EEHEBAR Accruals and other payables
H Ath & 7 BR X 223,964 223,295
B Borrowings 31 2,022,968 2,075,718
HEA®E Lease liabilities 17 38,333 47,116
TETmIA Derivative financial instruments 28 8,613 8,543
3,004,395 3,013,667
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35 FmEBRERE 35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENTS
(@) BRITSHAIFA HEEEELN (a) Reconciliation of profit before income
REFHEZHERNOT: tax to net cash generated from
operations is as follows:
—E-—F T
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETEE Operating activities
B BT 15 25 B 7 Profit before income tax 154,650 126,662
MTHSIBEFHE: Adjustments for:
REKA—FRE Finance costs — net 38,338 28,835
EihaEE Share of losses/(profits) of joint ventures
BB (FE) 44,073 (32,074)
JEEEE AR EE Share of loss/(profit) of an associate
(7)) 4,170 (3,123)
e Depreciation 71,931 76,437
LEWME - BE & Gains on disposals of property, plant
J 2 W and equipment (804) (1,857)
RIEHEBENF 2 Gains on deemed disposal of
W an associate (117,064) -
FEWE SRR ZRE Provision of impairment losses
&5 18 B on trade receivables 368 1,126
HEB R K= Gains on lease modification (832) -
E A JE - BR KB T Write-back of other payables (2,668) (5,169)
W e i@ F 2 s 2 Recovery of amounts due from
JE Y BS & A B SRR an associate previously written off - (7,310)
Emﬁi'«?@%ﬁfﬁ?ﬁhﬁlﬂz Provision for write down of stock
B of completed properties 9,800 -
KEMENRLEEES)  Change in fair value of investment
properties 80,148 11,700
LEECEHH L Operating cash flows before changes
KrEBRenE in working capital 282,110 195,227
e Inventories (135,043) (66,403)
JE W & % BRK Trade receivables (126,008) (70,682)
ENRE -FJE R Prepayments, deposits and other
H W@é W AR R receivables 11,889 (24,605)
FERE SRR Trade payables 80,605 (17,167)
FEET &R R HMERBEER Accruals and other payables 4,622 28,387
EHBE Contract liabilities 5,283 (37,899)
LEELENIES Cash generated from operations 123,458 6,858
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35 ZABESHRER (&) 35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENTS (continued)
b) EEEREXRA HEWE- (b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds
BERRZERESRECHE: from disposals of property, plant and
equipment comprise:
—E- & —_E-—
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BREVFE Net book amount 80 451
HEWE BEKLLZEZ Gains on disposals of property,
& plant and equipment 804 1,857
HEWE - BENKER  Proceeds from disposals of property,
BRIA plant and equipment 884 2,308
(c) EXRFEHE (c) Net debt reconciliation
REH NS 25 BEEBEF This section sets out an analysis of net debt
oM RERFEEE- and the movements in net debt for each of the
period presented.
—_s:=-= —EF=-—
2022 2021
BET T B FIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 544,537 400,818
EHRITER Short-term bank deposits 546,736 877,757
ZRHIER & Restricted cash 125,757 136,320
HEBGE-RBIHH Lease liabilities — current portion (18,914) (20,804)
HEBE-IFREEH  Lease liabilities — non-current portion (19,419) (26,312)
BEX—BRN—FRNEE  Borrowings — repayable within one year (952,674) (774,164)
BR—ARN—F1%EE  Borrowings - repayable after one year (1,070,294) (1,301,554)
B FE Net debt (844,271) (707,939)
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35 ZABESHRER (&) 35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENTS (continued)
(c) EXFEHE (&) (c) Net debt reconciliation (continued)
RETBZEE
Liabilities from financing activities
ek ik ER-2  ER-Z

ReEEE  RGRR  XRERE  BERE R-FARE R-FHEE hE

Borrowings  Borrowings

Cash Short- -repayable - repayable
and cash  termbank  Restricted Lease  within one after one
equivalents deposits cash liabilities year year Total

BRI BRI ARTR AR ARTR ARTn AN
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKBO00  HKBO0D  HKS000  HKS'00O

WZEZ-F-F-H Netdebtasat

LEREE 1 January 2021 680,202 738,916 2,981 (33003 (854008  (1,184662) (649,664
Reng Cash flows (298,980) 126,411 131,422 20,782 181452 (218500) (57,413)
HERE Foreign exchange adjustments 19,59 12,430 1917 (481) - - 33,462
WhERE Acquisition of leases - - - (34,324) - - (34,324)
LU FEEY Other non-cash movements - - - - (101,608) 101,608 -
RZB=-% Net debt as at

tZA=+-Bz 31 December 2021

xRS 400,818 871,757 136,320 (47,116)  (774,164)  (1,301,554)  (707,939)
Reng Cash flows 192,074 (284,707) 1,075 21,322 52,750 - (17,486)
HEE Foreign exchange adjustments (48,355) (46,314) (11,638) 2,021 - - (104,286)
WERE Acquisition of leases - - - (31,926) - - (31,926)
LhFREEY Other non-cash movements - - - 17,366 (201,260 231,260 17,366
RZBZZf% Net debt as at

tZB=t+-A2z 31 December 2022

XS 544,537 546,736 125,757 (38,333)  (952,674) (1,070,204  (844,271)
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36 AFIEEZ2UBMRRKKFHE 36 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

) FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT
—Es—-= T4
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current asset
HEABEE Investments in subsidiaries 563,366 563,366
REBEE Current assets
ENFE FIE2 Kk Prepayments, deposits and
E A U BR X other receivables 351 323
FE U BT |8 A R EIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 498,774 473,774
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,726 1,704
..o 500851 475801
BEE Total assets 1,064,217 1,039,167
X EQUITY
BENAATHEEAZ Equity attributable to owners
& of the Company
fi&% 2 Share capital 47,848 47,848
H b E Other reserves Mt 5F Note 675,934 675,934
RE & A Retained earnings Ff #ENote 76,710 75,207
R Total equity 800,492 798,989
=L LIABILITIES
REEE Current liabilities
JEET B F & H fb 8 {4 BR 38 Accruals and other payables 2,962 3,032
FEAHHY B A R FIA Amounts due to subsidiaries 260,763 237,146
mefk Total liabilites 263725 240,178
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 1,064,217 1,039,167
RBEEFHE Net current assets 237,126 235,623
BEERRBARG Total assets less current liabilities 800,492 798,989
MRz ENR T _=F= A =+1EH The financial statements were approved and
BEEgH EREETE AR T authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
BEEREREE: 24 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:
FERK TEH WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG YIN MAN, ADA
FTEFITEAAE EF Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director
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AEAZUBMRRERK#iE 36
28 (&)

5

GESESNGLT T T

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT (continued)

Note: Reserves movement of the Company

=N
IR 13 %5 8 BE#E BEHER REEF B
Capital
Share redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus earnings Total

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

R-—®B-—-%—-H—A8 At 1 January 2021 153,025 345 522,564 68,903 744,837
FEFHA Profit for the year - - - 23,051 23,051
xS Dividends - - - (16,747) (16,747)
R-ZZB=Z—F+=ZA=+—H At31December 2021 153,025 345 522,564 75,207 751,141
FEHE Profit for the year - - - 23,036 23,036
&8 Dividends - - - (21,533) (21,533)

MR-ZZE--F+=-HA=+—H At31December 2022

153,025 345 522,564 76,710 752,644

ARBZEFGBBEARER -NANTEF
EREBAARMBEBHBRAREEAEF
EZREESEADB G ETRD 2
HEMEZEZE - REAREANARFZ
RAMA ARFZERBHBAEIIRT
PR o

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the book values of the underlying net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the Group’s reorganisation in
1990. Under the Companies Act and the Bye-laws of the
Company, contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution to the shareholders.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022 245



e ISR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 AE&iE 37 COMMITMENTS
@ ME - BELREZHBZERNFE (a) Capital commitments in respect of property,
N plant and equipment are as follows:
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
SEEEE Contracted but not provided for 9,938 69,847
EREERTA Authorised but not contracted for - -
9,938 69,847
by RZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—8H" (b) As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s future
AEBEREBEZOD AR HEME rental income receivables under various non-
EgFgEHERI R 2 cancellable operating leases in respect of
SWADHTLT : rented premises are analysed as follows:
—Eg-= T —F
2022 2021
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 49,792 50,446
F_ZERF (BIEEEMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 70,860 120,165
120,652 170,611
KEMBEWFEASEREHEAEKRSE Operating lease receipts represent rentals
MERKR B AHRBSIEFHF receivable by the Group for leasing its investment
HSFHEEREE (ZE—F:3F) - properties. Leases and rentals are negotiated and

fixed for an average of 3 years (2021: 3 years).
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38 BEAEIXRS

RZB_—_F+_A=+—8 XRQF
ZEABRRAETBRKREE (AARER
Salop Hong Kong Limited * H Ty @ ¥ 2
BWAREH AR -

(a)

(b)

(c)

BRAE A T 28R

WA EEERBHNEAYH
RN B B IRRE M FE19

g R

R—E-_—_F+=-_RA=+—8"
RAAGBRENB AR ERLBE
3,251,648,0007L (Z T = —F : B
#£3,392,963,0007T ) Z SR1TRE & -
MIRTTIR M B EEIR

R-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—8"
MEBATIMBANRENRBE
2,022,968,0007T (= F = —F : &
#2,075,718,0007T ) °

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the largest shareholder
of the Company was Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(personally and via Salop Hong Kong Limited, a
company wholly-owned and controlled by him).

(a)

(b)

Balances with related parties

The amounts due from joint ventures are set
out in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The terms are set out in Note 19.

Guarantee

As at 31 December 2022, the Company
has provided corporate guarantee given to
the banks in respect of banking facilities of
approximately HK$3,251,648,000 (2021:
HK$3,392,963,000) granted to its subsidiaries.

The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately HK$2,022,968,000 (2021:
HK$2,075,718,000).

FTEEE ASHRM (c) Key management compensation
—=E=-= T —F
2022 2021
BT T S F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
e MoERL Salaries and allowances 15,320 15,107
TE4L Bonus 3,059 4,111

BARE KA —-FREMHAGTE]  Pension costs — defined contribution

schemes 72 72
18,451 19,290
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Schedule of Principal Properties

R=ZFZ=—F+=H=+—H Asat31 December 2022

BRAREER
NEABRAE k] (FHX) BRES R# HEAR THER  AREER
Approximate Gross Stage of Group
Name of property and location Type Floor Areas (sq.m.) Lot Number Purpose  Lease Expiry Completion Interest
NEEZRENE
Investment properties in Hong Kong
EBNEEETEHE181%0ne Harbour Square 9108+ HAE ERMEE1735 FRZE “EMtE B
1218151 161 - 178 - 188 - 191 ]R20%% ~AZtH
9th, 10th, 12th, 15th, 16th, 17th, 18th, 19th and Office 12,089 Kwun Tong Inland Lot Office 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
20th floors, One Harbour Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road, No. 173
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
EENETEEEEI8150ne Harbour Square 43EBERL  BEfL BEMBEITE e “INtE B3R
~AE=1A
43 car parking spaces, One Harbour Square, Car parking spaces 538 Kwun Tong Infand Lot Parking 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong No. 173
NEEZBRRNERE
Stock of completed properties in Hong Kong
FIENEEB5ZE18150ne Harbour Square 7 BAE BREAMRITIH BAZE “TNtE B,
~AZTA
Tth floors, One Harbour Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road, Office 1,354 Kwun Tong Inland Lot Office 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong No. 173
BENEEEERE81%0ne Habour Square 14EBER  BEf BREABEITH e “EIMtE B
~E=1A
14 car parking spaces, One Harbour Square, Car parking spaces 175 Kwun Tong Inland Lot Parking 30 June 2047 Completed 100%

181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

TREREBERAT 2022 F3R
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